Date: 01/09/2025

To,

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001
BSE Scrip Code: 530305

i

PICCADILY

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/l,G Bio_ck,
Bandra- Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai— 400051

NSE SYMBOL:PICCADIL

Dear Sir/Madam, _
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), we are enclosing herewith the
copy of 315t Annual Report for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2025 which is
scheduled to be held on 30% September, 2025 at 04:30 PM through Video
Conferencing(VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). Details are as under:

Particulars Start date End date
Book Closure Date 24th September 2025 30th September 2025
E-voting 27%  September 2025 29"  September 2025
(9:00AM) (5:00PM)

Further, such Annual Report of the Company for the financial
2025 has also been uploaded at websit
This is for information and record.
Thanking you

Yours faithfully

year ended 31st March,
e of the Company i.e. www.piccadily.com.

. Piccadily Agro Industries Ltd.
Registered Office: Village Bhadson, Umri - Indri Road, Teh, Indri, Distt. . Haryana-132109 (jng
Corporate Office: G-17, IMD Pacific Square, Sector-15 (Pan-2), Gurugram. Haryana 122002 (Ind; =
Ph +_9I-II24-43003W. Website: www.piccadily.com, Email: infud preci ]y com ¥
Administrative Office: 275-276, Captain Gaur Marg, Sriniwaspuri, New Delhi 110065
Investor Relations: Ph.: +91-172-2997651, Website: WWW.picagro.com, .

Ero. , Email dil eged:
CIN No. LOI1ISHRI994PLCO32248  © o & ouP34@rediffmait com



i

PI1C

—= KINCE : 1967 =

Annual Report
2024-25







2

PICCADRILY

— HE T -

Board of Directors DIN No.
Sh. Harvinder Singh Chopra, Chairman & Managing Director 00129891
Sh. Jai Parkash Kaushik, Director 02354480
sh. Dharmendra Kumar Batra, Wholetime Director 07947018
Ms. Heena Gera, Independent Woman Director 08644677
Sh. Rajeev Kumar Sanger, Independent Director 08178395
Mr. Rajan Talwar, Independent Director 10620650
Auditors

M/s Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
sco 178, Sector 5 Panchkula Haryana-134101

Company Secretary
Sh. Nira] Kumar Sehgal

Chief Financial Oifficer
Sh. Natwar Aggarwal

CIN No.: LO1115HR1994PLC032244

Reqistered Office & Factories
Village: Bhadson, Umri Indri-Road,
Tehsil Indri, Distt: Kamal, Haryana-132109

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Mas Services LimitedT -34, 2nd Floor,
Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-1I, New Delhi-110020

Banker

Punjab Naticnal Bank
Large Corporate Bank (LCB)
New Delhi

ANMLIAL REPORT « Fr2npd-25 | 11




ﬁ:"
PLOCCADILY

= A | T

In This Report

Chairman and Managing Director’s Letter
FY 2024-25 Snapshot and Highlights

Our Journey _ .

Product Portfolio = IMFL 10
Awards and Recognition 26
Management Discussion and Analysis 3l
Notice 54
Director's Report . . . 72
Annexure A to G to Director's Report 83
Annexure H to BRSR Report : . : 124
Independent Auditor's Report 174
Standalone Balance Sheet . _ . . - = 187
Standalone Profit & Loss Statermment 188
Standalone Cash Flow Statement _ R .. 185
Standalone Statement of Change in Equity 190
Notes to Financial Statements = Seegss =z S - 212
Consolidated Auditors Report 224
Consolidated Balance Sheet e : eeooc. OO0
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss e S ot
Consolidated Cash Flow Statements S S o BDS
Consoclidated Statement of Change in Equity 234
Notes & Significant Accounting Policy e e e e e DY,

FY 2024-25 or FY25 are used interchangeably in this report and so is FY 2023-24 or FY 24

AWNUAL REPORT - Fy2ied.25 | |2




PICCADRILY

— B T -

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR'S LETTER

Dear Shareholders,

FY2025 was a year of achievements and mitiatives for Piccadily
Agro. The Company has evolved through a phase of innovation
led development and is moving to the next. Let me explain.

As you are aware, the Company had started its commercial
operations as a sugar manufacturing entity in 1994 at Indr,
Haryana. Thereafter, the company diversified and set up a grain-
based distillery i 2007 5ince then, we have been steadily
developing the distillery businesses where we have tasted
success. Overall, these early years have provided our team with
rich experience. Importantly, during this phase, the Company
operated largely with investments from internal accruals and promoter funding. Debt
was at low levels, and the Company resorted to raising external finances mamly for
operating working capital.

The distillery business has grown well and continues to show promise. In 2010, a malt
distillery was established, and barrels were procured with a view to commence the
process of alcohol maturation. In 2017, the Company entered the branded alcoholic
beverage segment with the launch of the "Whistler' brand of whiskey. Subsequently, in
2022 the single malt whiskey Tndn’ was launched, and it has been a raving success in the
domestic and the intermational markets recording over 40% volume growth in FY2025.
The success of Indri bears testament to the expertise built by the Company right across
the product value chain - including sourcing, malting, maturing, development of
product, distillation and producing to sales and distnbution of premium whisky in India
and overseas.

It 1s important to appreciate that product variation through innovation and quality is at
the core of our offerings. The Company thrives on employing innovation to introducmg
unigue Indian flavours that are harmessed from natural ingredients. Further, the terroir
lends its imprint on the maturation process at Indri in Morth India thereby offering
distinct charactenstics to the company's IMFL products, especially malt. These are
contributing to the unique products that are cultured and developed over time, which
the company has been able to offer and been well received in India as also overseas. Itis
this quality that provides it with a premium positioning. After the resounding success of
Indn, the Company is focussing on the branded alcoholic beverages space and has
launched two new product ranges. These are:

» (Camikara, which is Indias first and only pure cane juice rum. Setting it apart from
molasses-based counterparts, and offenng it with different age of maturation

=« Cashmir, a small batch luxury vodka crafted from hertage organic Indian winter
wheat and pristine glacial water from the Kashmir valley

AMMLIAL REPORT - Frinpd.24 | 13
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It is also repositioning its blended whisky — ‘whistler’ — with focused branding and
communication. Clearly, the Company is fast emerging as a branded product player in
the alcohol beverages space with niche products that have premium market
positioning in their respective segments.

Over the years, the sugar business has grown and today there is capacity to process
5,000 tons of cane crushed per day and produce white crystal sugar. Unfortunately, the
sugar mndustry in India operates under strict government controls and there 1s strong
regulatory overhang. Consequently, today, this business is not core to the Company's
operations and alternate avenues are being explored including divestment or demerger.

FY2025 was year of steady traction for these products that has translated into a much-
improved financial performance. The highlights are:

» Total Revenue increased by 7.7% to Rs.893 crore in FY2025

+ EBIDTAmargin increased by 300 basis points to 21 4% in FY2025; and EBIDTA
increased by 254% toRs 191 crore mFY2025

« PAT (excluding exceptional item of FY2024) increased by 22% to Rs.105 crore in
FY2025

» Eamnings Per share (EPS) (excluding exceptional item of FY2024) increased by 22% to
Rs.11inFY2025

While we build on the premium branded alco-beverage portfolio, the Company will
continue to produce and sell other products in the value chain to optimise production
returns at a certain scale of operations. With the base firmly in place including sourcing,
distilling, maturation, developing products, branding and marketing systems and sales
distribution channels, the Company is now poised to launch into the next phase of
growth. It has undertaken capacity expansion schemes at Indr, setting up a new
distillery each at Mahsamund, Chhattisgarh and at Portvadie, Scotland.

In FY2025, company announced a growth plan by investing Rs.1000 Cr in 3 years for
capacity and business expansion. We have invested nearly Rs 450 Cr in FY2025, another
about Rs.250 Cris in the pipeline while the balance amount of up to Rs.300 Cris planned
to be invested for acquisitions and mergers. With the above, we are well on our way to
increase our capacity by four fold, in line with the same we plan to grow our business by
four times from our current base over the next 3-5 years. The funding of the same has
happened through mix of fully convertible warrants and compulsory convertible
debentures of Rs26Z2 Cr and Rs16125 Cr through Term Loans. In addition, the
promoters have also subscribed to an additional Rs.50 Cr. The balance is expected to be
funded through intemal accruals. With this external funding and profits from the years’
operation, the Company's net worth or equity has nearly doubled from Rs.341 crore as
on 31 March 2024 to Rs.683 crore as on 31 March 2025. Long term borrowing has
increased to Rs.142 crore as on 31 March 2025. The Company is now operating with a
much larger balance sheet whose size has increased from Rs739 core as on 31 March
2024 to Rs.1,146 crore as on 31 March 2025.

ANMLIAL REPORT - Franes.25 | 4
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Much of the first phase of this expansion path witnessed commencement of execution
in FY2025. At Indr, distillery capacity is being increased from 78 KLPD to 220 KLPD for
ENA/Ethanol and from 12 KLPD to 30 KLPD for malt. The new lines are expected to be
comrmmussioned in H1, FY2026. The barrel storage capacity is also being scaled up from
45,000 to 100,000 barrels, of which 30,000 extra barrels has already come on board. To
support this growth, barrel warehousing capacities are also being increased. To spread
production risk, the Company has also taken up a site in Chhattisgarh at Mahasamund,
where a new 210 KLPD distillery is being set up, which is expected to go onstreamin HZ,
FY2026. The Company has also forayed into setting up an international production
facility at Portavadie (Scotland), where land acquisition is complete and the process of
evaluation of plant and machinery is underway.

To successfully execute this next round of growth, the Company has also started putting
in place the intermal bullding blocks. The senior management team has been
strengthened by inducting a highly experienced Head of Sales and an experienced CFO.
The SAP based internal financial ERP solutions has been implemented with more of its
modules being rolled out, which 1s focused on streamliming operating processes and
nstitutionalising better corporate controls across the organisation. Human resource
processes have been further strengthened with the introduction of an ESOP scheme for
1% of paid-up capital and 1/3 of that has been granted.

We are a Company on the move, and we have sown the seeds for significant value
accretion over the next few years. In terms of products, we are developing unique
propesitions that bring in unique Indian flavours to a global palate. We have already
spread our distribution networks wide across the world. As we ncrease our product
portfolio, thus will be better utilized to generate value.

I thank you, our shareholders and related stakeholders for instilling faith in our business
over the past. 1 urge you to repose faith in us as we are confident of embarking on a
strong growth journey over the next few years.

Regards,

Harvinder 5ingh Chopra
Chairman & Managing Director

ANMLIAL REPORT « Fr2npd-25 | 15
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FY2025: PERFORMANCE SNAPSHOT (STANDALONE)
?8 9 3 crore 5 19 1crc~re T 1 1
Total Income EBITDA EPS
7.7% 25 4% 22%*

@ ¥-o-f t;rnwth @ Y-o-Y g'ro:'th @ Y<o-Y i_:?rowth

105 21.4%
X crore . O
PAT EBITDA Margin

227%* 200bps
@ Y-o-f I;Tﬂwlh @ Y-o-¥Y grmHh
KEY ANNUAL HIGHLIGHTS

IMFL sales volumes (Indri, Camikara and Products/Expressions launched
Whistler) grew 46% YoY « Indri Game of Thrones
= Indri volumes grew over 37%, Whistler grew « Indri City Series Edition

54%, Camikara 310% (on asmaller base) « Indri Diwali Collectors Edition 2024
» Indri captured an estd 55% share of Indian « Indri Founders Reserve 11 YO

Single Malt export market = Camikara3YO
= B2B Malt sales halted in FY25 to cater to own = Camikara mixers

IMFLdemand

Indri Experience Centre launched at the Indri

distillery

= A unique offering for whisky lovers offering
guided tours, curated tastings and interactive
exhibits Recreational golf greens to support
premium positioning

Strenghtened distribution

= 28 Statesand UT (incl CSD) vs 20in Fy24

= Owver 16,000 Retail Stores including On Trade in
India vs 6,700 in Fy24

= CSD and Paramilitary added for our IMFL
products

= 28 (vs 22) countries, 16 (vs 8) Indian Duty free
and 11 (vs 3) International duty free
Participated, domestically and internationally,
in Whisky & Spirits shows and events

ANMLIAL REPORT « Fr2nsd-25 |

Maturation capacify enhanced

=  Number of Barells at 75,000 (vs 45,000 in
FY24) and warehousing for the same, at
Indri

Otherupdate

= Expansions on track - Indri Haryana +
Chhattisgarh + Portavadie, Scotland Fund
raise:Hs.312 crore raised by way of CCD's
and Warrants to part fund expansion
plans. Of above Rs.50 crore subscribed by
Promoters

= SAPimplemented

= Camikara Millionaire Bartenders
Challenge conducted Jan to April, 2025 -
Winner prize money of Rs. 10 lakh.




»

PICCAIMLY

FIVE YEAR PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE)

Revenue from cperations, Hs. Crore

 gogy 0863

10000 <

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Operating Profit Margin
(EBIDTA/Operational Revenues)
216%
184%

mox  122% 40

Y2021 FY2022 FY2025 FY2024  FY2025

EBIDTA, Rs. Crore

T e

e L 1526

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

Profit After Taxes, Rs. Crore 1047

s

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Fr2024 FY2025

Net Worth* Rs. Crore 6829

FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025

* Net Worth in FY2025 is including CCD and warrants

** Excluding Exceptional items for FY2024
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Our Journey

Piccadily Agro Industries Ltd.,, based in India, is a key
player in the liquor industry. The company, rooted in
agro-processing, now makes spirits. It has launched
brands like Whistler, Indri, Camikara and Cashmir. Each
product has its own character and story, linked to its
origins and careful making.

2017

Entered the
branded
Established alcoholic
a malt beverage .
isti segment wit
in-based E&gﬂ; the launch of
ey maturation Whistler
Commenced distillery
operations
with a sugar
manufacturing

unit
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The Company's journey in the spirits market is a mix of
tradition, innovation, and dedication to making great
drinks. Each sip from the spirits is not just drinking
alcohol. It's part of Piccadily Agro's diverse, flavourful
journey in the world of spirits.

Introduced

Indri single
malt whisky

Launched
Camikara
12-Year-Old
aged rum

ANMUAL REPORT - FY7024-25 |

2023

Expanded the
Indri portfolio
with Dru and
Diwali 2023
Edition

Indri Diwali
2023 Edition
received the
World's Best
Whisky Award

Introduced
Camikara
8-Year-Old for
international
markets

2024

Released
Indri Diwali
Collectors
Edition 2024

Rolled out
Indri City
Series Editions

Launched
Camikara
3-Year-Old

Fund raise
and capacity
expansion
commenced

Launch of
Cashmir

Launch of
Indri Agneya
& Dubai City

Series
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Product Portfolio - IMFL
Single Malt [ Fremium Sugarcane ( Blended Malt Cashmir
Whisky Juice Rum Whisky Vodka
Indsl, our fagship brand, a Camikara; a bold Whistler 15 a barrel aged India's 1st Premium Vodka
trailblazer in redefining India's - innovation that reimadgines o bBlended malt whisky offering Made From Sona Mati,

rernium spirits landscape the spirit of mara, blending | & sophisticated balance of & zono-Year-Old Rediscovered
B ¥ P | A : = | a0 g e Organic Wheat Indigenous To
with unparalleled elegance i creativity with excellence, i tradition and modernity. . India

and character

1 2 KLPD* 78 KLPD*

Malt Plant Ethanol / ENA Plant

28 18,500."

Countries PAN India Retail Outlets
including On Trade

*Excludes on-going expansions
** As of 306.2025
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Indri - Raising The Bar:
A Spirit Designed to Inspire

Indri is one of the most awarded Indian
single malt whisky in the world.
Launched in zozz, it has quickly become
the fastest-growing single malt globally,
earning over 50 prestigious accolades,
including ‘Best Indian Single Malt’ and
‘Best Whisky In The World.' Produced in
Indri, a small village in Haryana, using
premium 6-row Indian barley from Rajas-
than, showcases Indian excellence and
innovation.

5 .

-|.||||

—

Eiwali collector’s The City Series
Tring DAL Travel Retail Exclusire Editzsomn (BENGALLUAL DUITY
ITHE THREE WiZGI | JCASK STRENGTHI {TRIFLE CASK) (PX-EHEERY PEAT) FREE ECTTION!

sy |

L. L == ___J
L :
e The City Series
Heuse of The Dragen Indrl Fowndar's (DRIEAL DUTY FREE

Single Cask Exclusre Edition Reserve 11¥0 Agneya EDITICORN]

www indriin
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INDRI Single Malt Whisky

CI'he Spirit Of Five Sensea

A remarkable single malt made from the indige-
nous non-hybrid, non-GMO, six-row barley grown
for hundreds of years in Rajasthan. The inaugural
award-winning expression (Indri-Trini) is India’s

first triple cask single malt matured in ex-bourbon,
ex-French wine, and PX sherry casks, carefully

curated by the master craftsmen at the distillery to
bring out the individual character of each wood.

state of Haryana, India, where our distillery is
located. It is situated in the catchment area of
River Yamuna, nestled in the foothills of the
mighty Himalayas.

www indriin
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Cask Strength Expression

DRU is a cask strength expression from the
house of INDRI, bottled at 57.2% ABV. The
Ex-Bourbon barrels for DRU are handpicked
by our master blender to offer an experience
that will awaken your senses.

DRU in Sanskrit means wood, tree or a
vessel made of wood. In ancient Indian
mythology, Dru was a vessel in which ‘soma’
(a drink) was collected and offered to the
Gods.

INDRI

SINGLE MALT
INDIAN WHISEY

ANMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 | {13
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INDRI
THE CITY SERIES
DUBf

EXCLUSIVELY BOTTLED FOR DUBAIL DUTY FRELE

Indri Single Malt Indian Whisky proudly introduces ‘The City Series’ featuring an exclusive
Single Cask expression crafied for city specific travel retail. This remarkable release
reflects Indri’s unwavering commitment to quality and artisanal craftsmanship. Each city
expression pays tribute to the iconic landmarks, seamlessly integrating them into the
packaging to enhance the whisky's narrative and connection to its cultural roots.

The City Series'nol only celebrates cultural richness but also positions itself as a distinctive
addition to the global whisky landscape. Each element of this release beautifully showcases

Indris dedication to excellence, making it a must-iry for all whisky enthusiasts and for those

seeking an experience.

OLOROSO SAUTERNES
SHERRY CASK CASK FINISH

ANNUAL REPORT - Fr2024.25 | {14
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Diwali Collector’s Edition 2024

PEATED
SHERRY CASK

INDRI Diwali collector’s edition 2024 is a
limited-edition release, bottled at 50% ABV.

\

\

T

|

This unique expression is made from Peated
Indian Six-row barley, distilled in traditional
copper pot stills crafted in India, carefully
matured in PX Sherry Cask for a significantly
long time amidst the sub-tropical climate of
Northern India. It entices you with a whiff of
smoke and awakens your senses to a myriad of
flavours like candied dried fruits, toasted
nuts, subtle spices, oak, bittersweet chocolate
and an array of undiscovered delights.

I

It has been awarded the Gold at the prestigious
Whiskies of the World Awards 2024.

wwwindriin
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INDRI
-THE CITY SERIES -

Indri Single Malt Indian Whisky introduces

“The City Series’ with a debut exclusively bottled
for the Bengaluru Duty Free. This unigue release embadies
the essence of Bengaluru through its rich, aromatic profile.
Crafted with intricate detailing, it pays homage to the city's
vibrant spirit by incorporating iconic landmarks seamlessly
into its design. Each sip unveils layers of flavor, echoing the
city's dynamic blend of tradition and modernity. Indri's
dedication to quality and craftsmanship shines through in
this expression.

LHE CITY SERIES

EXCLUSIVELY BOTTLED FOR

BENGALLRU DUTY FRE]
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Game Of Thrones
House Of The Dragon

Exclusive Edition

In an extraordinary collaboration bridging the realms of Westeros and
the realm offine spirits, Indri Single Malt Indian Whisky, in partnership
with Warner Bros. Discovery Global Consumer Products, proudly
introduced its latest masterpiece inspired by the Game of Thrones
franchise - the 'House of the Dragon’ Exclusive Edition. Crafted in
homage to the highly anticipated return of the HBO Original Series,
House of the Dragon. this exclusive edition stands as a unique
partnership, the first ofits kind in India's single malt market.

AFVEIE ALy
Ay

i . il ©
T .

GAME® [HRONES
THMISE OF TITE DRAGDN
INDRI TXCLUSIVE EDITION

BINELE WMALT
INDEAY WRINLY
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Indri Founder's Reserve

A A

RS

TIME DOESN'T JUST AGE
——IT REFINES ——

Indri Founder's Reserve Single Malt Whisky, aged for an exceptional 11 years, is a heartfelt tribute
to the visionary behind the Piccadil ar Nath Sharma. Crafted with extreme care, this
whisky embodies both the passage of time and the enduring passion that define our founder's

journey. This exclusive edition has been curated to perfection by marrying malts matured in

11-yvear-old Ex-Bordeaux Red Wine Casks, in distinctive sub-tropical terrair of nerthern India.

www indriin
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£ WHEN FIRE
FINDS IT°S PURPOSE

—— GREATNESS IS BORN ——

Derived from the Sanskrit word meaning “belonging
to fire". Agneya carries the spirit of the flame—not its

g chaos, bul its clarily. Not destruction, but purpose. It
-_— INDRI is the quiet power of fire, held in balance. Matured in

Sherry and Bourbon casks, where depth and com
SINGLE MALT plexity unfold to embody the very essence of fire and
' INDIAN WHISKY Iﬁ‘ﬂﬂd
Agneya is a story of mastery.
Of turning flame mm messg, ‘
INDRI — Of finding greatnessiigtestraint.
h:{::\‘“::;ﬁ — AGNE‘YA — It is one of India’s most refined and elegant single
malt whisky, hm‘u ne gt complexsty with notes of
nuttiness andyig : ! Va gentle smoki

Matured In

Sherry & Bourbon Cask L on the pﬂia te.

—AGNEYA—
el i
ey [ it |
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Award - Winning at Every Age
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LAMIKARA

INDIR'S I*" PURE CRANE RUM

Camikarais derived from the Sanskrit
word, meaning liquid gold. This rum is aged
for 12 years in American oak barrels amidst
the hills of Northern India. Camikara is bot-
tled at 50% ABV with no added colors,
flavors, sugar, or spices. This expression
represents the unadulterated flavor of an
Indian cane spirit intermingled with cask
aging at the extreme temperatures of
India’s northern plains. Camikara Rum is
the pioneer of a revolution — a testament to
our land’s history, its culture, and its

" people.

The 1" Indian Rum to Ever Win A Gold Medal, Especially at

~ the Prestigious IWSC Awards 2023, With 95 Points
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EAMIARA

S RUM 22

1ST |NDIAN PURE CANE JUICE RUM

Discover the Camikara 8YO, a treasure of India.
Unique in its kind, this pure cane juice rum aged for
8 years in American oak barrels promises a taste
experience rich in'aromas. Let yourself be tempted
by this unigue sensory journey!

Distilled in copper stills and aged for eight years in
American cak barrels, it has a complex nose of honey,
ginger, caramel, prunes and leather. The first sip
reveals a vegetal attack, evolving into exotic flavors
of banana and marshmallow, enhanced by ginger and
sweet spices. The woody notes and a hint of caramel
on the finish bring a unique depth. Camikara is more
than a rum, it's a sensory experience that will delight
conneisseurs and novices alike.

The 1st Indian Rum to Ever Win A Gold Medal at
The Glohal Rum & Cachaca Masters 2024

ANMWLIAL REPOHT - Fi2024-25 |
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CAMIKARA

QU RUM £

1ST |NDIAN PURE CANE JUICE RUM

Camikara 3YO is aged in'American oak barrels and
bottled at 42.8% ABV. It is 8 @eparture from the myth that
rum i5 a seasonal spirit, Inviting young censumers to
experiment and impressing rum enthusiasts with its
complexity, Camikara 3¥0iea versatile drink. On the
rocks or as the four .J.dtinn of a preferred cocktail, it can
be savoured all year long, sérving as a canvas for the true
essence of t} cane juice to shine through.

Eﬂ Kﬂ ' I The 1st Indian Rum to Ever Win A Silver Medal at
The Global Rum & Cachaca Masters 2024

NRUM L2

,\;qﬁ 3 YO *"’-ufx‘[-:n
=

w INDIANPLRE CANE JUICE RUM 1f¢'-
. H TEDmI™ 47 B% VIV 75 Presk
A

ST
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BARREL AGED
BLENDED MALT WHISKY

Whistler Whisky is a testument to barvel ageing, maturation and the art of blending, Inspived by the Whistler warbler, o vare and
elusive song bird Indigenows to Tndri, the fome of ourdistillerv in Hoovana, This enchanfing songbivd entheralls us wdth its melogy
&uvibrant colours—this whisky is the embodiment of the true spivit of this bird giving an unforgetiable experience with every sip.

The finest matured molts and groin spivits ere cavefully selected by our master blendey, nurtured and patiently aged in oak wood
barrels o develop a remarkzable depth in flavourand refinement on the palate. The resultis an exquisite balance of intricate loyers

of favourwhich offers vou an extremely smooth and mellow whisky

Like the call of the Whistler bird, this whisky resonates bevond the glass, ils rich and nuanced noles echo long afier the last drop,
Whisticr Whisky is more than a drink—its an cxperience waiiing to be savoured.

YOUR TRUE SPIRIT

BARREL AGED
SUENDER MALT WRISTY
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In the heart of the Himalavas, where time lingers and nature whispers. les a land of

profound beaufy—Kashmir. A place where every petal. leaf and ripple lells a story.

Serene, poetic, untamed— It is from this land of quiet grandeur that Cashmir Vodka
draws ifs soul.

Crafted from Sona-Moli, a 2000vear-old mediscopered orpanic Indian henifoge wheal,
Cashmir embodies purity from the very start. What truly sels it apart is the pristine
wxrfer sourced from the Kashmir Valley—renowned for ifs untouched clarity, natural
mineral contternd and glocial origins—bringing unmatched freshmess and purify fo every
sip. Castimir is distilled seven times (7x) to achieve an exceptional level of clarity and
smooltlimess, resulting fna refined vodka thet (s veloety on the palate and clean in finish.

Each bottle is a canvas of memories.
Cashmir isn't just vodka—its a story in a bottle.
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Salas Team of Year (Highly Commandad) Master Distiller of the Year(Highly WVisitor Attraction of the Year (Highly
at loons of Whisky Commended) at Icons of Whisky Commended) at Izons of Whisky
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R
wmnm Indrl Heuse of Black Gald for WHISKIES Indri House of Black : Silver for Label
WHISKIES Limited Edition Design World AWARDS Deslgn at World Whiskies Award
M Whiskies Awards Desigm IT[;rT'E R Design
DESIGN SV
wWa 257 * ]
wmsnnlrins Indri House of Black: Gold for Lr‘ E Indri DCE 24 : Silver at World
AWARDS Special Edition Design Woarld -y Whislkies Avards

GOLD

WERLD
WHISKIES
AWARDS

Whisldes Awards Deslgn

Indri DCE 24 Gold for Special

W@F&D
WHISKIES

Indri House of Black : Silver at Warld

Edition Design World Whiskies AWA 5 Whislties Award
e Bwiards Desi
DESIGN] ™™™ SILVER
WERLD ¥ , o ;
m&hﬂs Inden DCL 24: Gold for Larrated :;‘]:‘.Eulis Indn House cti Green : Silver for Ep“ml
AWARDS Edition Design World Whiskies o Edm? Demiirat Workh: i et
GﬁLD Aweards Design SI L\?E’R Awar
. WORLD
B Indri House of Green : Silver for Limited
AMHISK Indri Founders Reserve Catogory WHISKIES
AWARD Winner & Gold (Single Malt 12 Years “ﬁ“m iﬂlﬂﬂ;ln Dlu-ig'n SR
Undsr) at World Whiskies Rwards SH.VER e
: (ORLD
NHISKIE Indri Founders Reserve Catogory .i'..":‘_lld.:‘ IE Indei Sauternes Wine Cask, 47050:
AWARD Winner & Gold (Single Malt 12 Years AWARDS Silver at World Whisldes Award
Undar) at World Whiskiess Awards »
WTRLD Single Cask, Cask 03: Category 23 )
WHISKIES Winner & Gold (Small Batch Single Mal, KIE Indri House of Green: Bronze at World
AWARDS Mo Age Atatemant) at World Whiskies VAKDS Whiskies Award

CATEGO
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Ly
WTRLD
“E'f}ﬂ!i":ﬁ‘ Gaold at the Whisldes of the World WHISKIES Best Limited Edition at the World
o , 2024 AWARDS Whislkies Avwards 2024
foLd DESIGN

Silver at the World Whiskies
Bwards 2024

. : Category Winner - Best Indian
(}3 ?..1. Whizky at the Infernational Whisky

Competiton 2024

Single Malt of the Year & Whisky of the

Best 1d whisley and Platinum at
LG Wik o Year at the USR Spirits Rating 2024

Las Vegas Global Spirit Award 2024

Eest Spirit of the Vear Country Catagory

Best World Whi t Whi
y il thy W sky at the USA Spirite Ratings 2024

Explorer Canada 2024

Gold (95 Pointz) at the USA Spirits

Gold at the USA Spirits Rating 2024 g 2024

YINE®AIR

Buperior gold winner at Takeyo Whiskeyr &
Spirits Competition 2024

Bast New World Whisky at Vinepair
2024

Bani

‘NEW WORLL"
Widlalewy 024

Beszt Single Malt World Whisky at
Whisky Explorer Canada 2024
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Camikara, derived from the Sanskrit word meaning "liquid gold,” is India's first Pure
Cane Juice Premium Aged Rum, redefining the country's rum legacy. Aged in American
oak barrels, Camikara stands apart with no added colors, flavors, sugar, or spices,
delivering a truly authentic and refined experience.

+ Bged for 12 years in American oak barrels.
+ Bottled at 50% ABV, offering a rich, complex, and smooth tasting experience,

+ Bvailable in select Indian and international markets.

RECOGNITIONS

The 15t Indian Rum to ever win a gold medal at the prestigious [WSC
wards 2023, with 95 poin.

2023 Bartendaer Spirits awards - GOLD,

Camikara 12YO The Spirits Business Global RUM & CACHACA Masters - GOLD 2024.

A rave, 8-year-aged pure cane juice rum, offering a deep and aromatic profile.
Aged in American oak barrels for a well-rounded charaeter, with an ABV of
42.8%, delivering a smooth and balanced whisky experienca,

Bvailable in select international markets.

RECOGNITIONS

The 1=t Indian Eum to Ever win a Gold Medal at the Global RUM &
CACHACA Masters 2024,

USA Spirits ratings - Silver 2024,

» Bged for 3 years in American oak bairels and bottled at 42.8% BBV,
shattering the myth that rum is only a seasonal spirit.
» Launched Pan-India in On-Trade channels.

RECOGNITIONS

The 1=t Indian Rum to ever win a Silrer medal at the Global RUM B
Cachaca Masters 2024,

Camikara 3 YO: Bronzae at London Spirits Competition.

Camikara 3YO
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Gold at World Rum Awards 2024

WORLD

Style Winner at World Bum Awards
AWARDS o

STYLE
WINMER

Gaold at Global Bum & Cachaca
Masters 2024

Silver at the USA Spirits Rating
2024

Gald af Bum Cachaea Mazters 2025

ANNLIAL REPORT - Fr2024-25 |
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Product Debut of the ¥ear at the Spiritz
Bchiever's Swards 2024

Silver at International Wine &
Spiritz Competition 2024

Silver at Global Fum & Cachaca Masters
2024

Silver at International Spirits Challenga
2024

Eronze at Londen Spirits Competion
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS o

INTRODUCTION

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited (referred to subsequently as 'Piccadily Agro’ or the
Company’) operates across two distinct business segments — Distillery including
Alcoholic Beverages (Alco-bev) and Sugar. Since its inception the Company has steadily
developed its business across these domains. Today, while the sugar business focuses
on refined sugar production and maintains its activities in line with demand conditions
in a largely regulated market, the Company is more aggressively developing the distillery
business with greater focus on the value-added alcoholic beverages business portfolio.
With the core positioning of blending traditional manufacturing with innovation led
product development, Piccadily Agro is fast evolving as a company with expertise across
product value chains including sourcing, distilling, maturation, marketing and sales and
distribution.

Chart A outlines the segment-wise portfolio of the Company's two business segments:

Distillery: This includes outputs like Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA), Ethanol, Country liquor
(Indian Made Indian Ligquor(IMIL) Malt and DDGS. Malt and ENA have been expanded
into Alco-bev brands or as they are commonly referred to, Indian Made Foreign Ligour
(IMFL)

Sugar: This includes outputs like sugar, molasses, bagasse and power co-generation

"CHART-A" PICCADILY AGRO BUSINESS STRUCTURE

s i
G e P Il IS

I

Incorporated in 1994, Piccadily Agro started its commercial operations as a sugar
producing Company. It diversified its business portfolio in 2007 and set up a grain-
based distillery. Subsequently, in 2010, amailt distillery was established, barrels procured
and there was the commencement of the process of barrel maturation. Essentially,
through these early years, the Company laid a strong foundation and developed on
ground expertise on Alco-bev product manufactunng and development.
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During this phase of the Company’s journey, it was gradually recognised that the sugar
business had significant overhang in terms of government regulations and controlled
markets, and the scope for enhanced value creation was imited. Consequently, while
continuing to manage efficiencies with cane sourcing and sugar manufacturing, from
a growth perspective, the Company laid significant emphasis on developing its
expertise and positioning across the value chain in the distillery and Alco-bev segment
of the business.

By 2015, the Company was selling matured malt to well-known distilleries.
This assured the Company that it had developed expertise in producing guality malt,
which it could itself develop and sell as an IMFL product. In this pursuit, in 2017 the
Company launched its first branded product — "Whistler’' — a blended whisky. Subse-
quently, in 2022, it launched Indri’ — an Indian single malt whisky, which got
resounding acceptance in both the domestic and international markets.

The distillery and malt business has evolved into the Company’s core focus area. In this
business, through a phase of evolution, which included development of practical
knowledge of product and market dynamics, the Company has mowved up the value
chain and 1s becoming largely a alco-bev player. This strategic transformation is clearly
observed from the change in overall revenue share of the different businesses or prod-
uct lines since FY2022. Chart B clearly depicts this overall transformation in terms of
relative share of business segments in total revenues. As can be seen, there has beena
steady shift away from the sugar business to the distillery business, where also there
has been a move away from bulk commodity-based sales towards that of branded and
premium alcoholic beverages. The numbers, too, reflect this story — share of sugar in
total revenues has steadily reduced from 52.3% in FY2022 to 28.1% in FY2025. On the
other hand, share of IMFL sales increased from 1. 7% in FY2022 to 42 9% in FY2025, while
that of other distillery outputs, which are mamly IMIL, ENA, Ethanol and DDGS has also
reduced from 45.9% in FY2022 to 29% in FY2025. This data emphasizes that the Com-
pany, which had already started moving from sugar to the distillery business, has in the
last four years become a predominantly an IMFL manufacturing company with growing
share of premium branded IMFL products. This transition is at the heart of the
Company's strategic shift and its vision for the future.

CHART-B

301 266 249
(S2.3%] (41 8%) (28.1%)
| 272 380
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j 4 _.-13-3 9%l N Sl J [42.9%)
10 d

(17X} J !

264 293 281 257

[45.9%) [46.1%) 33.9%) (29.0%)
l suGAR IMFL B Other Distillery [comprises of Ethanol, ENA, IMIL. B2B Malt, =te.)
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There were two facets to the Company s growth pathin FY2025 ;

First, in a sense FYZ2025 marked the culmination of phase of development for Piccadily
Agro. A periocd when the Company learmnt from its successes and failure, developed and
tested new products, gained insights by developing and promoting new brands, and
evolved global sales networks to support the business. Essentially the Company’s single
malt brand — ITndri’ — which was launched in 2022 has succeeded in gaining strong
recognition both in domestic markets and globally. With strong sales offtake, Indn fur-
ther established its market leadership in FY2025 and maintained its buoyant growth
trajectory. It has further widened its brand presence across markets in India and
abroad. Driven by the alco-bev portfolio, the Company has now established a steady
growth momentum from its existing businesses.

Second, to support the next phase of growth, the Company formulated and launched a
series of key investments. Having adopted a business growth strategy that essentially
focuses on establishing market dominance by offering products with unique charac-
teristics, the Company needs to build on its intermal capacities for the next round of
growth

This is imperative to maintain its existing market positioning and offer a wider portfolio
of products through its growing global sales network. Such a build-up of scale creates
better incentives for sales partners and also improves efficiencies in the sales and
distribution channels, significantly enhancing the long-term sustainability of the
Company'’s value creation proposition. Consequently, in FY2025, the Company
launched its structured expansion path, which would require investments of an
estimated Rs.1,000 crore in 3 years for capacity and business expansion. We have
invested nearly Rs.450 Crin FY2025, another about Rs.250 Cr 15 in the pipeline while an
amount of up to Rs.300 Cr. is planned to be invested for acquisitions and mergers. With
the above, we are well on our way to Increase our capacity by four fold, in line with the
same we plan to grow our business by four times from our current base over the next 3-5
years. The funding of the same has happened through mix of fully convertible warrants
and compulsory convertible debentures of Rs.262 Cr and Rs.161 25 Cr through Term
Loans. In addition, the promoters have also infused an additional Rs 50 Cr. The balance is
expected to be funded through internal accruals. This expansion 1s being undertaken in
a calibrated manner with focus on enhancing product availability, quality and
positioning. Essentially, the focus is on creating a product portfolio that has a strong
Indian influence on its flavour, which are well suited for a global customer base.

Clearly, in the last few years, the Company has established itself as a key Indian player in
the alcoholic beverages industry, particularly renowned for its innovation and expertise
in malt spirits. Today, it has a robust portfolio of products that includes premium single
malt whisky, blended malt whisky brands, premium cane juice rum (afirst inIndia) and a
premium Vodka. Across the portfolio of products with effective control over the
complete product development and manufacturnng process, the Company has
developed capabilities for developing high quality offerings that are in the premium and
Ihuxury market segment fully supported by effective and focussed marketing, brand
building activities and sales and distribution.
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MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

For the global economy, after a prolonged and challenging pericd of unprecedented
shocks, there were signs of stabilization emerging through Calendar Year (CY) 2024.
Inflation was down from multidecade highs. Labour markets were normalizing with
unemployment and vacancy rates returning to pre-pandemic levels. Growth hovered
around 3% in the past few years, and global output came close to potential. However,
since February 2025, the United States (US) has announced multiple waves of tariffs
against trading partners, some of which have invoked countermeasures. The environ-
ment has got vitiated further since the US near-universal application of tariffs on Apnil 2.
While hectic negotiations are underway, ratcheting up a trade war and heightened
trade policy uncertainty will further hinder both short-term and long-term global
economic growth prospects. Basically, scaling back international cooperation could
jeopardize progress towards a more resilient global economy.

CHART-C

Global Economic Outiook

WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK APRIL 2025
GROWTH PROJECTIONS BY REGION

(REAL GDP GROWTH. PERCENT CHAMGE)

UNITED STATES LATTH AMERFCA AWD EURD AREA S SANLAGAS MIDDLE EAST AND EMERCING AT
THE CANIBREAW AFRICA CENTRAL ASTh DEVELOPYNG ALTA
L=t 2004 . 24 2004 - 09 b s R e | A4 - Za et R |
2085 . 1B 2005 0 20 2005 . 08 S L 38 202s @ % AR5 A5
2006 : 17 2006 - 24 06 - 12 AP - 42 200 - 35 e R E

Source: IME World Economic Outlook, April 2025
Mote: Order of bars for each group indicates
(left to night 2024 2025 projections, and 2026 projections
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The uncertainty in global trade is fundamentally affecting economic conditions across
the world. As Chart C shows, world economic growth is expected to reduce from 3.3% in
CY2024 to 2. 8% n CY2025. There are varying prospects across global regions depending
on the nherent structure of their economies. USA, the country with the largest
economy is expected to witness a reduction in growth from 2.8% in CY2024 to 1. 8% in
CY2025. Europe continues to be in a mode of economic slump — growth rates expected
to lower further from 09% in CY2024 to 08% in CY2025. Economic activities are
expected to be strong in both the Middle East and Central Asia with growth rates
increasing from 2.47% to 3%, and Emerging and Developing Asia is also witnessing much
stronger economic activity relatively speaking — although its growth is expected to
reduce from 5.2% in CY2024 to 4.5% in CY2025. For Piccadily Agro, these different global
market developments may have some bearing on the export potential of its products,
but more importantly its business will depend on the implications of the changing
import related trade policies that different countries adopt in this global economic
environment — a factor that can becorme more uncertain by the end of Fy2025.

THE INDIAN ECONOMY

In thus global environment, India also witnessed a slight slowdown in economic growth.
Advanced estimates (January 2025) suggest Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth
reduced from 82% in FY2024 to 64% in FY2025 while Real Gross Value Add (GVA)
growth reduced from 7.2% in FY2024 to 64% in FY2025. It is important to note that since
FY2013, except for the COVID affected years, India has been steadily growing at an
annual GDP growthrate above 5%.This trend continues and is captured in chart D.

CHART-D
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Mote: Real GDP growth in basic prices. Y2025 are advance estimates
Source: Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MOSPI), Government of India
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The lower economic growth in FY2025 compared to FYZ2024 was due to certain
termporary headwinds like election-led policy caution, irregular rainfall in the first half,
and global trade uncertainties since September 2024. While these have contributed to
reduction in growth levels, certain high-frequency indicators such as GST collections,
auto sales, and FMCG growth are fast bouncing back in the last quarter of FY2025,
pointing to a strong domestic engine driving the national economy:.

CHART-E: Relative Share of GDP
Piccadily Agro is primarily in the consumer
discretionary consumption goods space, and the Indian
economy 1s largely driven by Consumption. In fact, with
7.3% In FY2025 compared to 4% in FY2024, the share of
Private Final Consumption Expenditure (PFCE) in India's
real GDP increased from a dominating 55.8% in FY2024
to 56.3% in FY2025. Chart E gives the data. Consumption
expenditure continues to grow. In fact, Per Capital Real
Financial Expenditure increased by 6.3% from
Rs69528inFY2024toRs 73,899in FY2025.

Source: Ministry of Statistics and Prograrmme Implermentation (MOSPI), Governrnent of India

It is important to note that the country has also been seeing steady rise in per-capita
income. Chart F shows that in the last two years, Per Capita Real GDP has increased from
Rs.1,16,216 in FY2023 to Rs.131,310 in FY2025. Essentially this means that there is more
buying power in the economy and given that India is still largely a consumption driven
economy, such increase in per capita income translates to increased demand for
products like alcoholic beverages.
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Source. Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implermentation (MOSPI. Government of India
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From a demographic perspective, the age profile of the population also highlights a
favourable trend for increasing demand for alcoholic beverages. Basically, as depicted in
Chart G, there is steady growth in working age population. Its share in total population
has steadily increased from 56.6% in CY1981 to 68% in CY2023. A younger aspirational
socially active population augurs well for consumer discretionary products. Within
Alcobev products, the youth is more discerning while at the same time willing to
experiment and cocktails find preference in many a gathering thereby providing a
growing market for innovative Alco-bev products including related accompamiments

like mixers.
CHART-G

% of population aged 15-64 years (CY)

ow 67.5% 677% 68.0%

s66% 58.2% 607% 64.4

1981 1991 2001 2011 2021 2022 2023

Source: Census of India 2011, World Bank, MOSPI; Age wise break up of population not adding up 1o 100% due 1o rounding off issues

Note: Growth in population aged 15-64 years are in CY. CY 2023 for India refers to FY 2024 data and so on
Within the consumption space in India, it is important to note that there is a gradual shift
in population structure in terms of income classes. As Chart H shows that between
FY2020 and FY2023, households with annual income more than US$50,000 per annum
increased at the fastest rate of 14 5% from 4 million to 6 million. The next income level
between US510,000 and USS$50,000 per annum grew by 176% from 91 mullion in FY2020
to 107 million in FY2023. This increase in households at the higher income levels is
translating into a growing preference for premium products in the Indian market and
alcoholic beverages is no exception.

CHART-H
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In fact, as per estimates by advisory firm Technopak, India’s luxxury goods market was
valued at Rs 926 billion as of CY2024. While there were setbacks caused by the COVID-19
crisis, this premium end market has witnessed a steady recovery since 2021. With the
steady growth trajectory since then, it 1s estimated that the market will grow steadily to
Rs.1,015 billion by the end of CY2025. In this premium space, alco-beverages is a major
component with around a quarter share, and the share is expected to grow as it has the
highest growth rate — with a projected Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 16.2
%, the premium alco-beverage market is expected to grow from Rs 205 billionin CY2022
to Rs.321 billion in CY2025. This premium alco-beverage marketplace is Piccadily Agro's
core business focus area.

THE ALCOHOL BEVERAGES MARKET - GLOBAL AND INDIA

According to data captured by the World Health Organization (WHO), the total market
size in CY2023 was estimated at USS 30 billion, with per capita consumption of 5 litres.
Given the size of the population and the relative economic prosperity, China has the
largest market of 4.5 bilhion litres followed by India at 3.2 billion. However, given maturity
levels developed countries have much higher per capita consumption — France at 109
litres, Germany at 10 litres, UK at 9.9 litres and USA at 9.2 litres. In comparison, China has
3.8hitres and India 3.2 litres. India is one of the fastest growing alco-beverage markets in
the world, with distinctive characteristics that make it appealing to the top players of the
industry. One of the biggest attractions is the size of the market and the continual
evolution of the market as economic variables such as rising GDE demographics,
urbanisation and women's involvement in the workforce fuel demand and
premiumization.
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Per Capita Consumption it
Consiiy of Neoholintemsof TGS OIS
China 38 45 26
India 32 32 201
USA 92 25 09
Germany 10 07 01
France 109 06 01
United Kingdom 99 06 01
World 5 30 135

Source: WHO

According to analysis by the research firm Technopak India, the global alcohol beverage
market in CY2023 witnessed a varied distribution between distilled and undistilled
alcohol. Distilled spints, which include beverages like whisky, rum, and vodka,
accounted for around 44% of pure alcohol consumption. Within this, whisky had the
highest share of around 39%, followed by vodka at around 15%. Beer and wine
contributed approximately 33% and 9% to pure alcohol consumption respectively
(Chart I gives the data). In addition to this, with rising globalisation, there is a growing
demand for regional and premium specialities. Consumers are open to experiencing
more of other countries culture, including food and drinks. Spirits from Asia such as
Japanese Sake and South Korean Soju are being consumed worldwide, especially by
younger generations. Another growing category is the Ready to Drink segment majorly
comprising of spirit-based drinks.

CHART-I
Sales break-up of Alco-beverages by volume (CY2023)

m Beer m Sprits = Others sWine
Source: Technopak Analysis

India remains a predominantly distilled alcohol market, with over 82% of recorded pure
alcohol consumption attributed to distilled spirits. This contrasts sharply with
developed nations, where undistilled alcoholic beverages such as beer and wine
collectively hold a larger market share than spirits. Despite the rising acceptance of beer
and wine in India, distilled spirits continue to dominate overall alcohol consumption.
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The Indian alco-beverage market is categornzed into four key segments: popular,
prestige, premiurm, and huxury. As of FY2024, the value segment comprising popular and
prestige categories dominates the market, contributing 91% of total sales, while the
premium and luxury segments account for the remaining 9%. However, the market is
witnessing a gradual shift towards premiumization, driven by factors such as a growing
legal drinking-age population, nsing disposable incomes, and increasing urbanization.
By FY 2029, the share of the premium and luxury segments is expected to rise to 10%,
outpacing the growth of the value segment. This shift towards premiumization reflects
evolving consumer preferences and a growing demand for higher-quality alco-
beverages inIndia. In fact, with greater accessibility of international brands and evolving
consumption trends, premium spirits and wines are expected to be the key growth
drnivers in India’s alco-beverage industry over the next five years. India's premium and
huxury spirits segment has seen impressive growth, rising from Rs 11,316 crore m FY2019
to Rs.26,494 crore in FY2024, and is projected to reach Rs 44 612 crore by FY2029. This
reflects a strong CAGR of 18.5% over the past five years and an expected 11.0% CAGR till
FY2029 (Data: Technopak Analysis).

Globally, premium spirits continue to outperform standard categories globally due to
younger consumers prioritising quality over quantity and seeking more refined drinking
experiences. Consumer interest 1s growing mn craft and small-batch spirits, primarily
driven by perceptions of authenticity, supernior craftsmanship, and unigue taste profiles.
Spirits leveraging unique ingredients, innovative distillation methods, and unusual
ageing processes are increasingly attractive to consumers who seek differentiation and
premium quality. Consumers increasingly prefer spirits that enhance social and special
occasion drinking expenences, prompting greater interest in premium and distinctive
products. International awards and recognition significantly influence consumer
purchase decisions, establishing perceptions of premium guality, trustworthiness in
spirits brands. The hotel, restaurants and catering (HORECA) segment remains a key
channel for premium spirits, contributing over half of global trade revenue. Growth is
driven by rising consumer demand for quality experiences and curated selections in
hospitality settings.

ALCO-BEV REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT IN INDIA

The requlatory environment for alco-bev 1s complex and determined by states. -
including levying excise duty, handling distribution, defining price and other controls.
There have been certain positive state specific policy interventions that are improving
the ease of doing business for the alcohol beverage sector.

Kamataka, for instance, reduced state duties by 10-15% across various alcoholic
beverage segments. This adjustment helped reduce the prnice disparity between beer
and other alcohol categories, improving the value equation for both consumers and
manufacturers. Andhra Pradesh took a major step by opening its retail alcohol market to
private players, thus fostering a more competitive and consumer-friendly environment.

Another example 1s of the state of Uttar Pradesh which has been expenmenting with
types of licences, location of shops, mixed or single product category vends. In FY2025 1t
undertock a lottery system for granting liguor shop licences. As a result of its
experiments and initiatives, its revenue from liquor, over 5 years, has reportedly doubled
toRs 51000 Crore.
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While the macro-economic factors were favourable for Piccadily Agro’s business, there
were some developments in the regulatory enwvironment in India that also had a long-
term bearing on its business. One of the most significant policy shifts in 2024 was the
removal of Grain Neutral Spirit (GNS), or Ethyl Alcohol (ENA), for human consumption,
from the Goods and Services Tax (GST) purview. GNS is a key ingredient in many
alcoholic beverages, and its inclusion in the G5T framework has been a long-standing
issue. Although alcoholic beverages themselves were exempt from GST, states had
varying interpretations of how GNS should be taxed, leading to inconsistencies. The GST
reform has alleviated this financial burden, and it is expected to help close long-standing
legal disputes between manufacturers and state governments, fostering a more
predictable and transparent tax environment.

DISTILLERY AND THE ALCOHOL BEVERAGES BUSINESS

In the distillery and alco-bev space, Piccadily Agro is fast emerging as a Company
recognised for innovation and craftsmanship with a focus on uniquely ‘Made in India’
offerings. The Company s distillery and maturation facilities at Indrn, Haryana located in
North India with temperatures ranging from zero to 50 degree Celsius along with the
terroir lends its unigue imprint on the maturation process offering distinct
characteristics to the company's IMFL products especially the malt based ones.

Owver the years, Piccadily Agro has built expertise on producing high gquality, innovative,
premium products across the alco-bev value chain. The process of development of
internal expertise involved a decade of both successes and failures with products, but
the learming experience and recent successes has resulted in rich capabiliies on
producing final products that standout in a competitive marketplace.

The Company is now focused on leveraging this product side expertise to develop a
diverse portfolio of alco-bev brands that have a premium positioning in their specific
segments. Consequently, not only are more variants expected in the existing brand
range, but more diverse products across spirits are also in the offing in the near to
medium term. With a larger basket of products, the Company intends to position itself as
a leading premium player in India and focused intermational markets. Clearly, the
Company 1s commmitted to defining the future of premium and luxury Indian alco-bev
spirits. The Company has embarked on a development path, which will further
capitalise on both organic and inorganic growth opportunities in the alco-bev space.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT AND MANUFACTURING

At the core of the Company's progress is the competence garmmered over time in
sourcing, product innovation, understanding of consumer markets and manufacturing.
During this journey, the Company has gamned experience in sourcing six row barley,
which 1s unique to Rajasthan. To produce the finest malt spints, Piccadilly only uses this
kind of barley that is cultivated using an indigenous six-row method. which relies on
organic and sustainable prninciples. Sxx-row cultivation brings smaller yields than other
cultivation methods, but it lends a fruity, distinctive taste to the spirits made with it. No
groundwater is extracted, and no chemical
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fertilizers are used during the farming process. Farmers re-use and recycle barley seeds
every year. The byproduct from the spirit manufacturing process (DDGS) is not wasted
but reused for cattle feed.

Subsequently, the entire process of germinating, mashing, fermenting, boiling, distilling
and maturing is carefully undertaken with utmost care on quality in process and
product.

Blending is a delicate art. The master blender begins by nosing sampiles in tulip-shaped
glasses and then carefully selects from a wide palate of ex bourbon first fill, virgin oak, ex
wine and sherry casks. Different malts, both peated and non-peated, are considered in
combination and are then left to proverbially marry in casks. This process 1s undertaken
with significant care and expertise at Piccadily Agro and 1s at the core of the Company's
product development.

MATURATION, EXPERIMENTING AND INNOVATING

There 1s a well-structured maturation, experimenting and innovation process. In this,
the stillman tests and judges the distillates. The newly distilled, colourless and fiery
spirit 1s reduced to maturing strength, 63% alcohol by volume. It 1s then transferred
mto oak casks which may have previously contammed wine, bourbon, or sherry.

The maturation process begins, and the whisky becomes smoother, gains flavour, and
colour from the cask. During this phase, some of the higher alcohols tum into esters
and other complex compounds, which subtly enhance the whisky's unique flavour.

The entire process is supported by procuring hand-selected casks from various
wineries across the world. The imported oak barrels are assembled, cared for,
toasted, charred and repaired by the Company's expert in-house coopers. The
maturing process has a unigque tinge at the manufacturing facility at Indri, which
witnesses temperatures from zero degrees Celsius to as high as 50 degrees Celsius,
thereby speeding up the hguid’s interaction with the woods, distillation and
botthng.

MARKETING AND PRODUCT POSITIONING

From a strategic perspective, the Company 1s positiornung itself effectively in this market
space with a portfolio of products that lay emphasis on innovation and elevation to
create market leadership. This 1s being achieved by developing distribution
relationships that support expanding horizons, and a back-end production
mnfrastructure that can support this accelerated growth. The entire growth dnve i1s based
on astrong foundation of financial stability.

The Company tasted its first major success n its objective of creating leading Indian

brands with the launch of &quot;Indn&quot; in 2022 This flagship Indian single malt
whisky brand caters to discerning consumers who appreciate quality and

AMMLAL REPORT - Frinnd-24 | {42




FA
s
PLOCADILY

= Gt o

craftsmanship in spirits. Having received several global awards, the brand has performed
exceptionally in the market, recording over 100,000 cases in sales within 2 years of its
launch. Indr continued with its strong performance growing volumes by over 40% in
FY2025. In the last 3 years the Company has introduced 7 distinct Indri expressions/
editions like Diwali edition, Founders Edition 11YO, City editions which have been well
received.

For effective consumer positioning, innovative designs are constantly created for
packaging and promotion. Curated events for tasting, participation in contests,
launching and conducting events for bartenders (like Camikara Millionaire Bartenders
Challenge conducted between Jan to April, 2025) have all added to executing the
company's vision of being a significant global player with products made in India.

By driving premiumization and setting new benchmarks in craftsmanship and
mnovation, the Company is at the forefront of India's evolving spirits landscape,
supported by a thorough understanding of market dynamics and a emphasis on fine
craftsmanship, Piccadily Agro caters to a select chientele who value not only quality but
the artistry of innovation. With relentless pursuit of excellence, the Company not only
produces alcoholic beverages for its customers but creates an experience that
transcends the ordinary where timeless tradition meets contemporary mastery. Each of
its offerings, redefines the art of indulgence by refining the very essence of its premium
positioning.

Across the product offering, the Company has positioned its distinctive brands. In the
single malt whisky space, its flagship brand — Indri — has gained global recognition and
evolved into a trailblazer in redefining India's premium spirits landscape with
unparalleled elegance and character. Its prermium cane juice-based rum — Carmikara — is
focusing on re-imagining the product category by blending creativity with excellence.
In the blended malt whisky space, the offering Whistler is barrel aged and a balance of
tradition and modemity. Each brand in the portfolic is in different stages of their
evolution.

Launched m 2022, Indri’ has in a short span of time become one of the fastest-growing
single malt whiskies in the World. Having received over 50 prestigious accolades, Indriis
today globally one of the most awarded Indian single malt whiskies. The accolades
include 'Best Indian Single Malt’ and "Best Whisky In The World’

On the back of a strong performance in FY2024, Indri sales volumes grew by a further
37% n FY2025. Importantly, Indn captured an estimated 55% share of the Indian Single
Malt export market. The Company continued to introduce different products under the
Indri offering. This included Indri Game of Thrones, Indri City Series Edition, Indri Diwali
Collectors Edition 2024, and Indn Founders Reserve 1l-Year-Old. Each of these
products has distinctive gualities and were very well accepted in the market. Even with
premium pricing the market absorbed these offerings at a rapid pace.
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In FY2025, the Indri Experience Centre was launched at the Indri manufacturing facility
in Haryana to offer an immersive introduction to whisky making and tasting, enhancing
consumer engagement and brand wisibility. This includes guided tours and curated
tastings and interactive exhibits. The facility features sustainable architecture inspired by
Morthern Indian havelis and includes a recreational golf green to support its premium
positioning. This has been built with provision for scalability to support future brand
growth

Camikara, derived from the Sanskrit word meaning "liquid gold,” is India’s first Pure Cane
Juice Prernium Aged Rum, redefining the country’s rum legacy. Aged in American oak
barrels, Camikara stands apart with no added colours, flavours, sugar, or spices,
delivering a truly authentic and refined experience. Launched i 2023, the brand 1s
slowly penetrating the market. In FY2025, the brand grew by 310%, however thisis on a
small sales base in FY2024, but it does reflect an initial phase of pick up in sales. During
FY2024, the Camikara rum 8-year-old became the first Indian rum to ever win a Gold
Medal at the Global RUM and CACHACA Masters 2024, and secured USA Spirits ratings -
Silver 2024. The Carmikara rum 3-year-old became the 1st Indian Rum to ever win a silver
medal at the Global RUM & Cachaca Masters 2024 and got a bronze at the London Spints
Compeftition.

To further strengthen the brand positioning in India, the Company during January to
Aprl, 2025 organised Carmuikara Millionaire Bartender Challenge, a national level
cocktall competition created to identify and recognise India's leading bartenders. This
brought together top talent from across the hospitality sector. The initiative aligned with
the strategy of engaging the on-trade channel and enhance product-led brand
presence. The winner's prize money was Rs 10 lakh and each participant was insured for
Rs. 10 lakh, as a mark of respect for those behund the bar and the skl they bring to their
craft.

The brand has also been supplemented with the introduction of the all-new Camikara
MNon-Alcoholic Mixers in two vibrant flavours — Mojito and Mai Tai. Expertly crafted, these
tropical mixers capture the essence of wconic cocktails. Camikara mixers deliver a
premium, bar-quality experience — brninging the spirit of indulgence home.

During FY2025, the Company has participated, domestically and internationally, in
Whisky and Spirits shows and events, and also curated events to promote the brands -
Indr and Camikara. The Whustler brand grew by 54% mn FY2025. The brand 1s being
rejuvenated, and a repositioned brand launch is underway.

With the strong growth in the branded IMFL segment, there was internal consumption
of malt, and accordingly external B2B malt sales was not undertaken in FY2025. It is
pertinent to note that IMFL sales have higher profit margins than E2B malt sales.
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SALESAND DISTRIBUTION

While product quality 1s a criical competitive strength, to succeed in this business it is
essential to have a strong sale and distribution backbone. Given the Company's strategic
focus, it is important to develop this in India and across the world.

In the domestic markets, the Company's presence extended to 28 States and UT
(including CSD) in FY2025 compared to 20 in FY2024. Its presence has extended to over
16,000 plus retail stores including On Trade in India which are growing rapidly, and is a
significant growth over 6,700 stores where Piccadily product were present in FY2024. In
an important development, the Company entered CSD and Paramilitary distribution
outletsin FY2025.

For positioning in international markets, the Company extended its global sales
presence from 22 countries in FY2024 to 28 countries in FY2025 for IMFL products in
terms of presence in Indian Duty-Free shops, it extended from 8 in FY2024 to 16 in
FY2025. Chart J gives the domestic and intermational spread of the Company’s sales
channels
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This sales and distribution network is critical for the Company's future growth. As the
portiolio of products increase, the strength of partner relations will grow as they get an
opportunity to sell more diverse products and with the support of these partners, the
Company will have the core sales force in place to sell a wider portfolio. This will also
translate into lower per unit sales expenditure as the Company growth. This sales and
distribution structure is something the Company will continue to develop in a strategic
manner, asitis a core business capital.

Of the estimated 100,000 retail outlets the company’s products are available in over
16,000 including On Trade (HORECA). The in-house sales team has nearly doubled in
FY2025 vs FY2024 and expected to grow further. Additionally, team and also options in
export markets incl duty free are being buffeted.
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OPERATIONS AND EXPANSION - DISTILLERY

Today, the Company is well positioned to further develop the distillery business with
particular focus on growing the branded IMFL portfolio. Already, thus emphasis has
translated into much higher profitability of the Company s overall business.

At Mahasamund, Chattisgarh, the Company has purchased land and is setting up 210
KLPD distillery. The project progress is on schedule with construction of facilities
underway. The machinery for the factory has been ordered and delivered at site. It is
expected to be commissioned in HZ, FY2025. The company chose Chhattisgarh for its
greenfield expansion considering the investor friendly state requlatory system and the
proxumity to sourcing various raw maternals planned for future growth. As the business
settles down, the Company will upgrade to value added investments.

The Company has also forayed into setting up a malt distillery at Portavadie, Scotland,.
For this, land acquisition, statutory clearances and financial tie-up has been completed
as of May, 2025. The process of evaluation of plant and machinery 1s underway. The
facility 1s expected to be commussioned in FY2027, subject to approvals. The company
chose Portavadie for its international expansion mainly on account of the fact that
Scotland continues to be the hub with respect to Single malt, once the malt distillery is
operational it can provide guality Scottish malt to the Company’s existing and new
products portfolio as also access international markets.

The above expansions, as mentioned earlier, would require investments of an estimated
Rs. 1,000 crore over the next 3 years. The expansions include (i) at Indri, Haryana, plant
and machinery, procuring additional barrels to increase the count from 45,000 in FY24
to over 100,000 by FY27 barrel storage facility (b) at Mahasamund, Chhattisgarh for land
and plant and machinery, (c) at Portavadie, Scotland for plant and machinery.

The benefits of the increased production capacities would start to reflect in the
revenues and profits of the Company post maturation of the products being developed
at the faciliies, which will start at least between 1-3 years from the commencement of
production and filling of barrels for maturation.
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THE INDIAN SUGAR MARKET

India’s sugar industry is an integral component of its agricultural economy. It is essential
for meeting domestic consumption needs, contributing to the Ethanol Blending
Programme (EBP) of the nation, and also stands as one of the significant global exporters
of sugar. India's sugar production for the FY2024-25 season is estimated between 25.8
and 264 million metric tons, revised downward from earlier forecasts of 272 million
tons. The decline is attributed to a combination of weaker sugar recovery in Uttar
Pradesh, lower yields in Maharashtra and Karmataka, and the diversion of approximately
3.5 million tons of sugar for ethanol production. Despite the output decline, India is
projected to close the 2024/25 season with 5.4 million tons in stock, well above the
minimum requirement of 4.5 million tons for two months' consumption. India
permitted the export of 1 milhion tons of sugar in January 2025. As of March 2025,
approximately 300,000 tons had been shipped, with contracts signed for 600,000 tons.
However, rising domestic prices have slowed export momentum. Mills are cautious
about further deals due to narrowing margins and increased domestic demand during
the summer months. Retail sugar prices have remained stable at Rs 43—44/kg, with only
a 5% increase over the past two years—modest compared to other staple commodities.
This has helped insulate consumers despite rising input costs and declining cane
recovery rates. In a highly regulated market, for the sugar production unit, with lower
overalldemand, FY2025 remain a difficult and highly competitive year

THE COMPANY'S SUGAR BUSINESS

The company has a sugar mill with a cane crushing capacity of 5,000 tonnes crushed
per day (TCD) and partners with over 5,000 farmers. Sugar over the years has become a
highly regulated industry with the respective state government having a major role. The
Company continues to operate within the prevailing business structure and regulations
but profitability of the business has been under pressure over the years including in
FY2025.

The company does not expect any significant contribution from the sugar business
given continuing governmental controls. Accordingly, it is evaluating options including
divestment or demerger of the sugar business.

OTHER CORPORATE INITIATIVES

OCn the administrative front, acknowledging that the expansion drive will warrant a
growing and focused managenal workforce, the Company has invested Rs.11 crore in
purchasing a new corporate office at Gurugram, which is at present undergoing
refurbishment and expected to be active fromH2 FY2026.
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In FY2025, Piccadily became the 1st Indian Alco-bev company to adapt NFC
Technology to combat counterfeiting. With this initiative, it has raised the benchmark by
setting new standard in safety, innovation and consumer protection amid rnsing
counterfeit concerns. The initiative adopts smart verification technology where
through QR codes, NFC tech lets customers tap bottles to instantly venfy authenticity
and batch details directly through their smartphone without any requirement of a

specific app.

As the Company enters a new growth phase, there is now a strong emphasis on
developing and implementing processes and automation tools across the business. To
begin with in FYZ2025, the implementation of SAP was completed, which has brought in
essential controls into the business across operations fundamentally from a financial
perspechive.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Table 2 gives the financial highlights of the Company's performance in FY2025

in Rs. Crore FY2025 Fr2024
Total Revenue From Operations 8863 8281
Other Income 6.6 08
Total Income 8928 8289
Materials Consumed 4172 3044
Changes in total Inventories -88.9 -75
Excise Duty on Sales of Goods 681 487
Employee Benefit Expenses 440 326
Power, Fuel etc 201 230
Other Expenses 2318 2051
Total Operating Expenses 7014 6763
EBIDTA before Exceptional Items 1914 1526
Depreciation 194 B2
EBIT before Exceptional lterms 1720 1344
Finance Charges 278 157
PBT before Exceptional ltems 1442 1187
Exceptional ltems Gains 00 294
FET 1442 1481
Tax Expenses 395 360
PAT 104.7 nzi
Total Comprehensive Income (after tax) 1035 121
PAT excluding exception itemns 1047 857
EPS (in As.) excluding exception items 1109 404
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In terms of the profit and loss account, key financial highlights of the Company’s standalone
performance in FY2025 are:

= Totalincome increased by 77% to Rs.892 8 crore in FY2025

= On the costs front, while most other costs increased marginally, power and fuel costs
reduced by 11 8% to Rs 291 crore in FY2025 and its ratio to net sales reduced from 3 7% in

FY2024t0 3.3% in
Fy2025

= EBIDTAIncreased by 25 4% to Rs.191.4 crore in FY2025 and EBIDTA margin increased from
184%in FY2024 to 214%inFY2025

= With the growth objective in place and increased debt levels, finance costs increased by 772%
to Rs.278 crore in FY2025. As a percentage of sales, it has increased from 1. 8% in FY2024 to
3.1% inFY2025. Part of this is on account of CCDs raised in Sept. 2024, which will convert to
equity on Sept. 9, 2025

= Adjusting for exceptional items comprising sale of a property in FY2024, PBT increased by
21 5% to Rs.1442 crorein FY2025, and PAT increased by 22 1% to Rs 104 7 crore in FY2025.

SEGMENT RESULTS: IMPROVED PROFITABILITY

Today, the Company is well positioned to further develop the distillery business with
particular focus on growing the branded IMFL portfolio. Already, this emphasis has
translated into much higher profitability of the Company's overall business. If we
consider the financials of the sugar and distillery segments of the businesses only and
not include any incidental other incomes, Chart K shows, that at the Consolidated
Company level, profitability margins in terms of ratio of Profit Before Interest and Tax
(PBIT) to sales increased from 16.3% in FY2024 to 197% in FY2025. This growth has been
singularly driven by the distillery segment — margins expanding from 23.7% in FY2024 to
28% in FY2025, refer chart K. On the hand, the sugar segment remained affected by
external factors related mainly to government controls on the market — a low profit
margin of 1.4% margins in FY2024 moved to losses withmargins of (-)1.3% m FY2025.

CHART-K
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Balance Sheet

Table 3: Abridged Balance Sheet of the Company (Standalone basis)

in Rs. Crore Fy20es  Fyaoze  lotal Current Asset 5510 4002
Total Assets 11461 7190
Property, Plant & Equipment 2819 278 e =
“quity Attri to Owners of the
Capital Work in Progress 1822 21 Erpaty Altrins s
| Parent Compary 6829 2409
Other Tangible Assets 0o 0o -

T Borrowing 1420 594
Biclogical Assets a0 0 - & =
Financial Assets 817 779 T = 1-9
Other Non Current Assets 493 169 m;”‘; i L t"l‘lﬂ;‘ : 1;4
L 1 = Totalr m{-:l_lrr nit Liabiliti ) 1562 935
Inventories 3032 1960 P &

; . Borrowing 166.1 124
Financial Assets 2041 1718 .
e Trade Payables 530 1a1
Other Current Assets 437 323
Other Financial Liabilities 175 51
Current tax liabilities (Net) 181 M5
Other Current Liabilities 405 504
Provisions 18 02
Total Current Liabilities 2969 A6
Total Equity and Liabilities 1146.1 7390

As mentioned earlier, the Company has embarked on a capacity and business
expansion, which warrants investments to the tune of Rs.1,000 crore over 3 years. As
part of the same, in FY2025, the Company raised Rs.262 crore through preferential
allotment in September 2024 and an additional Rs.50 crore infusion from promoters.
The Preferential Issue/ Allotment was structured for up to 672,041 Fully Convertible
Warrants (FCW) and 28.49448 Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD) both at an
Issue Price of Rs. 744/- each to certain investors, who are part of the MNon-
Promoter/Public Shareholder Category. The non promoter FCW investors converted
their warrants to equity shares in June, 2025 The balance funding is expected to be
generated from internal accruals and or need based incremental debt.

From the assets perspective: the value of property, plant and equipment has increased
by 254% to Rs.281.9 crore in FY2025, while capital work in progress increased almost
seven times to Rs 182 2 crore in FY2025. These are part of the expansion drive launched
inFY2025

This asset growth has been funded by a mix of equity, quasi debt and debt. To begin with
the preferential offer and CCD has resulted in a 100% growth in net worth. Equity
attributable to owners of the parent company has doubled to Rs.682 9 crore as on 31st
March 2025. The scale of expansion has also warranted growth in long term debt, which
has increased by 239% from Rs 594 crore as on 31 March 2024 to Rs. 142 crore as on 31
March FY2025.
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With the growth plan execution firmly on schedule, the overall size of the company's
balance sheet has increased by 55.1% from Rs.739 crore in FY2024 to Rs.1146.1 crore in
FY2025. While the operating business focuses on improving margins and growing a
more value-added portfolio of products, the Company is putting in place capacities to
scale up and returns from this capacity expansion will start corming on stream in the
near future and is core to the future value generating proposition of the Company

Piccadily Agro had acquired Portvardie Distillers and Blenders in Scotland. Essentially,
this entity adds to the consolidated financials of the Company. After a period of putting
together all regulatory requirements, the Company has now commenced setting up its
facility in Scotland. With land acquisition completed, the factory construction has
commenced, and equipment 1s under process of sourcing. These developments are
reflected in the balance sheet, while the revenue side of this business will get reflected
once the plant gets operational and business commences which is expected in FY2027
Consequently, on a consolidated basis: Capital Work in Progress increased 4.8 times
from Rs.41.9 crore in FY2024 to Rs.200.9 crore in FY2025. This value is 10.3% more than
the Rs.182 2 crore capital work in progress noted in the standalone balance sheet

So far, the Scotland asset financing has been done through the parent company,
consequently, there is no other material difference between stand-alone and
Consolidated financials of the Company. As the Scotland facility develops, these
differences will start getting reflected in the financial results, as the independent
financials of the Scottish entity builds up.

Details of significant changes as required under SEBI(LODR) Regulations 2015 are as under:

%

Sr.no. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 |Increase/| Pananion For
Decrease nge
i Debtors Tumover Ratio 648 8.04 24.07 -

Due to increase in average
ii Inventory Tumover Ratio, 194 258 3299 inventory in current year in
| 1 comparison to previous year

il Interest Coverage Ratio | 1572 917 | 14518
_ | | Due to increase in the current
W Current Ratio 198 140 4127 Assets b decrease in current
__ tiability
v Debt Equity Ratio 045 050 | -1046 A
- t
vi Operating Profit Ratio (%) | 19.30 16.09 11626
vii Net Profit Ratio (%) | 1181 1354 | 1279
viil Change in Net Worth Ratio 1%) 100.32 4780 10898
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OUTLOOK

The Company is clearly in a transition phase, well poised to embark on its next passage
of growth. The focus 1s on aggressively growing the Alco-bev space, with emphasis on
value creation. The sugar business i1s under evaluation for a demerger or divestment. As
the company continues to grow its distillery business and within that IMFL, the profits
are expected to grow further. The profit margins shall depend on the proportion of IMFL.
sales, the margins on which are higher compared to other distillery products.

RISKS & CONCERNS

Key risks are demand & regulatory control. Demand is dependent on economic
environment as also competition. Given alcohol is a highly regulated industry, any
adverse changes can impact performance of the company. Further, recent
developments on tanffs may effect the performance.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Piccadily Agro has proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all
assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition,
and those transactions are authonsed, recorded and reported correctly. Internal
controls are supplemented by an extensive programme of mternal audits, review by
management and the Audit Committee, and documented policies, guidelines, and
procedures. The mnternal control system is designed to ensure that financial and other
records are relable for preparing financial mformation and other data, and for
maintaining accountability of assets. SAP has been implemented and utilisation of its
various modules in varying degree of usage as of end of FY2025. The Company shall
continue to strengthen and improve its controls and processes in line with its growth
objectives.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be forward looking
staternents’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might
differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. Important
developments that could affect the Company's operations include a downtrend in the
Indian online sector, advertising spends, new disruptive technologies or business
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NOTICE

NOTICE 1s hereby given that 315t Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Piccadily Agro
Industries Limited (the" Company"/ "PAIL") will be held on Tuesday, the 30th day of September,
2025 at 4:30 PM. through Video Conferencing("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to

transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Toconsider and adopt:

(a) The audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the {inancial year ended 31 st
March, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(b) The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the linancial year ended 315t
March, 2025 and the report of Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (Din 07947021 8) who retires by
rotation and being ehgible, offers himself for reappomiment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Re-appomtment of Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra (DIN: 00129891} as Managing Director of the
Company.

To consider and, 1f thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and
all other apphcable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the ime being in force) Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra (DIN: 00129891) be and
15 hereby reappointed as Managing Director of the Company, for a period of one (1) year with effect
from August 2, 2025 as per terms & conditions set out in explanatory statement annexed to the notice
convening this meeting with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms & conditions
mcluding merease/ decrease in the salary of the said appointment in such a manner as may be agreed
between the Board of Directors and Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (DIN: 07947018) as Whole time Director
of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and
all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the ime being m force) Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (DIN: 07947018) be
and 15 hereby reappointed as Whole -time Director of the Company, for a period of one (1) year with
effect from June 29, 2025 as per terms & conditions set out in explanatory statement annexed to the
notice convening this meeting with liberty to the Board ol Directors to alter and vary the terms &
conditions including increase/ decrease in the salary of and vary the terms & conditions of the said
appointment in such a manner as may be agreed between the Board of Directors and Mr. Dharmendra
Kumar Batra.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and 15 hereby authorized to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to mive effect to this resolution.”

5. Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor.
To consider and 1f thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148(3) and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time bemng in force), M/s
Sanjeev K Bansal & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103128)at 54 P, Sector 12,
Panchkula Haryana-134115 appointed by the Board of Directors to conduct the audit of cost records
of the company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025 be paid remuneration of Rs. 36,000/-
p-a. (Rupees Thirty Six thousand only) plus GST and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
incurred in connection with the aforesaad Audat.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all
such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to gmive effect to thas resolution.."

6. Appointment of Secretarial Auditors
To consider and il thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and all other applicable provisions,
il any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 24 A of the Secunties Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafier referred
to as 'Listing Regulations'), as amended from time to ime, M/s. I'Chadha & Associates (Peer Review
Certificate No.1671/2022), Practicing Company Secretaries, be and are hereby appointed as the
Secretanal Auditor of the Company
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for a term of five consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025- 26 to financial

year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director and Company Secretary of the Company,
be and are hereby severally authorized to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be considered necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.™

By the order of the Board of Director

Sd/-
Niraj Kumar Sehgal

Date: 12.08.2025 Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram M._No. ACS. 8019

Notes
1. Pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021,
02/2022, 10/2022,09/ 2023 and 09/2024 dated April 08,2020, April13,2020, May(05, 2020,
January 13,2021, December 08,2021, December 14, 2021, May 05, 2022 and December 28,
2022, September 25, 2023 and September 19, 2024 respectively 1ssued by the Mimistry of
Corporate AfTairs ("'MCA" (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars”) and Circular Nos.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79, SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11,and
2022/0063 and SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 and SEBI/HOD-
DHS/P/CIR/SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-POD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated May 12,2020, January
152021 May13.2022 and January 5, 2023,0ctober 7.2023 and October3.2024 respectively
1ssued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as 'SEBI
Circulars"), holding of the Annual General Meeting (' AGM') through VC/OAVM, without the
physical presence of the Members, 15 permitied. In comphance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended ('the Listing Regulations'), MCA Circulars and SEBI
Circulars, the AGM of the Company 1s being held through VC/OAVM which does not require

physical presence of members at a common venue.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEB I Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with
the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that
the Notice calling AGM along with the explanatory statement and Annual Report 2024-25 are
available on the website of the Company at www.piccadily.com and on the website of the Stock
Exchanges 1.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited at www.nseindia.com and on the website of National Securnities Depository Limited
(NSDL) at www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authonzed agency for providing voting through
electronic means and AGM through VC/ OAVM). Company's web-link on the above will also
be provided in advertisement being published in Business Standard (English edition) and
Business Standard (Hindi edition).
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I.  Astatement giving relevant details of the directors seeking appointment/ reappointment under
Item No. 3, 4, 5 & 6 of the accompanying notice, as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Dsclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 1s annexed herewith as
Annexure-1.

2. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be registered office of the company 1.e. Village
Bhadson, Umri Indri-Road, Tehsil Indn, Distt. Karnal, Haryana-132109.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Actl, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM 1s
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. In terms of MCA Circulars, since physical attendance of Members
has been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members under Section 105 of the Companies Act
2013, will not be available for the AGM and, hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are
not annexed to this Notice. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Prince Chadha,
Company Secretary (ACS No. 32856, CP No. 12409) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the

voling and remote e-voting process i a [air and transparent manner.

4.  Corporate/Institutional members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRL, etc) are required to
send scanned copy of its Board or governing body resolution/authorization ete., authorizing
1ts representative to attend AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote
e-voting. The said Resolution/Authonzation be sent to the Scrutimzer by email through its
regisiered emanl address to prince.chadha88(@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting(@nsdl.co.in

5.  Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the AcL.

6.  Members can login and join the AGM 45 minutes prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM
and the window for joining shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled
time to start the AGM. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
made available for 1000 members, on first-come-first-served basis. However, the
participation of large members (members holding 2% or more shareholding). promoters,
mstitutional mvestors, directors, key managenal personnel, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee
and Auditors can attend the AGM without restriction of first-come-first served basis.
Instructions and other information for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM
are given in this Notice.

7. Incase ofjoint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
ofnames will be entitled to vote.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Admimistration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44
of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
and the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company 1s providing facility of remote e-
voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 31st AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authonzed agency.
The facihity of casting votes by a member using remote e-volting system as well as venue

voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.
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9. Members who would hike to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address
mentioning their name, DP 1D and Chent ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number & number of
shares at investorf@masserv.com/iri@piccadily.com before 20th September, 2025 (5:00 p.m.
IST). Subject line for such registration should be 'Speaker Registration of Piccadily Agro
Industnies Limited'. Those Members who register themselves as speaker will only be allowed
to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves theright to
restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of ime for the AGM.

10. The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Wednesday, September 24, 2025 to Tuesday, September 30, 2025 (Both days inclusive).

11.  No request for physical transfer of shares shall be processed in terms of the SEBI LODR
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (4th amendment) Regulations, 2018
notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification dated 30/11/2018 except the case which
were rejected earlier.

Further, the following requests received by the Company m physical form will be processed
and the shares will be issued in dematerialization form only: -

1. ssueofduplicate share certificate

1.  Claim of shares from unclaimed suspense account
. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate

iv. Endorsement

v.  Sub-division/splitting of securities certificate

vi. Consohdation of secunities certificates/folios

vil. Transmission

viil. Transposition

For this purpose, the secunties holder/claimant shall submait a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which
15 hosted on the website of MAS Services Lid, Registrar and share transfer agent (RTA) The
aforementioned form shall be furnished in hard copy form.

To eliminate all nisks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management,
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings
to dematenialized form. Members can confact the Company Secretary or Mas Services
Limited, Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents ("RTA") (Tel. No. 011-
26387281/82/83) for assistance in this regard.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings
at theearliest.

12. The Secunties and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI") vide its circular dated November 03,
2021 read with circular dated December 14, 2021, 16/03/2023 and November 17, 2023 has
made 1t mandatory for the shareholders holding secunties in physical form to furmish PAN,
KYC (complete address with pin-code, bank detail with MICR-CODE & IFS CODE, Email-
ID, Mobile Number) and Nomination details to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
("RTA") of the Company. RTA will not process, any service requests or complaints received
from the member until unless above KYC and nomination is completed by shareholder.
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As per above SEBI circular that the security holders (holding securities in physical form),
whose folio(s) do not have PAN or Choice of Nomination or Contact Details or Mobile
Number or Bank Account Details or Specimen Signature updated, shall be eligible for any
payment including dividend, interest or redemption in respect of such folios, only through
electronic mode with effect from April 01, 2025.

1.  PAN; (using ISR-1)

ii. Nominationin Form No.SH-13 or submitdeclaration to 'Opt-out' in Form [SR-3;

iii. Contact details including Postal address with PIN code, Mobile Number, E-mail address;
iv. Bank Account details including Bank name and branch, Bank account number, IFS code:
v. Specimensignature. (using ISR-2)

vi. Any cancellation or change in nomination shall beprovided in Form No.SH-14.

vii. All of above required documents/details to be sent at the address of office of the RTA. All
forms ISRI1. ISR2, ISR3, ISR4, SHI3 and SHI14 are available at the RTA website
i.e.www.masserv.com, shareholders can download the forms mentioned in SEBI circular
from the website of the Company or RTA.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address. e-
mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, etc., to their DPs if the shares are held by them in electronic
form and to the Company/ RTA if the shares are held by them in physical form.

In case a person has become a member of the Company after dispatch of the AGM Notice, but
on or before the cut-off date for e-voting i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 such person may
generate User ID and Password as explained in e-voting instructions.

With a view to helping us serve the members better, members who hold shares in identical
names and in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the
Company to consolidate theirholdings in one folio.

In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the
shareholders of the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by
him/them shall vest in the event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this
facility may submit the requisite nomination form.

SEBI has made it mandatory for all Companies to use the bank account details furnished by the
Depositories and the bank account details maintained by the RTA for payment of dividend to
Members electronically. The Company has extended the facility of electronic credit of
dividend directly to the respective bank accounts of the Member(s) through Electronic
Clearing Service (ECS)/National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS)/ Real Time Gross
Settlement (RTGS)/ Direct Credit/NEFT etc. In the absence of ECS facilities, the Company
will print the bank account details if available, on the payment instrument for distribution of
dividend.

This will facilitate the remittance of the dividend amount as directed by SEBI in the bank
account electronically. Updation of e-mail IDs and Mobile No(s) will enable the Company in
sending communication relating to credit of dividend, un-encashed dividend, etc.

The Company or RTA cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding
shares in demat form for any change of bank particulars. Such changes are to be intimated only
to the DPs of the Members.
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18. The statutory register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Section
170 of the Companies Act, 2013, and all documents referred to in the Notice of AGM and
accompanying explanatory statements will be available for inspection by members in
electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by sending an email to ir@piccadily.com

19.  Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows:

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, read with rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called 'the Rules' for
the purpose of this section of the Notice) and regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to exercise votes on the items of business
given in the Notice of 3 1st Annual General Meeting (AGM) through electronic voting system,
to members holding shares as on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 (end of day), being the cut-
off date fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the remote e-
voting process, through the e-voting platform provided by NSDL or to vote at the e-AGM.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E- VOTING AND JOINING
GENERALMEETINGAREAS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on 27th September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on
29th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL
for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members /
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 23rd September 2025, may cast their
vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23rd September,
2025.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting systemconsists of "Two Steps" which are
mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in

demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Sharcholders
holdingsceurities in demat
mode with NSDL.

1. Il you arc alrcady registered for NSDL IDeAS Tacility, pleasc visil |
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by yping |
the following URL: https:/feservicesnsdl.eom/ cither on a|
Personal Computer or ona mobile. Onee the home page of ¢ |
Services 15 launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner™ icon undl.:r.
“Login™ which is available under “1DeAS™ scotion. A new screen |
will open. You will have to enter your User 1D and Password. Afier
successlul authentication, you will be able 1o see e-Voling services.
Click on “Access to o-Voling™ under ¢ -Voling services and you will
be able to sce c-Voting page. Click on options available against |
company name or c-Voling service provider - NSDL and you will
be re-directed o NSDL e-Voling websile lor casting your voic
durng the remole c-Voling period or joining virtual mecting & |
voling during the meeling.

2. If the user is not registered for [DeAS e-Services, option to repister is |
availableat https:/feservices.nadl.com. Select "Register Online for 1DeAS”
Portal or click at https:/eservices nsdl.com/SccureWeb/ldeasDircctReg _jsp

3. Visil the e-Voling websile of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: hips:wwwevoling nsdl com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a2 mobile. Onee the home page of o |
Voling syslem is launched, elick on the icon “Login™ which is
available under “Sharcholder™Member” scetion. A new screen will
open. You will have o cnter your User 1Y (ic. your sixicen
digitdemat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verilicaion Code as shown on the screen. Afler successful
authentication, you will be redirected o NSDL Depository site |
wherein you can see ¢-Voling page. Chick on options available |

againsl company name or ¢-Voling scrvice provider

- NSDL and you will be redirceted to e-Voling websile o NSDL for
casting your vole during the remole c-Voung penod or joiming
virlual meeting & voling during the meeting.

Individual Sharcholders
holding sccurities m demat
mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through |
their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting I
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi
/Easiest  arc  htipsy/web cdslindia com/myeasi‘home!  login - or |
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Mycasi.

2. Afier snccessful login of Easi/Easicst the user will be also able to see the E
Voting Menw. The Menu will have links of ¢-Voting service provider i.c. |
NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. Ifthe user is not registered for EasifEasiesty, option to register is available at |
https:fweb_cdslindia com/ myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the vser can dircctly access e-Voting pape by providing
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.edslindia com
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. Afer

successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective |
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ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders You can also login wsing the login credentials of your dematl
(holding securities in demat account through your Depository Participant registered with
mode) login through their NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility, Once login, you will be able to
depository participants see e-Voling option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be

redirecied to NSDL/CDSL Depository site afier successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voling feature. Click un!
options available against company name or e-Voling service
provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting websiie of
NSDL for casting yvour vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joining virtual meeting & voling during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User TDY Password are advised to use Forget User
ID and Forget Password opiion available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Sharcholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical isswes
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Sharcholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holdingsecurities in demat | sending arequest at evoting(@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
mode with NSDL 2499 7000

Individual Sharcholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by

holdingsecurities in demat | sendinga request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
mode with CDSL 180022 55 33

B) Login Method for sharcholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

Visil the e-Voting website ol NSDL. Open web browser by typing the lollowing URL:
hitps:/'www.evoting nsdl.com/either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voling system is launched, click on the icon “Login™ which is available under
‘Shareholder/ Member® section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in al
hiips:eservices.nsdl com/ withyour exisiing IDEAS login. Once you log=in 0 NSDL eservices afler
using your log-in eredentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 Le. Cast your vole
electronically.

Your User [D details are given below :
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Manner of holding shares i.e.
Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in
demataccount with NSDL.

& Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digit Client 1D
For cxample if your DP 1D is IN30OO*** and Client 1D is
12****** thenyour uscr [D 15 INSOQ*F*] 2% #+5%+

b} For Members who hold shares in
demataceount with CDSL.

16 Digil Beneficiary ID
For cxample, if your Beneficiary 1D 15 | 2#F#FFsssssees
ﬂ'ILTJ Wl—u— user ID is 121‘-****1‘-********

¢) For Mcmbers holding shares in
Physical Form

EVEN Numbcr followed by Folio Mumber registercd with the
CompTy

For example if folio number is 001%** and EVEN 1z 101456
thenuser 1D 15 101456001 *+*

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) [If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login

and cast your vote.
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the “initial
password” which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you

need to enter the ‘initial password” and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your *initial password’?
(i) If your email 1D is repistered in your demat account or with the company, your *inifial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from

NSDL from your mailbox. Openthe email and open the attachment i.e. a pdf file. Open

the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL
account, last & digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in
physical form. The pdf file contains your ‘“User ID” and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registere

for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your

password:

lease follow steps mentioned below in process

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www . evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option

available on www. evoting.nsdl.com.

c) [If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at

evoting@nsdl. co.inmentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on

the e-Votingsystem of NSDL. )
7. bhﬂﬂer entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions™ by selecting on the check
X.

&  Mow, you will have to click on “Login™ button.
After you click on the “Login™ button, Home page of e-Voting will open

2: Cast r vabs electronically and join General on NSDL e-Votin

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting 18 in active

status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vole during the remoie e-
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Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting™.

ol

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Casl your vole by selecting appropriate options 1.e. assent or dissent, venfy/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and chick on “Submit™ and also
“Confirm™ when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully™ will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the pnint option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Inmstitutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are reguired to send
scanned copy (PDF/IPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authonty letter ete. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authonized signatory(ies) who are authonzed to
vote, to the Scrutimzer by e-mail to prince.chadha88(@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoling{@nsdl.coan.

2. It 15 strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoting nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send
a request al evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those sharcholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:

1.In case shares are held in physical form, please refer note no. 11 of the notes of the notice.
2.In case shares are held in demat mode, please refer to e-voting mstructions.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting(@nsdl.coan for
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed
to volte throurh their demat account mamtammed with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Sharcholders are required to update their mobile number and email 1D
correctly in their demat account in order Lo access e-Volung [acility.
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE
AGM ARE AS UNDER: -

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM 1s same as the mstructions mentioned
above for remote e-voling.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present n the AGM through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be elimble to vote through e-
Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grnievances connected with the
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for
Remote e-voling.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned
above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of
“VC/OAVM hnk™ placed under “Join General meeting”™ menu against company name.
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu.
The link for VC/OAVM will be availablen Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User 1D
and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the
same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned m the notice to avoid last
minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for betier expernience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Intermet with a good speed to
avold any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fa
or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glhitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email

id, mobile number at ir@piccadilyv.com . The same will be replied by the company
suitably.
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General Instructions:

i A person, whose name 1s recorded in the register of members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintamned by the depositones as on the cut-off date only shall be
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM.

i Mr. Prince Chadha (M. No. 32856, C.P. No. 12409) of M/s P. Chadha & Associales,
Company Secretanies, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the
members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voling process in a fair
and transparent manner.

ii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which
voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those members
who are present VC / OAVM at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the
remole e-voting facility.

iv. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the voles
cast at the meeting and thereafler unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make,
not later than two days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report
of the total votes cast in favor or againsi, if any, (o the Whole Time Director or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

v. The Resulls declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the
website  of the Company www.piccadily.com and on the website of NSDL immediately

after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing
and communicated to the stock exchanges.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Statement sets out all matenial facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in
the accompanying Notice:

ITEM No.3

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 12™ June 2025 has subject to the
approval ol members, re-appoinied Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra (Din No.00129891) as
Managing Director, for a period of one (1) year w.e.l. 2nd August 2025 tll 1™ August 2026 at a
remuneration recommended by the Nomimnation & Remuneration Committee of the Board and
approved by the Board of Directors is, within the limit specified in Section 197 of Companies
Act 2013 & Schedule V, Part 11, Section 1I{A) of the Companies Act, 2013.

He is a gualified Chartered Accountant and is having more than 40 years experience in
Finance, Accounts, Project implementation, admmistration etc. He has been associated with the
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Company from the inception viz. designing, construction, expansion and successful running of
all units of the company.

He has been managing aflairs of the Company from the last Thirty years with strong
dedication and devotion for the overall growth of the Company to a very sound state.

Terms of remuneration of Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra (DIN No. 00129891) are as follows:

Period: 2nd August 2025 to 1st August 2026.

Nature of Duties: The Managing Director carry on the business of the company and carry on
such duties as may be entrusted to him by the Board of Directors of the company from time to
time and separately communicated to him and such powers as may be assigned to him, subject
to superintendence, control & directions of the board m connection with and 1n the best mterests
of the business of the company.

The salary is within the limits of Section 197 of Companies Act 2013 & Schedule V, Part 11,
Section [I(A) of the Companies Act, 2013.

1) A. Monthly Remuneration

i) Basic Salary: 2. 5,95,125.00 (Five Lakhs Ninety-Five Thousand One Hundred Twenty -
Five Only).

ii) House rent allowance (HRA): 2.2.97.563.00 (Two Lakhs Ninety-Seven Thousand Five
Hundred Sixty-Three Only).

i) Conveyance Allowance: 2.59513.00(Fifty-Nine Thousand Five Hundred Thirteen
Only).

iv) Bonus: . 49.574.00 (Forty-Nine Thousand Five Hundred Seventy Four Only).

v) Special Allowance : 2.1,88.475.00(One Lakhs Eighty-Eight Thousand Four Hundred
Seventy-Five Only).

B) Benefits, perquisites and allowances as will be determined by the Board from time to time or
as per rules of the company. Reimbursement of expenses mcurred on travelling, telephone
expenses shall not be considered as perquisite.

C) Use of chauffer driven car for official use.

D) Any other benefit as per rules of the company.

B). Minimum remuneration

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained where in any financial year during
the currency of the tenure of Managing Director, the company has no profits or its profits are
madequate, the company will pay remuneration by way of salary, benefits and perquisites,
performance incenltive as approved by the Board of Directors as per provisions of Companies
Act 2013 & rules framed there under.

2) The appomtment may be terminated by either party by giving to other party two month
notice for such termination or the company paying two months remuneration in lieu thereof.
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MNone of the Directors, Key Managernial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, n the resolution except Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra, Managing
Director.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice for approval
by the shareholders.

ITEM No.4

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Commuttee, the Board of Directors
in its meeting held on 12" June, 2025 has appointed Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (DIN:
07947018) as a Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of one year with effect from
June 29, 2025 up to June 28, 2026, subject to the approval of the members in the Annual
(reneral Meeting,

Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra 1s Master of Business Administration-MBA (Power) from UPES
Dehradun, BSC from university of Delhi, Post Graduate Diploma in computer programming
from Privadarshini Institute of Computer Aided knowledge New Delhi, Diploma in Mini
Computers from UPTRON ACL, New Delhi, Certificate in Sybase Programming from NIIT,
New Delhi and Certificate in Power builder from NIIT, New Delhi.

He is having more than 33 years experience in IT Management System analysis, Designing and
development of quality application software and their implementation on various platforms. He
15 also experienced in manufacturing, finance, utilities and entrepreneunial assignments.

He has been associated with Baja) Hindustan Sugars Limited as IT head (hardware as well as
software).

The salary 1s within the limits of Section 197 of Companies Act 2013 & Schedule V, Part 11,
Section 1I{A) of the Companies Act, 2013.

1) A. Remuneration:

1) Basic Salary: 1. 2,78,750 (Two Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty
Only).

11) House rent Allowance (HRA) : £.1,11,500 (One Lakh Eleven Thousand Five Hundred
Only).

iii) Conveyance Allowance: %.27,875(Twenty Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy
Five Only).

iv) Bonus: . 23,220 (Twenty Three Thousand Two Hundred Twenty Only).
v) Special Allowance : .83,655(Eighty Three Thousand Six Hundred Fifty Five Only).

B) Amenities: The Company shall provide Chauffeur dniven car facility to the Whole - Time
Director for official use.
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()Phone and other communication facilities subject to the conditions that personal long distance
calls shall be recovered from the Whole-Time Director.
D) Any other benefit as per Rules of the company.

B). Mimimum remuneration

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained where in any financial year during
the currency of the tenure of Whole-Time Director, the company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the company will pay remuneration by way of salary, benefits and perquisites,
performance incentive as approved by the Board of Directors as per provisions of Companies
Act 2013 & rules framed there under.

2) The appointment may be terminated by either party by giving to other party two month notice
for such termination or the company paying two months remuneration in lieu thereof.

None of the Directors, Key Managenal Personnel and their relatives are concerned or miterested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution except Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (DIN:

07947018)

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 respectively of the Notice
for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 5
The Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the appointment of
M/s Samjeev K. Bansal & Associates, Cost Accountants, to conduct the audit of the cost records

ol Sugar unmit & Distillery unit at remuneration of Rs. 36,000/- per annum for both umts for the
financial year ending 3 1% March 2025.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Compamies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has
to be ratified by the shareholders of the company.

Accordingly, consent of the members 1s sought for passing an ordinary resolution as set out in
the item no 5 of the Notice for approval of the members.

MNone of the Directors and Key Managenal Personnel of the Company and their relatives 1s
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise.

The Board recommends the Ordinary resolution set forth m item No. 5 of the notice for
approval of the members.

ITEM No. 6

The Board of Directors, at 1ts meeting held on 12.08.2025 on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. P. Chadha & Associates (Peer Review
Certificate No. 1671/2022), Practicing Company Secretanies, as Secretarial Auditors, to conduct
a secretarial audit of the Company pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")
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read with the Compames (Appomntment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules
2014 and Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Dsclosure  Requirements) Regulations,2015(*Listing  Regulations™ffor a term of five
conseculive years starting from the financial year 2025-2026 to financial year 2029-2030, at a
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and
the Secretanial Auditor.

M/s. P. Chadha & Associates (Peer Review Certificate No. 1671/2022), Practicing Company
Secretanes, was established in the year 2007 on the entrepreneunal spint, experience who have
wide array ol guality services to i1s chents n the field of Corporate, Secretanal work, corporate
htigation, NCLT (National Company Law Tribunal) for a decade.

M/s. P. Chadha & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have confirmed that they are
eligible for appointments as Secretanal Auditor of the Company.

The Board recommends the passing of the Resolution as set oul in ltem No.6 as an Ordinary
Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managenial Personnel or therr relatives are in anyway concerned
or interested in passing of the resolution mentioned in Item No. 6 of the Notice.
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Annexure-1

Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015|

Name of Director

Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra

Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra

Director Identification Number | 00129891 07947018

(DIN)

Date of Birth & Age 26/11/1960 & 64 Yr 12/06/1967 & 58Yr

Date of Appointment 16/01/1995 29/06/2021

Qualifications Chartered Accountant MBA

Expertise He is a qualificd Chartered | He is an [T Professional with an experience of

Accountant and is having more

more than 33 years in the field of system

than 40 ycars cxpericnce in | analysis design development and
Finance, Accounts, Project | implementation of quality software ete.
implementation,
administration, designing,
construction, Cxpansion,
Commercial Banking |, Direct
& Indirect  taxabion  cle.
Expertise in overall
management.
Sharcholding of Director in the NIL NIL
Company
Relationship  with  other NIL NIL

directors and KMPs of the
Company

List of outside Directorships as
on Appointment Date

1. Victor Textile Lid.

2 Orient Craft
Infrastructure Limited.

3. Juhu Hotel Privaie
Limited.

1. Wayout Technologies Private Limited
2. Six Trees Drinks Private Limited
3.P &S Beverages Private Limited

Chairmanship/ Membership of
Committee

1. Audit Committee-Member

1. Stakcholder Belationship Committee-
Member

2.Corporate Social Responsibility Commuittee-
Chairperson
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Share Holders,

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting therr 31st Annual Report together with

FIL

Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31* March 2025.

i

CADILY

FINANCIAL RESULTS :
(Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2024-25 2023-2024 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from operations BR625.65 B2812.45 BRBO625.65 | B2R12.45
Other income 655.13 81.69 655.13 | %1.69
Total Income 89280.77 R2894.14 89280.78 | B82894.14
(Increase)/decrease of Stock (8R93.36) (749.75) | (8893.36) : (749.75)
in trade |
Profit before Interest , 22902.08 14183.71 | 19143.55 14363.52
Depreciation, Tax &
Exceptional items
Less : Interest 2784.76 157212 2782.86 | 1570.21

Depreciation 1946.95 15820.53 1944.97 | 1818.68
Profit from Exceptional (0.09) {2938.99) (0.09) | (2938.99)
ltem*
Profit before Tax 14220.23 14637.37 14415.72 | 14813.36

|

Provision for Tax 3497.77 3327.57 3497.77 3327.57
Deferred Tax 214.72 182.67 214.73 182.68
Earlier years 237.65 89.63 237.65 29.63
MNet Profit 10270.18 11037.50 10465.57 | 11213.48
Transfer to Profit & Loss A/c 10270.18 11037.50 10465.57 | 11213.48

1) REVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS

a) Sugar Mill

Sugar Mill commenced crushing operations for the season 2024-25 on 18-11-2023 and
closed on 26-03-2025, The comparative operational results over the last two seasons are as

follows:
| Particulars Season Season
: 2024-2025 2023-2024
| Duration (Days) 126 130
| Sugarcane Crushed (Quintals) 5421418.29 | 5603012.87
| Recovery (%) 9.80 9.75
| Sugar produced in quintals 533730 548730

During the season, the mll operated for 126 days and crushed 54.21 lac quintals of sugar
cane. The Sugar Mill has produced 533730 guintals of Sugar at an average recovery of
9.80%. The mill also produced 232981 quintals of molasses al an average recovery of 4.28

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }

172



i

PICOCADILY

The Sugar umt of the company has achieved tumover & other mncome of Rs. 25419.70
lacs .

b) Distillery
The Distillery unit has achieved a tumover & other income of Rs.63861.08 lacs and
production details are as under:

i)Country ligour
The Distillery has produced 6603074 cases of Malta & Marshal. under the Country Liguor category
during the year 202425,

The brands of the distillery 1.e. Malta 50 Degree proof & other brands continue to be well
accepted by the people and have become popular brand in the State of Haryana.

ii}Indian Made Foreign Liquor (IMFL)

The Company has produced 142495 cases of Indn (Single Malt Whisky), 10916 cases of
Camikara Rum and 89740 cases of Whistler whisky under the Indian Made Foreign
Ligquor (IMFL) category. The company is under process of making more Indian made
foreign liguor (IMFL) products /brands.

The company has received overwhelming response for Indn (Single Malt Whisky) from &
Camikara Rum from international markets also.

¢) Malt Plant

The 10 Kilo Liters per Day Malt Plant to produce Malt Spirit made from Barley 15 running
perfectly. The quality of Malt Spirit produced thereat is of very high standards. The unit
has produced 3333192.69 bulk hters of Malt Spirit during the year 2024-25.

d) Ethanol
During the year the company has produced 3738283 bulk liters of Ethanol from
Grain/ENA which has been supplied to vanous o1l manufacturing companies.

2. STANDALONE RESULTS:

Your Directors are pleased to state that the year under review ended with the total mcome
of the Company on standalone basis at Rs. 89280.78 lacs with a Profit before Tax (PBT)
of Rs. 14415.72 lacs against the income of Rs 8289414 lacs and Profit before Tax of Rs.
14813.36 lacs i the previous year. Your Company 1s continuously putting efforils to
increase margins by increasing sales on high margin products and product mix
optimization. This has resulted in better marginsg in the sale of products m the disullery
division.

3. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended on 31% March
2025 comprises the Standalone Financial Statements of company and its associates
(together referred to as “the group™)

The Consolidated revenue of the company duning the year under review was Rs. 89280.77 lacs
with a Profit before Tax of Rs. 14220.23 lacs against revenue of Rs. 82894.14 lacs and profit
before tax of Rs. 14637.37 lacs in the previous year.
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4.DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your company, afier considering ongoing new projects &
expansion plans has decided that it would be prudent to conserve the funds for the
ambitious plans.

Board has decided not to recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.

5. EXPANSION PLANS

Your company has subscribed 4,00,000 ordinary Shares of GBP | dunng the year and is
holding entire Share capital 2142001 ordinary Shares in M/s Portavadie Distillers &
Blenders Limited at United Kingdom to establish a distillery in Scotland to make an entry
in distillery segment of foreign markets.

Your company is establishing a distillery of 210 KLPD in the state of Chhattisgarh. Land
has already been purchased. Change of land use has already been obtained. The civil work
& erection of plant & machinery is nearing completion .The trial runs of the plant shall be
as per Schedule.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2025 stood at Rs 94.33 Crore consisting
of 94339280 equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each . During the year under review, the company
has not issued Shares or convertible securities or Shares with differential voting rights nor
has granied any stock oplions or sweal equily or warrants.

During the year company has issued 672041 Convertible warrants (@ 744/- per warrant.
Warrants are converted into 672041 Equity Shares on 12/06/2025 upon receiving the full
payment. The company has made Listing application to the Exchanges. Listing Approval
from the BSE Limited has already been received on 04.07.2025 and approval of NSE
Limited is under consideration.

The company has also issued 2849448 Compulsory Convertible Debentures(@ 744/- per
debenture having coupon rate of interest 10 %. Each Debenture will be converted into one
equity share upon exercising the option to convert by the Debenture Holders with 1n a
period of one year from the date of allotment i.e. on or before 09/09/2025.

During the year company has issued 636943 Convertible warrants @ 785/ - per warrant. Each
warrant 15 converied into One Equity Share on 19/12/2024.

During the year company has got the approval from the shareholders of the company for
the issuance of 991479 Equity shares to the employees of the company under “Piceadily
Agro Industries Limited - Employees Stock Option Scheme -2024.”" Company has already
oranted 235045 stock options to the employees.
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7. SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANY
The Company has Two subsidianes as per following details:

S.No. Name of Company
I Portavadie Distillers & Blenders Limited
. Six Trees Drinks Private Limited

Associate Company
The Company has one associate at the end of the financial year 1.e. M/s. Piccadily Sugar
and Alled Industnies Limited.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129 and other applicable provisions of the Act read with
Rules made there wunder, the performance and fhnancial posibon of the
subsidiaries/associate company are annexed mn Form AOC-1 and marked as “Annexure-
C” to the Annual Financial Statements.

S8.DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

{a) Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors (IDs) have provided declaration w/s 149(6) of the Act and
Regulation 16(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, confirming that they meet the
criteria of mmdependence as laid down under the said Section/ Regulation. The Directors

also confirm that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Directors and they have not
been debarred by SEBI to hold the office of Director.

(b) Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (Din no. 07947018)
Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible for re-appointment.

(¢) Appointment/Re-appointment/ Cessation of Directors

Mr. Harvinder Smgh Chopra (Din no. 00129891) re-appointed as Managing Director of
the Company w.e.f. 02™ August, 2025 for a period of one year till 01/08/2026 subject to
the approval of shareholders m the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (Din no. 0794701 8) re-appointed as Whole-time Director
of the Company w.e.f. 29" June, 2025 for a period of one year till 28" June 2026 subject
to the approval of shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

(d) Number of meetings of Board of Directors

During the year under review |2 (Twelve) meetings of the Board of Directors were held to
transact the business of the company. The time gap between the two consecutive meetings
was not exceeding 120 days. Details of the Board meetings including attendance of
Directors at these meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report annexed to
this report.

(e) Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has camed oul an annual evaluation of its own performance,
Board Committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the
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Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulatbons 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations™).

The performance of the Board and Committees thereof was evaluated om the basis of the
criteria such as the composition and structure, effectiveness of processes, mformation,
involvement of the Members and functioning ete. The Board reviewed the performance ol
the individual Directors on the basis of the critenia such as the contribution of the
individual Director to the Board and Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues
to be discussed, meaningful and constructive discussion and inputs In meetings, ete.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, the performance of Non-Independent
Directors, the performance of the Board as a whole was evaluated. Performance evaluation
of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent
Director being evaluated.

The review concluded by affirming that the Board as a whole, the Committees of the
Board as well as all of its Members, individually, continued to display commitment to
good governance, ensuring a constant improvement of processes and procedures. It was
further acknowledged that every individual Member of the Board and the Committee
thereof contribute its best in the overall growth of the organization.

(N Details of Familiarization Programme

The details of the programme for familianzation of independent directors with the
company, their roles, nights, responsibilities in the company, nature of mdustry in which
the company operates and related matters are posted on the website of the company at
www. piccadily.com.

(g) Committees of Board

Pursuant to requirement under Companies Act , 2013 & Listing Regulations the Board has
constituted the following committees :

a) Audit Committee

b) Stakeholder Relationship Commitiee.

¢) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Commultee.

e) Risk management committee

The details of commitiees viz composition, number of meetings held & attendance of

committee members in the meeting are given in Corporate Governance Report forming
part of Annual Report.

(h) Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 the following persons are the Whole
Time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in term of provision of section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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Sr. No. | Name Designation

1. Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra Chairman & Managing Director

2. Mr. Bahnder Kumar(Resigned on Chiefl Financial Officer |
08.11.2024) |

3. Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra Whole-time Director |

4, Mr. Niraj Kumar Scheal Company Sccretary

5; Mr. Natwar Aggarwal Chief Financial Officer
(Joincd on 08.11.2024)

9. REPORTING OFFRAUD
There was no instance of fraud duning the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to
report to the Audit Committee and/or board under section 143(12) ol act and rules framed there under.

10 STATE OFAFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The state of affairs of the company 1s presented as part of Management Discussion and Analysis
Report in a separate section forming part of this report, as required under the

SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

11. MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no matenial changes affecting the financial position of the company subsequent to the close
of the financial year 2024-25 till the date of report.

12. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS ORTRIBUNALS

There are no significant matenal orders passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would
impact the going concern status of the company and its future operation. However, Members
altention 1s drawn to the statement on Contingent Liabihties and commitments 1n the notes forming
part of the financial statement.

13. DEPOSITS

Your company has not accepted any deposits from the public duning the year. Further there 1s not any
non-compliance of Chapter 5 of Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there under.

14. RISK MANAGEMENT

Your company carries out a penodical exercise to identify vanious risks involved in the business &
operations of the company. After identification, such risks are assessed for the degree of nsks
involved and accordingly steps are taken to mitigate those risks. The objective of such exercise 15 to
mitigate the probable adverse impact on business operations and thus enhance the competitiveness.
The risk assessment process of the company defines the risk management approach at all levels
across the organization including determination of the degree of nisks and proper steps to be taken to
avoid the probable harm. The Board i1s updated periodically on the risks identified and steps taken for
mitigating them the company has already formulated policy and commuttee for that purpose.
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15. LISTINGWITHSTOCK EXCHANGE

The Company's share continues to be histed at the BSE Limited (BSE). Duning the year Equity shares
of the company are also listed on National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE). The Annual Listing fee
for the fimancial year 2025-26 has already been pad.

16. REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for executive and non-executive directors and
persons who are appointed mm Sentor Management and Key Managernial positions and to determine
therr remuneration. The remuneration policy is placed on the Company's website.

Disclosure of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employees remuneration
and other requisite details pursuant to section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managenial personnel Rules 2014, is annexed to this
Reportas Annexure F.

Further, particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) & (3) of the above Rules, form part of this
Report. However, in terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Act. the Report and Accounts are being
sent to the Members of the Company and others entitled thereto, excluding the said particulars of
employees. The said information is available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during business hours on working days up to the ensuing AGM. Any Member interested in obtaining
such particulars may write to the Company Secretary.

17. AUDITORS & AUDIT REPORT

a. Statutory Auditors

M/s Jain & Associates, the Statutory Auditors of the company were appointed by the members at the
28th Annual General meeting of the company for an initial term of 5 years 1.e. from the conclusion of
28th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 33rd Annual General meeting of the company
pursuant to section 139 of the Compames Act 2013. They have confirmed that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the company.

The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Notes on
Finaneial statements referred to in the Auditors report are self-explanatory and do not call any further
comments.

b. Secretarial Auditors

The Board has, subject to the approval of the Shareholders, approved the appointment of P Chadha &
Associates (Peer Review Certificate No. 1671/2022). Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-
2026 to financial year 2029-2030.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 15 attached as Annexure 1
of this Report.

The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
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¢. CostAuditors

The Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit committee appointed Mr. Sanjeev K.
Bansal, Cost Accountant as the Cost Auditor of the company 1o conduct cost audit for its Sugar &
Dastillery unit for the financial year 2025-26.M/s Sanjeev K Bansal & Associates, Cost Accountants,
firm Registration no. 103 128 has submitted a certificate ofeligibility for appointment.

The Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 was filed with the appropriate
authorities within the presenibed ime.

18. AMOUNTS PROPOSEDTOBE CARRIED TO RESERVES

Particulars of the amounts proposed 1o be carried to reserves have been covered as part of the
financial performance of the company.

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO:

As required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read wath rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014, the mformation relating to the conservation of the energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, 1s annexed and forms part of the report as per
"Annexure-B".

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board has framed a Policy on related party transactions and placed the same on the Company's
websile.

The related party transactions between the Company and the Directors, Key Management Personnel,
the subsidiaries, or the relatives have been disclosed 1n the financial statements 1n Notes to Financial
Statements and compliance of Section 188( 1) of the Act have been duly made wherever applicable.

Details o' material contracts or arrangements at arms length basis are at Annexure -D.

21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act,2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements, and however there is no
transaction during the year.

22. INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company has over the years evolved effective systems and procedures to ensure internal
financial controls mn allits establishments to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of 1ts business,
including adherence to Company's policies, safeguarding of assets. prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of
reliable financial information.

The Audit Commmttee evaluates the mternal financial control system peniodically.

An effective communication/reporting system operates between the Units and Corporate Office to
keep various establishments abreast of regulatory changes and ensure compliances.
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23. CHANGE INTHENATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the company.

24. EXTRACTOFANNUALRETURN

Acopy of Annual Return for the year 2023-24, 1s available on the Company's website
www.piccadily.com

The Annual Return for the year 2024-25 will be uploaded after filing with the Registrar of Companies
indue course.

25. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE-CSR REPORT

(CSR) Policy has been posted on the website at www.piccadily.com. In comphiance with the
disclosure about CSR Policy Rules, 2014. During the year under review, the Company was required
to spend Rs. 1,29.90,614/-on CSR activities. The Company has spent Rs. 1.40,09,062/-The amounts
have been spent on Promoting health care including preventive health care (Blood donation camp &
Medicines). Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing
vocational skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects (Donation of bicycles & Shoes to school going children & water Coolers)
Conservation of natural resources and maintaining, quality of soil, air & water.

The detailed report as per Section 135 of the Compames Act, 2013 read with the Compames (CSR
Policy) Rules, 2014 has been attached as Annexure E.

26. ENVIRONMENT/POLLUTION CONTROL.HEALTHAND SAFETY:

A clean environment and safe operations has always been top prionity of the management. Safety of
all employees, compliances of environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources are
regularly monitored. The effluent and emissions from the plants are regularly monitored and treated.
The company has also installed Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) facilities.

27. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
POLICIES

Pursuant to regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (Listing obligation and disclosure requirements)
2015 .Management discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Auditors certificate
regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance are made part of the Annual Report as
per " Annexure-G".

Your board has in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act 2013 & SEBI (Listing
obligation and disclosures requirement) 2015 has adopted policies such as Related Party Transaction,
Corporate Social Responsibility Pohiey, Whistle Blower, Vigil Mechanism policy ete. These policies

are available on the website of the company and can be viewed on www.piccadily.com.

Your board has in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act 2013 & SEBI (Listing
obligation and disclosure requirements) 2015, has formed Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Audit Committee & Stakeholders relationship
Committee and Risk Management Committee 1s given in "Annexure-G".
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28.VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formulated and implemented the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil
Mechanism. This has provided a mechanism for directors and employees of the Company
and other persons dealing with the Company to reportto the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, any instance of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of
the Company’s code of conduct. The aforesaid policy has also been uploaded on the
Company’s website.

29. INSURANCE
The Company has taken adequate Insurance policies for its assets against the possible
risks like fire, flood, public liability, marine etc.

30. POLICY ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION. PROHIBITION AND REDRESSED ACT 2013)

Pursuant to the “Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Intemal Complaints Committees at
all its workplaces. There has been no complaint reported in this regard to any of the
Committees.

A statement with respect to the status of comphiance with the provisions relating to the
Matemity Benefit Act, 1961 -NIL

31. EMPLOYEES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company continued to maintain harmonious and cordial relations with its workmen
in all its establishments.

Further, particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) & (3) of the above Rules, form
part of this Report. However, in terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Report
and Accounts are being sent to all the Members of the Company and others entitled
thereto, excluding the said particulars of employees. The said information is available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working
days up to the ensuing AGM. Any Member interested in obtaining such particulars may
write to the Company Secretary.

32. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As required under section 134 (3) (¢) and section 134(5) of the Compames Act 2013,
Directors state that:

a) sound accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the
judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit of the Company for the year;

b) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

¢) the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

d) proper internal financial controls have been laid to be followed by the Company
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and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;
and

e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

33. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in comphiance with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1)and
General Meetings (SS-2).

34. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
There are no significant and material orders passed by any regulatory authority or courts
or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

35. OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. There is no application made or proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the financial year 2024-2025.

2. There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

36. APPRECIATION

The Directors acknowledge the cooperation, assistance and support extended by Central
Government, State Governments, Banks, Financial Institutions, Dealers, Sugarcane
farmers, Society at large, Vendors and valued sharecholders of the Company. The
Directors also to place on record their appreciation for the all-round co-operation and
contribution made by the employees at all levels.

For Piccadily Agro Industries Limited

Date: 12.08.2025 Sd/- Sd/-
Place :Gurugram (Dharmender Kumar Batra) (Harvinder Singh Chopra)
Wholetime Director Chairman & Managing Director
DIN No. 07947018 DIN No. 00129891
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Annexure-A
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Piceadily Agro Industries Lid

(CIN: LO1115HR1994PLC032244)

Registered Address:

Vill Bhadson, Umri-Indr Road Teh.Indri, st Kamal,
Haryana, India- 132109

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Piccadily Agro Industries Limited (hereinafter called
the Company).Secretaral Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Piccadily Agro Industries Limited books, papers, minutes books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives duning the conduct
of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31™ March, 2025 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company the financial year ended on 31" March, 2025, according to the
provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(11) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(i11) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act™);

(a) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
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Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable duning the financial year under review).

(D) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with chent;

(Not applicable as the company 15 not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agent during the financial year under review).

(£) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
Not applicable as the company has not delisted any securities from any stock

exchange duning the financial year under review, and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(Not Applicable during the linancial year under review).

We have also examined, on test check basis, the relevant documents and records mamntained by
the Company according to the following laws applicable specifically to the Company and the
Company has materially comphed with the provisions as reported by Management of the
company:

Sugar Cess Act, 1982

Essential Commodities Act, 1955

Sugar Development Fund Act, 1982

Levy Sugar Price Equalization Fund Act, 1976

i el

We have also examined compliance with the apphicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretanal standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (S8-1) and General
Meetings (585-2) 1ssued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and notified by
Mimstry of Corporate Aflairs:

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulatons, 2015 as amended up to date; and

(iii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges namely BSE
Limited and NSE Limited;

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for comphiances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provision of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc. except in respect of matters specified below:

Sr. No Compliance Requirement | Deviations | Observations/ Remarks of the Practicing
{(Regulations/ circulars / Company Secretary
guidelines including
specific clause)

Not Applicable
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Based on our examination and the information received and records maintained, We further report that;

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of [Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the year, were carried out in compliance with the
applicable Act and Regulations.

2. Adeguate notice is given to all direciors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
noies on agenda were sent well in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining furither
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation al the meeting.

3. All decisions are carried out through majority, while the disseniing members” views, il any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

4. The company has proper board processes.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken the following major
events:

1. Duning the year, the company has made preferential allotment of Convertible Warrants and
Compulsory Convertible Debentures. .

We further report that during the audit period the company has not undertaken any major
activities like:

i. Redemption/ buy-back of securities.

1. Major decisions has not been taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the
Companies Act, 2013

1ii. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, ete. v. Foreign technical collaborations/Joint
Ventures elc.

iv. Foreign technical collaborations/Joint Ventures elc.

As informed by Company, We further report thai there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines referred to above and the following acts and rules
prescribed thercunder to the extent applicable to the company:-

a. Factories Act, 1948

b. Payment of Wages Act. 1936, and rules made thereunder,

¢. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder,

d, Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder,
e. The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and rules made thereunder,
f. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and rules made thereunder,

g. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, and rules made thereunder,

h. The Contract Labour {Regulation) and Abolition Act, 1970

i. The Child Labour Prohibition and Repulation Act, 1986

j. The Employees Compensation Act, 1923

k. The Apprentice Act, 1961

l. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

m. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
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n. The Water {Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, Read with Water (Prevention & Control of
Pollution) Rules 1975,

o. Industrial Dispute Act, 1947

p- Sexual [Tarassment of women at workplace Act 2013

g. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

However, the compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws hike direct and
indirect tax laws and mantenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been
reviewed by me since the same have been subject to review by statutory auditors and other
professionals.

We further report that duning the audit peniod no specific events/ actions has taken place which
has major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards.

For P Chadha and Associates

Company Secretaries
Sd/-

Prince Chadha

Proprietor

M. No.: 32856

C.P. No.: 12409

Date: Chandigarh Peer Review Cerl. No.: 1671/2022
Place: 11.07.2025 UDIN: A032856G000763401
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This report 1s to be read with our letter of even date which 1s annexed as “Annexure A™ and
forms an integral part of this report.

To,

The Members,

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited,

Village Bhadson, Umni- Indn Road, Tehsil Indr,
Distt: Kamal, Haryana 132109.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these secretanial records, based
on our audil.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the comrecmess of the contents of secretanal records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected n
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books
ol accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, We have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other apphlicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards 1s the responsibility of the management. Our exammation was
limited to the extent of verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretanal Audit Report 1s neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 11.07.2025 For P Chadha and Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Prince Chadha

FProprietor

M. No.: 32856

C.P. No.: 12409

Peer Review Cert. No.: 1671/2022
UDIN: AG32856G000763401
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ANNEXURE-BTO DIRECTORS' REPORT
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. | CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i) | The steps taken or impact on conservation of | a) Replacement of obsolete steam turbine drives of milling
Eenergy tandem with AC VFD drives

b) Installation of new capacitor bank for improving the power
factor

c) Replaced halogen Lamp , scdium Lamp with CFL & LED

d) Installation of Faling film Evaporator & mechanical
circulators in batch type vacuum pans
Reduction in steam consumption in Distillery by Optimizing
process parameters

e) Replacing of old tubes with new tubes in the Boilers.

fi  Providing part automation at Boilers to improve boilers
efficiency.

g) Replacement of conventional reciprocating type air
compressors with highly efficient screw type air compressors.

h) Proper insulation of Boilers, steam pipelines and heat
exchangers to control radiation losses.

i) Replacing Worm and worm wheel type gears at crystalizers
with planetary gearboxes to save powaer.

i} Heating of raw juice with surplus condensate for steam
saving.

(i) | The steps taken by the company for utilizing Using of Solar electricity is under consideration
the alternate source of energy

{iii) | The capital investment on energy —_
conservation eqguipment

B. | TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) The efforts made towards technology | a) Heating of raw juice with surplus condensate for steam

absorption saving.

b)  Optimization of hot water imbibition at mills to reduce steam
consumption in the plant

(ii) | The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

(iii) | In case of imported technology(imported
during the last 3 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)

{a) | The details of the technology imported; MLA.
(b) | The year of import; LA
(c) | Whether the technology been fully absorbed; MLA.

{d) | If nat fully absorbed, areas where absorption has | NLA.
not taken place. and the reasons thereof;

{iv) | The expenditure incurred on research and il
development

C. | FOREIGNEXCHANGE EARNINGANDOUT GO:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during
the year in terms of actual outflows:

The information is given in Notes to financial statements.

For Piccadily Agro Industries Limited

Sd/- Sdf
. (Dharmendra Kumar Batra) (Harvinder Singh Chopra)
Date: 12.08.2025 Wholetime Director Chairman & Managing Director
Place :Gurugram
DIN No. 07947018 DIN No. 00129891
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Annexure to the Directors Report for the year 2024-25
Form AQOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

Part “A™: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Annexure-C

Sl No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary Six Trees Portavadie
Drinks Private Distillers and
Limited Blenders Limited
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if NA NA
different from the holding company’s reporting
period
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last | Rupees T Great Britain Pound
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of (GBP) £=
foreign subsidiaries R5.110.38
4. Share capital 100000 22.28,17.070
5. Reserves & surplus (23,017) (4,03,33,117)
6. Total assets 1,06,762 19,35,77,253
T Total Liabilities 1,006,762 19,35,77,253
8. Investments - -
9, Turnover - -
10. Profit before taxation (5000) (1,95,35.453)
11. Provision for taxation (1300) -
12. Profit after taxation (3700) (1,95,35.453)
13. Proposed Dividend - -
14. % of shareholding 100% 100%

Portavadie Distillers and Blenders Limited have been incorporated on 30/04/2021 as subsidiary company

Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and

Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

Ltd.

Picecadily Sugar & Allied Industries

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31.03.2025 _

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end

No.

90.,33.871

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

16,21,27,686

Extend of Holding%

35.87%

3. Description of how there is significant influence

Refer Note Below™*

4.  Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet

4,38,07.211.2

5. Profit/Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation

(35,75,046)

. Not Considered in Consolidation

#Note: There is significant influence due to percentage of shareholding

Date: 12.08.2025
Place :Gurugram

For PiccadilyAgro Industries Limited

Sd/-

(Dharmendra Kumar Batra)

Wholetime Director
DIN No. 07947018
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Annexure to the Directors Report for the year 2024-25 Annexure-D
FORM No. AOC -2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship- Nil

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: NA

¢} Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: NA

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: NA

e} Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NA

f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NA

g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NA

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting required under first proviso to section 188: NA
1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Name(s) of the related | Piccadily Sugar & Piccadily Hotels Six Trees Drinks Soon N Sure holdings
party and nature of Allied Industries Private Limited Private Limited Lid.

relationship Limited

Nature of contracts / Purchase and Sale of | Rendering of 100% Subisidary Rendering of Services
arrangements/ Goods Services, Receiving & Receiving of
transactions of Services. Services.

Duration of the contracts | 1st April, 2025 to Ist April, 2025 to - 1st April, 2025 to 31st
farrangements / 31st March, 2030 31st March, 2030 March, 2030

transactions

Salient terms of the Price charged for the | Price charged for |- Price charged for the
contracts or transactions shall be | the fransactions transactions shall be
arrangements or based on the | shall be based on based an the
transactions including prevailing market | the prevailing prevailing market price
the value, if any price and shall not be | market price and and: shall not be less

less than the price | shall not be less
charged for soch | than  the  price

than the price charged

; & for such transactions
transactions to | charged for such

unrelated third party | transactions to
customers having | unrelated third party
such dealings or | customers  having

to  unrelated third
party customers
having such dealings
or transactions with

transactions with | such dealings or
them. transactions with them.
them.
Date( s} of approval by B - - -
the Board, if any
Amount paid as . - - -
advances, if any
For PiccadilyAgro Industries Limited
Date: 12.08.2025 Sd- Sd-
Place :Gurugram (Dharmendra Kumar Batra) (Harvinder Singh Chopra)
Wholetime Director Chairman & Managing Director
DIN No. 07947018 DIN No. 00129891
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ANNEXURE E

ANNEXURE TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

DETAILS OF CSRACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

1. A bricf outline of the Company’s CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company firmly believes in Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) and commits to take
initiatives to contribute to harmonious and suitable development of the Society and its inhabitants.
The Company has pursued CSR activities for the welfare work directly. The Company has given
preference for the welfare activities in the local areas of its manufacturing sites and corporate office.

2. The Composition of CSR Committee:

Name of Member ’ Status
Sh.Jai Parkash Kaushik (Non-Executive Non Member
Independent Director)
Sh.Dharmendra Kumar Batra (Executive Chairman
Director)
Sh. Rajeev Kumar Sanger (Non-Executive- Member
Independent Director)

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR prajects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

The Company’s Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
Board can be viewed at the website of the Company at www.piccadily.com

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companices (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report).

The Company has been conducting internal impact assessments to monitor and evaluate its strategic

CSR programs.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any:

S. No. Financial Year ' Amount available for Amount required to be set off
set-off from | for the financial year, if any
preceding financial (in Rs)

_ . years (in Rs) 5
Ll 2023-24 | 1,68,251 | 1,68,251

6 Average net profit of the Company as per section 135 (5): Rs. 64,95 30,666
7. a) Two percent of the average net profit of the Company as per section 135 (5). Rs. 1,29.90,613
b) Surplus anising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the previous
financial years : 1,68,251
¢) Amount required to be set off for the fina ncial year, if any: Rs. 1,68251
d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b-7c¢) : Rs.1,29.90,613
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Total Excess Amount for previous year available for set off {2023-2024) : Rs. 1,68,251
Final Amount after set off excess amount = 1,29.90,613-1,68.251= 12822362
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount spent Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
for the Financial
year (in Rs.)
Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund
Unspent CSR Account as per | specified under Schedule VII as per
section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5).
Amount Date of transfer. Name of the Fund | Amount | Date of
Transfer
14009062 NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL
51| Nam | Item | Local | Location Proje | Amou | Amo | Amou | Mode of | Mode of
N |eof |from |area of the ct nt unt nt Impleme | Implement
o | the the (Yes/ | project. durati | alloca | spent | transf | ntation - | ation -
Proje | list of | No). on. ted inthe | erred | Direct Through
ct. activit for curre | to (Yes/No | Implementi
ies in the nt Unspe | ). ng Agency
Sched projec | finan | nt
ule ; t(in cial CS5R
VI to ?;a g{';“ Rs) | Year | Accou
the {in nt for
Act. Rs)) | the
projec
tas
I)ET .
Sectio
n
135(6)
(in
Rs.).

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoeing projects for the financial year: (In Rs.)

Sr. | Nam | Item from the list | Local | Location Amount | Mode of | Mode of
No | e of | of activities in area | of the spent for the | impleme | implementation -
the | schedule VII to (Yes/ | project. project (in ntation - | Through
Proj | the Act. No). Rs.) Direct implementing agency.
ect (Yes/No
).
i - {1)Promoting Yes Haryana | 3281643 | Yes
healthcare and
including Chhattisgar
preventive health h
care
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(medical camp,
water cooler, safe
drinking water |
| sanitation).
E, - (il)Promoting Yes Haryana | 3018391 Yes
education, and
including special Chhattisgar
education and h
employment
enhancing
vocation skills
especially among
children. women,
elderly and the
differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement
projects
(Cycle
distribution ,
Sewing
Machines, sports,
Computer parls
4 - (ix)Rural Yes Haryana | 5709028 Yes
Development and
projects{Solar Chhattisgar
lights, sports kit) h
| TOTAL 14009062
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : NIL
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial ¥ ear (Bbt8ct8d+8e)- 14009062/-
(2) Excess amount for set off, if any: 1186700/-
Sr. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 1,28,22 362
135(5)alter set ofl excess amount of preceding year
(1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1.40,09.062
{111) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(11)-(1}] 11,86,700
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or -
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(1i)- 11.86,700
(v)]
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years
Sr. Preceding Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any Amount
No. Financial transferred to spent in the | fund specified under remaining to
Y ear Unspent CSR reporting Schedule VII as per section | be spent in
| Account under | Financial | 135(6). if any. succeeding
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section 135 (6) | Year (in financial
(in Rs.) Rs.). years. (in
Rs.)
Name | Amount(in | Date of
of rs) transfer
fund
1. Nil NIL NIL NIL ([ NIL NIL NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for
financial year(s):

ongoing projects of the preceding

Sr. | Project | Name | Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of
No. | Id of Year in | duration | amount spent on | amount the project
Project | which  the allocated | the spent at the | -
project was for  the | project in | end of | Completed
commenced. project the reporting /Ongoing.
(inRs.). | reporting | Financial
Financial | Year. (in
Year (in|Rs.)
Rs).
1 - - - - - - - -

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details). nil

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). NIL

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset NIL

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.NIL

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).NIL

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5): NA

For Piccadily Agro Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Place:Gurugram Dharmendra Kumar Batra  Harvinder Singh Chopra Natwar Aggarwal
Date: 12.08.2025 Wholetime Director Chairman & Managing Director ~ Chief Financial Officer
(DIN No0.07947018 (DIN No.00129891) (CFO)
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ANNEXTURE F
ANNEXTURE TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197{12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5{1})
OF THE COMPANIES {APPOINTMENT AND REMNUMERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
' Sr.no | Information required Disclosure Rs in lacs
1. The ratio of the | Director's Name | Remuneratio | Ratio to | %
remuneration  of  each Rs. In lakh MRE increasc/decrease
Director to the median in remuneration
remuncration of  the in 202425 over
employees of the 2023-24
Company  for  the o . .
financial year 2024-2025 | Sh.  Harvinder | 14283 3534 16.84
and percentage increase / | Singh Chopra
decrease in the
i of cach I Dharmendra | 77.70 19.23 99.23
irector.
Kumar Batra
Sh. Akhil Dada | NIL - -
Sh. Jai Parkash | NIL - -
Kaushik
Ms. Heena Gera | NIL - -
Sh.Rajeev NIL
Kumar Sanger
| 2. The percentage increase | Name Designation | Remuneratio | %% increase in
' in remuneration of Chief n (Rs. In | Remuneration
Financial officer, lakhs)
Company Secrctary or | Balinder Kumar | Chief 7.23 1.69
manager, if any in the Financial
financial year 2024-25 Officer . _
Natwar Chief 76.69 -
Agpgarwal Financial
Officer
Miraj Kumar | Company 15.48 13.16
Seheal Secretary
% The percentage increase | Median FY 2024-2025 Median FY | % increase/
in the median 2023-2024 decrease
remuneration of
employees in the | — - --
financial year.
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ANMNEXTURE F

ANNEXTURE TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1)
OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMNUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

4. The number of | 267
permanent employees on
the rolls of company
5 Average percentile | Average percentile increase of26.18% in salaries of managerial
increase already made in | personnel:
the salaries of employees | Average percentile increase in salaries of non-managerial
other than the | personnel:14.66 %
managerial personnel in | The salary increases are functions of various factors due to
the last financial year | inflationary trends, motivational human development policies.
and its comparison with
the percentile increase in
the managerial
remuneration and
justification thereof and
point out if there are any
exceptional
circumstances for
increase in the
managerial remuneration
6 Affirmation that  the | The remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the remuneration
remuneration is as per | policy of the company.
the remuneration policy
of the company
7 Statement showing Employ | Educatio | Remunerat | Date of | Previo | Relatio
the detail of employees | ee nal ion joining and | us n with
drawing aggregate | name, Qualifica experience | employ | any
remuneration exceeding | designat | tion ment other
one crore and two lakh | ion and and Directo
rupees as per Rule 5 of | age design |r /
Chapter  XIII, the ation Manag
Companies(Appointment er
and Remuneration of | Harvind | BSc, 142.83 16/01/1995 |- -
Managerial ~ Personnel | er Singh | Chartered &4Qyears
Rules, 2014, Chopra | Accounta
nt
For PiccadilyAgro Industries Limited
Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 12.08.2025 (Dharmendra Kumar Batra) (Harvinder Singh Chopra)

Place :Gurugram
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ANNEXURE G

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Sugarseason 2024-2025

India's sugar production for the 2024-25 season is projected to be around 264.00 lac tonnes, a
decrease of 19% compared to the previous year's 310.00 MT. This dechine 1s primarily attributed to
factors like increased sugarcane diversion for ethanol production and reduced cane availability.

Sugar season 2024-25 started with the opening stock of 78 lac tons and after adding a current years
production total stock 18 estimated 15 around 342 lac tones agamst anticipated consumption of
280.00 lac tons and exports of 8.00 lac tones. As a result the closing stock of sugar as on September
30, 2025 15 estimated to be around 54 Lac tones which 1s sufficient for 2 months consumption.
[Source: Indian Sugar & Bioenergy Manufacturers Association (ISMA)]

Distillery

In the Ethanol Supply Year (ESY) 2024-25, India has seen significant progress i its Ethanol
Blended Petrol (EBP) program, with an average ethanol blending rate of 1 8.6% between November
2024 and Apnil 2025, . The program, which aims to reduce rehance on imported fossil fuels, has seen
increased ethanol production capacity and investments in distillenies across the country. OMCs (Oil
Marketing Companies) have also been procuring increasing quantities of ethanol, including
biodiesel.

The all India blending percentage touched 19.83 % in March 2025 against a target of 20% by 2025.

The Excise & Taxation Department of Haryana in its Excise Policy for the year 20252025has fixed
the sale price of country Liquor (Ex Distillery issue price) as per following details:

Y ear Sale price for country Liguor
Quart Pint | Nip
| 2024-25 | 301 1322 | 360
2025-20 310 337 | 350

The Distillery has produced 6603074 cases of Malta, under Country liquor category during the year
2024-25.

The brands of the distillery 1.e. Malta 50 Degree proof & other brands continue to be well accepted
by the people and have become popular brand in the State of Haryana.

Risks and Concerns

The sugar production estimate for the ongomg 2024-25 season has been revised down to 28 MMT
(raw value) due to the adverse impacts of El Nifio and limited groundwater resources for irmgation.
The incidence of certain insect pests such as Top Borer, Early Shoot Borer etc. in sugar cane crop has
mereased over Two three years. The major impact of Top Borer 1s seen in Cane Vanety CO-238
which occupies the major portion of Company’s cane area. Efforts are being made to control ils
incidence by integrated pest management techmigues and also replacing the CO-238 cane vaniety

in the coming years so thatits impact in Company’s command area is minimized.
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The negative perception around sugar is unfortunately spreading like wildfire amongst the gullible
and misinformed masses in our country. There 15 absolutely no scientific evidence or any research
paper which concludes or establishes that consumption of sugar in itself leads to any particular
disease, be it diabetes, obesity or dental canes.

Government guideline regarding drinking 15 injurious to health was effect the revenue of the
company.

Intense competition from other distilleries from India as well as foreign may affect the revenue of
the company.

Internal Control System & their Adeguacy

The auditor have felt that the company has a reasonable system of authorization at proper levels with
necessary conirols on the purchase of sugar cane, issue of maternials , Sales, purchase of and
components & other related system of Intemal control 15 commensurate with the size of the
company. They also felt that the company has areasonable system of recording receipts of raw
matenals and components and the company 1s recording the sales and purchase through the
software. The Software engineers regularly check software programme.

Human resources

In the past 2-3 years, our Human Resources department has been instrumental in driving initiatives
aimed at fostering a positive work culture, nurturing talent, and aligning our work force with the
strategic goals of the organization. Through a range of programs and policies, we have focused on
enhancing employee engagement, development, and well- being.

Talent Acquisition & Talent Development:

Talent acquisiion remains a strategic priority for the company. We have implemented robust
recruitment strategies to attract top talent and ensure a diverse and inclusive work force. Investing in
the development of our employees remamns a top priority. We have continued to provide
comprehensive training and development programs to equip our workforce with the skills and
knowledge necessary to excel in their roles and adapt to evolving business needs. Additionally, we
have emphasized leadership development mitiatives to cultivate a pipeline of future leaders within
the orgamzation.

Industrial relations

Maintaining positive industrial relations is critical to fostering a harmonious and productive work
environment and always been a comerstone of our HR strategy. Through proactive engagement and
a commitment to fairness and transparency, we have strengthened our industrial relations and built
trust and mutual respect among all stakeholders.

In conclusion, our Human Resources activities reflect our ongoing dedication to fostening a
supportive, inclusive, and high-performing workplace culture. We remain committed to mvesting in
our greatest asset-our people-and supporting their growth and success now and in the future.
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ANNEXURE G
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation of 34(3) SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations 20135, the company has been incorporating for the past few years, a separate section
on Corporate Governance, n its Annual report. The shareholders and investors would have
found the mformation mformative and useful. Company’s pohcies on the Corporate Governance
and due compliance report on specific areas, where ever apphcable, for the financial year ended
31% March 2025 are given here under, divided into following areas :

1. Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

Good Corporate Governance 1s the adoption of the best business practices which ensure that
the Company operates within the regulatory framework with high ethical standards. The
adoption of such corporate practices ensures accountabihity of the persons in charge of the
Company on one hand and brings benefits to investors, customers, creditors, employees, and
the society at large on the other. The Company believes in practicing good Corporate
Governance and endeavors (o improve on these aspects on an ongoing basis.

The Company ensures full compliance with the requirements of Corporate Govemnance under
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR
Regulations).

Code of Business Conduct & Ethies

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Business Ethics for Directors and Senior
Management of the Company, as required under Regulation 17(5)(a) of the Listing Regulations.
The Company has received confirmations from the Directors and Semor Management regarding
comphance with the Code for the year ended 31st March, 2025. A certificate from the Managing
Director to this effect 1s attached to this Report.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading pursuant to the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 and amended as per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018. The Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer

2. Composition of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company i1s constiluted with expenenced and professional
Directors from different fields. The Board is responsible to supervise the Corporate Governance
practices 1n the Company. The Board provides strategic guidance and independent views to the
Company’s sentor management while discharging 1ts fiduciary responsibihies. The Board also
provides direction and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company 1s managed in a
manner that fulfils stakeholder’s aspirations under the applicable corporate governance rules
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The Board consists of Six(6) Directors. The Directors on our board are highly qualified and
experienced individuals who are active participants i the decision-making process and provide
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guidance and objective judgment to the company. The names of the directors are as following:

Compaosition of the Board
| Name of Dircctors | Category Attendance | Noof | Mcmbership | Committee position in | No of
Particulars othcr of other othcr companics {Audit | sharcs
Dircctor | Board & Stakcholder hcld on
Board L“fa ship (Listed) Committcc) 31032
moctin| A ;
85 | zriowas Mcember | Chairman
Mr. Harvinder Executive 12 Yes 3 - - - -
Singh Chopra Director/Man
aging
Dinno 00129891 | Director
| Sh. Jai Parkash Non- 12 Yes 0 = = = e
Kaushik executive
Din no 02354480 | Non-
Independent
Director
Ms. Heena Gera Non- 7 NA 0 - - - -
executive
Din No. 08644677 | Independent
Director
Sh. Rajeev Kumar | Non- 12 Yes 1 - - - -
Sanger executive
Dinno 08178395 | Independent
Director
Sh. Dharmendra Executive 11 Yes 3 < 2= o £
Kumar Batra Director/Wh
Dinno 07947018 | ole-time
. Director
*5h. Rajan Talwar | Non- 10 Yes - - - - -
Din no 10620650 | execulive-
Independent
Director
*%Sh. Akhil Dada | (Non- 1 Yes = = o = &
Executive-
Independent
Director)

I‘ﬁp;minled as Independent Director on 15.05.2024

**(Ceased to be Director on 29.09.2024
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Chart on the Core skill/expertise/competence of the Directors

The Board compnses of qualified and expenenced members who possesses required skill,
expertise and competence which allow them to make effective contnbutions to the functioning of
the Board and its Commilttees.

The core skill/expertise/ competencies required m the Board in the context of effective
functioning of the Company, as identified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors of the Company are tabulated below:

' Name of Core Skills / Expertise /Competencies
| Director
Leadership/ | Strategic | Sector/Industry Technology | Financial,
Operational | Planning | Knowledge & Regulatory/
Experience Experience, Legal &
R&D Innovation risk Mgmt
"Jai Parkash | V v v
Kaushik
|
| Dharmendra | V v v v
Kumar
Batra
Rajee v v v v
Kumar
Sanger
| Harvinder | V v v v v
Singh
Chopra
Heena Gera | Y v v
| Rajan v v y
Talwar

Notes: None of the Directors have received any loans and advances from the Company during
the year.
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Board Independence

Based on the confirmation/disclosures received from the Directors and on evaluation of the
relationships disclosed, Independent Directors including the Chairman are mdependent in terms
of Secunities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Regulations), 2015.

Confirmation of Independent Director & Their Registration with Data Bank

Pursuant to clause C (2) (I) of Schedule 5 V read with Regulation 34 (3) of Listing regulations,
in the opinion of the Board all the independent Director fulfill the conditions required for
Independent Directors as specified in the Listing regulations and are independent of the
management.

Independent Directors Role

As trustees of shareholders, Independent Directors play a pivotal role in upholding corporate
governance norms and ensuring farrness in decision making. Being experts in vanous fields, they
also bring independent judgment on matters of strategy, risk management, controls and business
performance. The Directors’ Report contains the disclosures regarding fulfillment of the requisite
independence criteria by Company’s Independent Directors.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder the Independent
Directors are required to hold at least one meeting in a year without the attendance of Non
Independent Directors and members of Management. We are pleased to report that the
Company's Independent Directors met on 11/11/2024 without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and members of Management. All the Independent Directors were present
at the meeting. At the Meeting, they

1. Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

1. Reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the

views of Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors;

1. Assessed the quality, quantity and timehiness of flow of information between the Company
Management and the Board which is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.

Further, it 15 confirmed that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent directors fulfill the
conditions.

Memberships of other Boards

None of the Directors on the Company’s Board i1s a Director of more than 10 (ten) Companies
and Chairman of more than 5 (five) Companies. None of the Directors of the Company 15 a
member of more than 10 Committees across all the Companies and Chairman of 5 committees
(Commuttees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders® Relationship Committee) across all the
companies in which he/ she 15 a Director. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures
regarding their positions held by them in other companies and notify the changes as and when it
takes place. No Independent Director serves as Independent Director in more than seven listed
companies or three histed companies in case he/ she 15 a Whole-time Director in any hsted
Company. Independent Directors are expected not to serve on the boards of competing
companies. The composition of the Board 18 m conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.
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Membership Term

As per Companies Act, 2013, as amended and the Articles of Association of the Company, at
least two-third of the Board members shall be retinng Directors, excluding Independent
Directors and Promoler Director. One-third of such Directors are required to retire every year
and if eligible, the retining Directors can opt for re-appointment.

Independent Directors shall hold office for up to two terms of five years each.

Familiarization Programs:

Famhanzaton Programs for independent Directors in respect of their roles, nights,
responsibilities n the company, nature of the mdustry & business model was imparted. The
details of Familianzation Programs are available on the website of the company 1e
www.piccadily.com .

Board Procedure

The Board Meetings are convened as and when require. In any case the gap between two Board
meetings does not exceed 120 days as prescribed under the Companies Act.2013 The Board
meetings are properly structured with detailed Agenda and comprehensive information on the
matters require discussion, consideration and approval.

The 12 (Twelve) meetings were held on 22™ Apnl 2024, 15% May 2024, 17% June 2024,15™ July
2024, 30" July 2024, 12" August 2024, 09® September 2024, 30" September 2024, 08"
November 2024, 19" December 2024, 06™ January 2025 and 05™ February 2025.

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

The required information as enumerated in Part A of Schedule 11 to SEBI Listing Regulations is
made available to the Board of Directors for discussion and consideration at every Board
Meetings. The Board perniodically reviews comphance reports of all laws apphcable to the
Company as required under Regulation 17(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The importani
decisions taken at the Board / Committee meetings are communicated to departments concerned

promptly.

Board effectiveness Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of regulation 17(10) of the SEBI Listing regulations and provisions of
the Act . Board evaluation mvolving evaluation of Board ol Directors | its committees and
individual Directors, including the role of the Board Chairman , was considered duning the year.
For details pertaiming to the same kindly refer the Boards report.

Independent Director of the Company: No Independent Director has resigned during the year.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a vital role in ensuring sound Corporate Governance practices, The
Commiltees are constituted to handle specific activities and ensure speedy resolution of the
diverse matters. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to
carry out clearly defined roles. The Board supervises the execution of responsibihiies by the
Committees and is responsible for their action. The minutes of the meetings of all the
Committees are placed before the Board for review.

3. Board Committees — Meetings and Procedures

1. Audit Committee
T erms of Reference

The tole and terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover areas mentioned under SEEI
Listing Regulations Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules related thereto/other SEBI
Laws/Regulations, as applicable from time to time besides other matters as may be delegated by
the Board of Directors from time to time.

Composition and attendance at the Meetings:

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee shall cover areas mentioned under SEBI
Listing Regulations/ and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules related thereto/other
SEBI Laws/Regulations, as applicable from time to time besides other matters as may be
delegated by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Audit Committee compnses of three
Directors, one Executive & two non-executive directors. The Audit committee met Five imes
during the year and attendance of members at the meetings was as under:

Name of Member Status No. of meetings | Attended

Sh. Rajeev Kumar Sanger Member(Non-Executive ) 5
Independent Director

Sh. Harvinder Singh Chopra | Member, Executive 5 5
Director

Sh. Rajan Talwar Chairman (Non-Executive 2 2
Independent Director

*Sh Akhil Dada Chairman, (Non- Executive 3 3

Independent Director

*Ceased to be Director on 29.09.2024

Audit Committee 5 meetings were held on 20" Aprl 2024, 14™ July 2024, 10" August 2024,
07™ November 2024, 04™ February 2025.
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Chief Financial Officer and Statutory Auditors are invitees. The Company Secretary is the
Secretary of the Commitiee.

I1. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Terms of reference:

In terms of Section 178 (1) of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has
constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The broad terms of reference of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee as adopted by the Board are as under:

> Formulatbion of the cntena for determining guahfications, posiive atinbutes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managenial Personnel (KMP) and other senior
employees.

* Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

= Devising a policy on Board diversity.

> ldentifying qualified candidates for Directorship, who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the cnteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

> Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

The board has constituted a Nomination & remuneration Committee as per the requirements of
Companies Act 2013 and formulates the terms of reference m conformity with the Secunties and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015.

Name of Member _ Status No of Meetings | Attended

Sh. Rajeev Kumar Sanger (Non- Chairman 5 : 5
Executive- Independent Director)

Sh. Jai Parkash Kaushik (Non- ' 5 | 5
Executive- Non Independent Director) WG
*Sh. Akhil Dada (Non-Executive- | 2 | 2
Independent Director) Mznaber
Heena Gera(Non-Executive- Menibér 3 3

Independent Director)

*(Ceased to be Director on 29.09.2024

During the year 5 meetings were held on 04™ May 2024, 03™ July 2024, 15™ October 2024,
20" January 2025, 06™ February 2025.

The Remuneration Policy devised in accordance with Section 178(3) and (4) of the Companies
Act, 2013, has been published on the Company website at www.piccadily.com
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REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS
Durning the Financial Year 2024-25 the remuneration paid to Directors are given below:
(i) Executive Directors (Rs. in lacs)

Serial No | Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors

Sh Harvinder Singh | Sh. Dharmendra
Chopra (Per Month) | Kumar Batra (Per
Month)

1 Salary, Perquisites, other & other | 142.83 77.70

(ii) Non-Executive Directors
Sitting Fees:

The details of the sithng fees to the Non-Executive Directors provided as per accounts for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 is given below:

(Rs. in lacs)
Serial | Name of the Director Sitting Fees (Rs.) Per annum
No.
| Heena Gera : 1.57
2 Rajeev Kumar Sanger | 1.80
: 3 Jai Parkash Kaushik | NIL
4. Rajan Talwar | 1.58

I11. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Terms of Reference:

The Company has a Board Committee namely “Stakeholders Relationship Committee’ as
required under the provisions of Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 to specifically look into various aspects of interest of
Shareholders, debenture holders and any other security holders and other issues redressal of
shareholders complaints, share transfers/ transmission/issue of duplicate shares etc.

The Committee meets on need basis. Besides this, Director’s and Company Secretary have been
delegated the power to approve severally the registration of transfer of shares and other related
matters upto 500 shares per case.
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The Stakeholders Relationship Commuittee consists of following Directors:

Name of Member Status No. of Attended
Meetings

Sh. Jai Prakash Kaushik (Non- Chairman 5 5

Executive- Non Independent

Director)

Sh. Dharmendra Kumar Batra Member 5 5

(Executive Director)

Heena Gera{Non-Executive- 3 3

Independent Director) Wambor

*5Sh. Akhil Dada (Non-Executive Chairman 2 Z

Independent Director)

*(Ceased to be Director on 29.09.2024
During the year 5 meetings were held on  26™ May 2024, 20™ July 2024, 13™ October 2024,

24"™ November 2024 and 02™ January 2025.

During the year 19 (Nineteen) Complaints were received complaints from the sharcholders and
all stands resolved.

In order to expedite the process of share transfer & demat of shares, Board has appointed Mr.
Niraj Kumar Sehgal, Company Secretary as Complhiance Officer of the company.

Mas Services Limited, Registrar & Share transfer agent of the company to look into the work of
Share Transfer, Share Demat work, & haison with Natonal Secunties & Depository Limited
(NSDL) & Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL).

Dedicated Email for Investor Grievance
To enable Investor to register their grievances the company has designated an exclusive E mail
Id - ir@piccadily.com

I'V. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The terms of reference of the Committee includes:

a) Formulate, monitor and recommend to the Board, the CSR Policy which shall imdicate the
activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Act.

b) Recommend to the Board, modifications to the CSR Policy as and when required.

¢) Monitoring CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

d) Recommend to the Board, the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities
undertaken.
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&) Review the performance of the Company in the area of CSR including the evaluation of the
mmpact of the Company’s CSR activities.

N Review the Company’s disclosure of CSR matters.

g) Instituting a transparent monitoring mechamsm for implementation of CSR projects or
programs or activities undertaken by the Company.

h) Consider other functions, as defined by the Board, or as may be stipulated under any law, rule
or regulation including the hsting regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 or under any
applicable laws, as may be prescribed from time to time.

In compliance with the requirements of section 135 read with schedule VII of the Companies Act
2013, the Board had constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Commuttee.

Composition and Attendance at the meeting

Name of Member Status No of meetings held | Attended
Sh. Jai Prakash Kaushik (Non-Executive Member 2 2
Non Independent Director)
Sh. Dharmendra Kumar Batra (Executive Chairman 2 2
Director)
Sh. Rajeev Kumar Sanger (Non- Member 1 1
Executive- Independent Director)
*Sh. Akhil Dada (Non-Executive- Member 1 1
Independent Director)

*(Ceased to be Director on 29.09.2024

During the year 2 meetings were held on 29" June 2024 & 315 March 2025.
Risk Management Committee

Every company which falls under the Top 1000 companies of BSE market capitalization List as

on 31/03/2025 must constitute a Risk Management Committee with following scope of work:

1) To examine and determine the sufficiency of the Company's internal processes for reporting on
and managing key nisk areas.

11) To assess and recommend the Board acceptable levels of nsk.

11i) Ter develop and implement a risk management framework and internal control system.

iv) To review the nature and level of insurance coverage.

v) Any other matter
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Composition and Attendance at the meeting
Name of Member Status No of meetings held | Attended
"Sh. Rajan Talwar (Non-Executive- Chairman 3 3
Independent Director)
Sh. Rajeev Sanger, (Non-Execulive- Member 3 3
Independent Director)
*Sh. Balinder Sharma Chief 2 2
Financial
officer
##Sh. Natwar Aggarwal Chief 1 1
Financial
Officer

.*Ce:isad to be Director on 08.11.2024
*#* Appointed as CFO on 08.11.2024

During the year 3 meetings were held on 29" June 2024, 01® November 2024 and 27" March

2025.

4. General Body Meeting
(A)(i) Details of the last three 3 Annual General Meetings were held as under:

2021-22 | Apnual | Deemed Venue Wednesday, | 4:30 l. Re-appointment of Sh.
General | Piccadily  Agro | September P.M Harvinder Smgh Chopra
Meeting | Industnies 28,2022 (DIN: 00129891) as
Limited, Village Managmg Director of the
Bhadson, Umn- Company
Indn Road, Tehsil 2. Re - Appointment of Sh.
Indn, Distd. Dharmendra Kumar Baitra
Kamal, Haryana (DIN: 07947018) as Whole-
through  Video time Director of the
Conferencing Company
(VC) or Other 3.Appointment  of Mr
Audio Visual Rajeev Kumar Sanger (Din
Means (OAVM) No-08178395) as an
Independent Director
2022-23 | Annual | Deemed Venue | Thursday, 5.00 l. Re-appointment of Sh.
General | Piccadily  Agro | September PM Harvinder Singh Chopra
Meeting | Industries 28,2023 (DIN: 00129891) as
Limited, Village Muanaging Director of the
Bhadson, Umn- Company
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Indri Road, Tehsil

Indri. Distt 2. Re - Appointment of Sh.
Karnal, Haryana Dharmendra Kumar Baitra
through  Video (DIN: 07947018) as Whole-
Conferencing time Director of the
(VC) or Other Company

Audio Visual

Means (OA VM)

2023-24 | Annual | Deemed Venue | Friday, 4:30 | 1. Re-appointment of Mr.
General | Piccadily — Agro| September |P.M | Harvinder Singh Chopra
Meeting | Industries 27, 2024 (DIN: ~ 00129891)  as

Limited, Village Managing Director of the
Bhadson, Umri- Company.
Indri Road. Tehsil 2. Re-appointment of Mr.
Indri. Dist. Dharmendra Kumar Batra
Karnal. Haryana (DIN: 07947018) as Whole
lhrough Video time Director of the
Conferencing Company. i
(VC) or Other 3. To approve continuation
Kuidio Vil of directorship of Mr. Jai
Means (OA VM) Parkash Kaushik
(DIN:02354480), as Non-
executive Non Independent
Repuiaton 17 (15775f fé
Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

(ii) Resolution passed through Postal Ballot

Details of the resolutions passed through Postal Ballot as under:

Dated 30.07.2024
S.NO. Resolutions Description Type of
Resolution
Ordinary/Special
1 To raise capital by way of a Qualified Institutions Placement Special
(QIP) to eligible investors through an issuance of equity
shares and/or other eligible securities.
2 To approve the increase in the authorised share capital and Ordinary
consequent amendment to the Memorandum of Ordinary
Association
3 To consider and approve the appointment of Mr. Rajan Talwar Special

ANMNUAL REFOAT - PY2024-25

—_



Ay

PICCADGILY

(Din no 10620650) as Non-Executive Independent Director
of the company

4 To consider and approve the appointment of Ms. Heena Special
Gera (Din no: 08644677) as Non-Executive Independent
W oman Director of the company

Dated 29.08.2024
S.NO. | Resolutions Description Type of
Resolution
Ordinary/Special
1 To approve Preferential Issue/ Allotment of up to 6,72,041 Fully Special
Convertible Warrants and 31,45,146 Special Compulsory
Convertible Debentures at an Issue Price of Rs. 744/- each to
certam investors, who are part of the Non-Promoter/Public
Shareholder Category
Dated 30.10.2024
SNO. | Resolutions Description T ype of
Resolution
Ordinary/Special
1. To approve Preferential Issue/ Allotment of Up to 6,36,943 Fully Special

Convertible Warrants at an Issue Price of Rs. 785/- each to certain
investors, who are part of the Promoter Category.

Amendment in the Articles of Association of the company by Special
inserting Article 226 permitting the company to issue Equity
shares under Employees Stock Option Plan(ESOP)

3. Approval of Piccadily Agro Industries Limited -Employees Stock Special
Option Plan 2024 (“ESOP Plan™) by issuing 991479 Equity shares

[

As permitted by MCA vide its circular(s) September 25, 2023 and September 19, 2024, the
aforesaid postal ballot process was conducted only through electronic mode. Notice of postal
ballot was dispatched to those shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members/
list of beneficial owners as on the cut-off date. The Company engaged National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) as the e-voting agency for the said postal ballot process.

Further, the Company had appointed M/s P Chadha & Associates (Peer Review Certificate No.
1671/2022),Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the aforesaid
postal ballot process in a fair and transparent manner. Upon the conclusion of the remote e-
voting period, the results of the postal ballot were duly announced, submitted to the stock
exchanges, and uploaded on the Company ’s website at www.piccadily.com
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(B) Means of Communication

1) All price- sensitive information & matters that are material to shareholders are disclosed to
the BSE lmited, where the securities of the company are hsted .All submissions to the BSE
limited are made through the respective Electronic Filing systems.

1) The company intimates un-audited quarterly, half yearly & audited quarterly & annual
financial results to the BSE limited immediately after these are approved & taken on record

by the Board. These financial results are normally published in the Business Standard
(English & Hindi).

The guarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly/half yearly /annual complhances & all
other matenal events or information as detailed in regulation 30 of the Listing regulations are
filed electromically with BSE Limited through BSE on line portal. These communications are
also posted on the Compamies’ website: www piccadily.com

5.GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a) Annual (‘enural Meeting Date, Time & Venue

Date - 30 September 2025 (Tuesday)
Time - 430 P .M.
Venue Through Video Conferencmg (VC)/other audio visual means (OAVM)

Deemed Venue: Village Bhadson, Umri-Indri Road, Tehsil-Indm,
Distriet Karmal, Haryana-132109.

Financial Year: 2024 — 2025 (1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025)

Date of Book Closure: Wednesday, September 24th, 2025 to, Tuesday September 30th |
2025 (Both days inclusive).

b) Listing of Stock Exchange & Stock Code

The shares of the company continue to be histed on BSE Limited. (BSE) & Stock code of the
company 1s 530305, ISIN No. INE546C01010

The company gol its shares listed on NSE Limited (NSE) dated 02.07.2025 & Symbol of the
company is PICCADIL, ISIN No. INE546C01010

NEAPS (NSE Electronic Application Processing System)

NEAPS 15 a web-based apphication designed by NSE for corporates. All Governance Report,
Corporate Announcements, amongst others are filed electronically through NEAPS.

Note: Company has already made the payment of Annual listing Fees for the year 2025-
2026
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C. Stock Market Data

The details of monthly highest and lowest closing quotations of the equity shares of the company
and number of shares traded during the each calendar month at BSE Limited during the year
ended 31™ March 2025 are as under:

SNO. Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares
667.25 301.95 3467663
1 Apr-24
903.05 620.00 TEE5T00
2 May-24
820.00 680.40 2407199
3 Jun-24
867.35 661.00 2963691
4 Jul-24
910.70 715.15 4592494
5 Aug-24 ali
820.95 731.20 1547830
6 Sep-24
769.90 627.55 1645680
7 Oct-24
785.00 680.50 3555473
8 Nov-24
1019.90 725.00 4444468
9 Dec-24
989.85 706.25 3184661
10 Jan-25 - _ _— S
864.60 508.20 3545608
11 Feb-25
659.90 557.00 2104361
12 Mar-25

D. Share Price performance in comparison to broad based indices:

The charts given hereunder plots the movement of the Company’s Equity share prices on BSE
for the year 2024-25:
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SHARE PRICE - HIGH AND LOW
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B High Price ™ Low Price
E. Distribution of shareholding as at 31 March 2025
PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Distribution Schedule as on 31.03.2025
Nominal Value of Each Share - RS. 10/~
SHARE | NO.OF o TO | NO. OF AMOUNT %o TO
HOLDING SHAREHOLDERS | TOTAL IN RS TOTAL
OF SHARE
NOMINAL
VALUE OF
RS
1 TO 5000 H0916 01.958 4176080 41760800 4427
5001 TO 2683 3.529 2068915 20689150 2.193
10000
10001 TO 1943 2.556 2824005 28240050 2003
20000
20001 TO 551 0.725 1377656 13776560 1.460
30000
30001 TO 252 0.331 Q03856 Q038560 0958
40000
40001 TO 168 0221 TT5539 TT55390 0822
50000
50001 TO 278 0.366 2034754 20347540 2 E5T
100000
100001 AND 239 0314 BO178475 BO1T784750 B4 989
ABOVE
TOTAL Tal30 100.000 94339280 943392800 100.000
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F. Share Holding Pattern at 31™ March 2025
PICCADILY AGRO IND. LTD.

Particulars No. of Equity Shares Percentage
Promoters 6,69.52,696 7097
Bodies Corporate 901167 0.96
Individuals 19745974 20.94
NR1 909531 0.96
Clearing Members 49890 0.05
NBFC registered with 5150 0.01
RBI
AIF 4677 00.00
Foreign portfolio 566624 0.60
Investors Category 1
Foreign portfolio 107977 0.11
Investors —Category |1
IEPF 5095594 5.40
Total 94339280 100
Foreign Portfolio
Investors-Category-
LN ;?\fﬂwn ICPF, 5.40% = Promoters
Clearing  NBFC m_mg s AIB, 000% A == Bodies Corporate
Members, registered :

0.05% with REBI, 0.01% = tndividuals

NRI, 0.96%
= MR
M Clearing Members

m MBFC registered with RBI

- AR
. B Foreign Portfolio
Bodies
Corporate, 0.96% Investors- Category - 1

B Foreign Portfolio
Investors- Category - 1
I |EPF
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6. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs warrants or convertible instruments, conversion data and hkely
impact on equity. N. A.

7. Demat of Shares as on 31/03/2025

The details of demat of shares are as under;

Details No. of Equity Shares Percentage
NSDL 61074515 64.74
CDSL 30774369 32.62
PHYSICAL 2490396 2.64
TOTAL 94339280 | 100.00

Company has already made the Annual custodial charges of both NSDL & CDSL .
8. DISCLOSURES

a) All related party transactions that entered into during the financial year 2024-25 were on
arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business & were in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act & the listing regulations.

There were no matenally significant related party transactions made by the company with
promoters, Directors, KMPs or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the company at large. Suitable disclosure as required by the accounting
Standards (IND AS-24}has been made in the financial statements as required under
SEBI(LODR), Detailed related party disclosures as per accounting standards, Please refer Note
39 & 39 of the Standalone & Consolidated financial Statements.

b) Statutory comphiance, strictures & Penalties

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Stock Exchanges, SEBl & other
statutory authorities on the matters related to Capital markets during the last three years as
briefed under:

YEAR PENALITY REMARKS
2024-25 Nil -
2023-24 Nil -
2022-23 Nil -

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }

¢) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under regulation 32 (7A) Not applicable.

d) A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that None of the Directors on the Board of
the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors
of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other such Statutory authority.
The company has taken required certificate from Mr. Prince Chadha, Practicing Company
Secretary.

€) The company adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS)from 01 Aprnl 2017 with the
transition date 01 April 2016 and accordingly the financial results of the company for the three
quarters /annual have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-As)
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f) CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the
Certificate duly signed by Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra, Managing Director & Mr. Natwar
Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer was placed before the Board of Directors along with the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 at its meeting held on 20™ May 2025,
forms part of this report.

g) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has adopted a Whistle blower policy and Vigil Mechanism to provide a formal
mechanism to the Directors, employees and other external stakeholders to report their concerns
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Conduct or
Ethics policy. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The said policy is placed on the website of the Company www.piccadily.com and no
personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

- T i

Sr. No. No. of Category No Issue Price | Amount raised
Compulsory Face Per Share
Convertible Value | (Rs.)
debentures/ per
warrants share
(Rs.)
I 2849448 Convertible 744 T44 2119989312
Compulsory mnto one
Convertible Equity Share
Debentures on or before
the expiry of
09.09.2025
7 & 672041 Converted 744 744 499998504
Convertible nto one
warrants Equity Share
on 12.06.2025
3. 636943 Each warrant | 785 785 500000255
Convertible is  converted (25 % received as
warrants into One Application money
Equity Shares 1.e.125000064)
19/12/2024
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The application of proceeds/funds raised from the preferential allotment are reviewed by Audit
Committee as part of quarterly review of Financial Results and the details are also filed with the
Stock Exchanges on a quarterly basis, pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The proceeds raised through the preferential issue have been entirely utilised, for the period
under review, for the allocated objective for which they were raised and there has been no
deviations from the planned usage of funds.

The above specified statement shall be given till the time proceeds have been fully utilised for
the said purpose for which these proceeds were raised have been achieved

The Company had duly filed Statement of Deviation / Variation in Utilization of funds raised
through preferential issue of Equity shares in terms of Regulation 32 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 with both the Stock Exchanges for
the Quarter ended March 31, 2025 and same has been available on the website of the Company
at https://www .piccadily.com

i) A Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of
the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors
of Companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The

Company has taken required certificate from Ms. P. Chadha & Associates, Company Secretary

in Practice.

J) Mandatory Requirements. The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of
the Listing Regulations relating to Corporate Governance.

9. WEBSITE:

The company’s website www.piccadily.com which contains all the Familiarization program of
independent Directors, related party transactions, policy relating to material subsidiaries & other
policies are mentioned at website.

10 .Credit Ratings
Infomerics valuation and Ratings Private Limited Ratings has accorded IVR A-/Stable [IVR
Single A Minus with Stable Outlook] ratings for the purpose of borrowings from the Bank.
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11. (i) Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)

M/s Mas Services Limited

Address: T-34, 2™ Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-2, New Delhi-110020

Tel No. 01126387281, Fax no. 01126387384

Email:info@masserv.com Website: www.masserv.com

(ii) The Share transfer system: Shares in physical forms are processed by the RTA within 15
days from the date of receipt, if the documents are complete in all respects. The Managing
Director or Company Secretary has been severally empowered to approve
transfers/transmissions.

Requests for dematerhzation of shares are processed & confirmation thereof i1s given to the
respective  depositories 1.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) & Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) within the statutory time himit from the date of
receipt of share certificates provided the documents are complete in all respects.

A summary of transfer /transmission of shares etc, so approved by the Company Secretary is
placed before the Stakeholders Relationship committee.

(iii) Secretarial Audit

a) M/s P Chadha & Associates Practicing Company Secretary has conducted the Secretarial
Audit of the company. The Audit report confirms that the company has complied with the
applicable provisions of the act and the rules made there under, 1ts Memorandum & Articles
of Association, Listing regulations and the applicable SEBI Regulations except filing of one
form with MCA.

12. Investors’ correspondence may be addressed to:
Mr. Niraj Kumar Sehgal, Company Secretary,

Village Bhadson, Umrni- Indn Road,

Tehsil-Indn, District Karnal, Haryana-132109

Phone No. : 0172-2997651

E-mail: irfeipiceadily.com

13. Address for Correspondence:
SCO No. 51, Sector 30-C, Chandigarh-160030

14. Plant(s) Location
Piccadily Agro Industries Limited
Village Bhadson, Umn-Indn Road, Tehsil-Indn, Disinet Karnal, Haryana-132 109,

15. Reconciliation of Share Capital

Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the SEBI (Depositories and participants) Regulations 1996,
quarterly audit of the company’s share capital 1s carmied out by M/s Jain & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Panchkula-Haryana for the purpose of reconciliaion of the total share capital
admitted with National Secunties Depository Iimited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) and in physical form with the issued & Listed capital of the company.
The Audit confirms that the total 1ssued /paid up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematenialized form
(held with NSDL & CDSL)
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16. General
Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulations 17
to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) of Listing Regulations.

17. Total fees for all Services paid by the listed and its subsidiaries
The detail of payment of total fees to the Statutory is under:

(Rs in lacs)
Statutory Audit 2.25
Tax Audit 25
Total 2.50
GST extra

18. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company values the dignity of individuals and strives to provide a safe and respectable
work environment to all the employees. The Company is committed to providing an
environment, which is free of discrimination, intimidation and abuse. The Company believes that
it is the responsibility of the organization to protect the integrity and dignity of the employees
and also to avoid conflicts and disruptions in the work environment due to such cases.

The company has complied with provisions under the Sexual Harassment Act, 2013.

During the year, no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

19. Insider trading
There have been no instances of insider trading by any of the employees of the company at any
stage or any Exchange.

20. Certificate on Compliance of Code of Conduct

I hereby confirm that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel as
approved by the Board for the Financial Year ended 31 ¥ March, 2025.

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited

Sd/-
(Harvinder Singh Chopra)
Place: Gurugram Chairman & Managing Director
Date: 20.05.2025 DIN No. 00129891
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21. Compliance Certificate pursuance to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

We, Harvinder Singh Chopra, Managing Director and Natwar Aggarwal, Chief financial officer
do hereby certify that in respect of the annual accounts and cash flow statement for the financial
year ending on March 31%, 2025,

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

i1) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s code of
conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such intemal controls, if any, of
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

1) There has not been any significant changes in intemal control over financial reporting
during the year under reference;

i1) There has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that
the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii) There has not been any instances of significant fraud of which we had become aware and
the involvement therein, any, of the management or an employee having a significant
role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting during the year.

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Harvinder Singh Chopra Natwar Aggarwal
Date: 20/05/2025 Chairman & Managing Director ~ Chief Financial Officer

(DIN No.00129891)
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22, Certification of Directors - Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)
(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015.

To,

The Members of

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited Village: Bhadson, Umri-Indri Road, Tehsil: Indri, Distt: Karnal,
Haryana-132109

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Piccadily Agro Industries Limited having CIN: LO1115HR1994PL.C032244 and having
registered office at Village: Bhadson, Umri-Indri Road, Tehsil: Indri, Distt: Kamal, Haryana-
132109 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Yearending on
31 March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors
of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any
such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment in the
No. company

L Mr. Harvinder Singh Chopra 00129891 16.01.1995

2 *Mr. Akhil Dada 02321706 30.06.2008

3, Mr. Jai Parkash Kaushik 02354480 12.11.2011

- Ms. Heena Gera 08644677 20.12.2019

5. Mr. Dharmendra Kumar Batra 07947018 29.06.2021

6 Mr. Rajeev Kumar Sanger 08178395 29.06.2022

7. Mr. Rajan Talwar 10620650 15.05.2024

*Mr. Akhil Dada ceased to be Director on 29.09.2024

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the Company.
For P. Chadha & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Prince ChadhaProp.

M.No. 32856

C.P. No. 12409

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1671/2022
UDIN:A032856G000763410

Place: Chandigarh
Date: 11.07.2025
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23, INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited

Village: Bhadson, Umri -Indri Road, Tehsil: Indri, Distt: Karnal, Haryana-132109

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Piccadily Agro Industries
Limited CIN : LOL15HR1994PLC032244 (*“the Company™) for the year ended on March 31, 2025, as
stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para
C.D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended(“SEBI Listing Regulations™).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our examination has been limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us by the
Directors and the Management, We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

We further state that this compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For P. Chadha & Associates
Company Secretaries

sd/-

Prince Chadha

Prop.

Place: Chandigarh M.Mo. 32856
C.P. No. 12400

Date:11.07.2025 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1671/2022
UDIN: A032856G000763421
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ANNEXURE H: BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Section A: General Disclosures

I. | Details of the listed entity

1 | Corporate LO1115HRIS94PLCO3Z2244
Identity
Mumber (CIM)
of the Listed
Entity
2 | Name of the Piccadily Agro Industries limited
Listed Entity
3 | Date of 25-03-1994
Incorporation
4 | Registered Will Bhadson, UMRI-INDRI Road TEH.INDRI, Dist. Karnal Haryana, India, 232109
office address
5 | Corporate G-17. GROUND FLOOR; IMD PACIFIC SQUARE, SECTOR 15, PART 2, GURLIGRAM - 122002,
address HARYAMA
E-mail info@plccadily.com
Telephone | 0172-2997651
Website www.piccadily.com
Financial year Start date End date
for which
reporting is
being done | B R
Current 01-04-2024 31-03-2025
Financial Year
Previous 01-04-2023 31-03-2024
Financial Year | R o
Prior to 01-04-2022 31-03-2023
Previous
Financial year
10 | Name of the 1
Stock 2
Exchanmgel(s)
where shares
| are listed | I
11 | Paid-up 94339280000
___|Capital(inRs) | R R -
12 | Mame and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of any
gueries on the BRSR report B )
MName | Mr. Niraj Kumar Sehgal
Contact | 9316522075
E mail niraj.sehgal@piccadily com
13 | Reporting | Consolidated basis
boundary -
Are the
disclosures
under this
report made
ona
standalone
basis (i.e. only
for the entity)
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|
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or on a
consolidated
basis {i.e. for
the entity and
all the entities
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which farm a
part of its
consolidated
financial
statements,
taken
together).
14 | Whetherthe company has undertaken reasonable assurance of the BRSR Core? Mo
15 | Name of assurance provider
16 | Type of assurance obtained
Il. | Products and Services
17. | Details of business activities {accounting for 90% of the turnover)
Sr. Mo, Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnowver of
the entity
1 Manufacturing of Sugar | White Crystal Sugar ' 2847%
Liguor (IMFL & Country liquor) IMFL, Pet Bottles, Malt
2 Co2 gas, DDGS | B>t
15 | Products/Services sald (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnowver) |
% of total
5r. Mo, Product/Service MWIC Code Turnowver
contributed
SUGAR 15421 28.15%
COUNTRY LIQUOR 15511 28.93%
IMFL 15532 &2.92%
Iil. | Operations
19 | Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated
Number of
Location Mumber of plants offices Total
Mational 2 2 4
International 1 0 1
20 | Markets served by the entity
A Number of locations B
Locations Number
Mational [No. of States) 6
International {No. of Countries) 75
B | What is the contribution of exports as a
percentage of the total turnover of the entity? 6.48%
C | Abriefon Type of Customer Piccadily Agro Industries Limited supplies all alcohol
products to the confractors, dealers & import agencies.
IV. | Employees
a1 Details as at the end of Financial Year
A. | Employees and workers (including differently abled)
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sr. ) Tatal Male Female Other
Particulars | " v
| No. () No.(B) | %(B/A} | No.(C) | %(C/A) | No.(H) | %(H/A)
EMPLOYEES )
1 | Permanent (D) | 267 234 | 87.64% 33 | 1236% | O 0.00%
Githar than 540 538 99.63% 2 0.37% 0 0.00%
2 | permanent (E)
Total
employees|D + a07 Ti2 95.66% 35 4.34% 0 0.00%:
3| E)
WORKERS
4 | Permanent (F} 22 22 100.00% 0 0.00% Y] 0.00%
Crifenthan 212 212 100.00% o | oo00% 0 0.00%
5 | permanent (G)
Tota
| verkers 234 234 100.00% 0 0,00% 0 0.00%
6| ([F+G)
B. | Differently abled Employees and workers:
St . Total Male Farmale Other
Particulars
No. (Al No.(B) | %(B/Al | No.(C) | %(C/A) | No.(H) | %(H/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1 | Permanent (0¥ ¥ 0 0.00% a 0.00% o 0.00%
Other than
37| Permanentit) [4] o 0.00% ] 0.00% 1] 0.00%
Total
differently
abled 0 o 0.00% ] 0.00% El 0.00%
employees (D
3| +E)
DIFFERENTLY AELED WORKERS
4 | Permanent (F) 0 0 0.00% o 0.00% 0 0.00%
Other than
5| permanent [6) 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total
difisrantly 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
abled workers
| B[ [F+G)
22 Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
Mo, and percentage of Females
TGTHI[A] ol ...-F-.E.......g PSS
No. (B) %(B/A)
Board of
. b 1 16.67%
Directors
Key
MManagement 4 0 0.00%
Personnel
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Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers (Disclose trends for the past 3 years)

Turnover rate in current

Turnover rate in previous

Turnover rate in the year prior to the

Perma
nent 6.0 | 7.00 | 0.0 6.0
Emplo | 0% % 0% 0%
yees

5.00 | 7.00 | 0.00 | 5.00
Y % % %

FY (2024-25) FY (2023-24) previous FY (2022-23)
Ti
Mal | Fem | Oth ot | Mal | Fem | Oth | Tot Male Female | other | Total
= ale er al e ale er al

6.90% 7.40% | 0.00% | 7.00%

Perma
nent 50 | 000 )] 00 | 50
Work 0% % 0% | 0%
ers

4.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 4.00

4.00% 2.00% | 0.00% | 2.00%

V. | Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

24

{a) Names of holding f subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

Companies Act, 2013: (Yes/No)

(i) Turnover (in Rs.)

(iii) Net worth (in Rs.)

Does the entity
(| tmsatverotel | idcteunner Lot | TS t c A
: lary/s holding/Subsidiary/Associate/Joint | held by particp ne
Mo. | companies/joint ventures Venture listed entit Business Responsibility
(A) ¥ initiatives of the listed
entity? (Yes/No)
1 Six Trees_Dr_mks Private Subsidiary 100.00% Yes
Limited
Portavadie Distillers and
Blenders Limited .-
2 {Incorporated In United Subsiciary 100.00% ves
Kingdom)
VI. | CSR Details
75 (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Yes

8928078000.00
6828881000.00
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VIIL. | Transparency and Disclosures Compliances
2 Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on
6 Responsible Business Conduct
(If Yes, FY {:024;25} PYNIZOZ:-24}
Gri umbe umbe
Stakehoet) | SUcHanc| tien Fof ¢ of (1f
der e provid | Numbe i Numbe Edivols NA
Redressa | e web- rof bl r of e !
S I link compla iy compla e then
from - i rovi
Mechani for ints pendin Rema ints peticin F
whom : ) g : E Remarks | de
; sm in grieva filed .| rks filed ; h
complain : resoluti = resoluti the
tis Place nce during during S5
. (Yes/No/ | redres the on at the Ot
received close of close of on)
NA) s year o year th
policy) e €
year year
Cormpuns No 0 0 0 0 0 0
ties
Investors
(other
than No 0 0 0 0 0 0
sharehol
ders)
ALL ALL
Sharehol COMPLAI COMPLAI
e Yes 0 12 0 NTS 4 4] NTS
RESOLVE RESOLVE
D D
Employe COURT
es and Yes 0 0 0 0 1 25 CASES
workers
f”mmer No 0 0 0 0 o |o
Value
Chain No 0 0 0 0 0 0
Partners
Section B: Management and Process Disclosures
Disclosure P1 P2 P3 Pa P5 P6 p7 P8 P9
Questions
Policy and management processes
1. a. Whether
your entity’s
policy/policies
coyer_ sach ; Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
principle and its
core elements of
the NGRBCs.
(Yes/No/NA)
b. i
Has Hiehalicy Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
been approved
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(Yes/No/NA)
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c. Web Link of
the Policies, if
available

https://www.piccadily.com/policies

2. Whether the
entity has
translated the
policy into
procedures, (Yes
4 Mo/ NA)

Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes ¥Yes

Yes

Yes

3. Do the
enlisted policies
extend 1o your
value chain
partnerss
(ves/MafMNA)

MA

MNA MNA MNA NA MNA MNA

NA

MA

4. Name of the
national and
international
codes/cartificati
ons/labels/
standards (e.g.
Forest
Stewardship
Cauncil,
Fairtrade,
Rainforest
Alliance, Trustee)
standards (e.g.
SA BO0Q, OHSAS,
150, BIS) adopted
by your entity
and mapped to
each principle.

Mot Applicable

5. Specific
commitments,
goals and targets
set by the entity
with defined

timelines, if any.

The commitments and goals wherever required are set by the company and have heen

mentioned in the respective principles.

6. Performance
of the entity
against the
specific
commitments,
goals and targets
along-with
FeEasons in case
the same are not
met,

Mot Applicable

Governance, leadership and oversight
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7. 5tatement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related
challenges, targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this disclosure)

= ST

Environment

The Company is putting its efforts towards conserving natural resources, reducing pollution, and sustaining
the

environment, The Company is taking various initiatives for reducing the carbon footprints, water
conservation, '

usage of alternate source of energy ete. The Company continues to promote sustainable development
through

its business decisions and actions.Initiatives are being made towards ecological systems by growing maore
plants and trees.

Sacial

The Company is socially responsible towards its employees and the community at large. The Company
encourages to create and maintain a diverse, inclusive, and vibrant work environment that nurtures and
motivates its employees through various insurance and health schemes. For the community, the Company's
C5R policy intends to focus its efforts on socio economic backward groups of the society by innovatively
supporting them through programmes designed in the domains of education, health,sports and
environment.

Governance

The Company's philosophy in relation to Corporate Governance is to ensure transparent disclosures and
reporting that conforms fully to laws, regulations, and guidelines and to promote ethical conduct
throughout the

organization with the primary objective of enhancing stakeholders’ value while being a responsible
corporate

citizen. The Company has always thrived towards building trust with shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, regulators, and other stakeholders based on the principles of good Corporate Governance.

8. Detalls of the highest authority responsible for implementation and oversight of the Business
Responsibility policy (ies),

Mr. Natwar Aggarwal (Chief Financial Officer)

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/ Director responsible for Yes
decision making on sustainability related issues? (Yes / No/ NA).

If yes, provide details.

The stakeholders Relationship committee (SRC) of the board is responsible for decision making on
Sustainability issues. Refer to Corporate Governance Report for additional information on SRC.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company

Subj | Indicate whether review was undertaken by | Frequency

Bect Director/Committee of the Beard/Any other {Annually f Half yearly fQuarterly/ Any other-
for Committee | please specify)

::ul PL|P2|P3 | P4 | P5 P6|P7 (PB|P9|PL| P2 | P3 P4 |P5 P65 |P7|PB | P
Perf

orm | D | Di | Di | D0 | D [ Di ] DE | DE | D | Qu | Qu | Qu | Qu | Qu | Gu [Qu | OQu | Cu

ance | re re re re re re re re re art | art |.art |art | art | art | art | art | art
agai ct ct ct | .ot ct | ot | ot ct | ct | erl | erl | erd | erl | erl | erl | el | erl | erl
nst or |@r | or |@r | or | of | or | or | or ¥ y ¥ ¥ y W ¥ ¥ ¥
abo
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12, If answer to question (1) above is “No” iL.e, not all
Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be
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don
gin
the
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Any
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ase
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ify)

Mot
- Not applicable
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Section C: Principle-wise Performance Disclosures

This section is aimed at helping ontities demonstrate their performance in integrating the
Principles and Core Elements with key processes and decisions. The information sought is
categorized as "Essential" and "Leadership". While the essential indicators are expected to he
disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be
voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be
socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that
is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable.

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the
financial year:

Segment Total number of Topics/principles Shage of
training and covered under persons in
awareness the training amd respective
programmes held its impact category
- - - covered by
Board of Directors & The topics are the
aligned with the SWArDNEES

material topics as | programmes
identified during
the stakehaolder
consultation,
including, but ot 100.00%
limited to,
Business &
Financial
performance,
Corporate Social
Responsibility
[C5R),
assessments of
Risks associated
with Business.,
Evaluation of
internal fimancial
controls,
Digitization
initiatives,
compliance, and
Eovernance
parameters,
Companies Act,
2013, SEBI
regulations as
applicable to the
Company, Code
of Conduct for
Employees and
Prevention of
Sexual
Harassment at
Workplace{POSH)
et A statement
with respect to
the status of
compliance with
the provisions
relating to the
Maternity Benefit
Act, 1961,
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Key Managerial Personnel

The topics are
aligned with the
material topics as
identified during
the stakeholder
consultation,
including, but not
limited to,
Business &
Financial
performance,
Corporate Social
Responsibility
(CSR),
assessments of
Risks associated
with Business,
Evaluation of
internal financial
controls,
Digitization
initiatives,
compliance, and
governance
parameters,
Companies Act,
2013, SEBI
regulations as

applicable to the
Company, Code
of Conduct for
Employees and
Prevention of
Sexual
Harassment at
Workplace(POSH)
etc.

100.00%
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The topics were 100.00%
aligned with
material topics as
identified during
stakeholder
consultation,
including, but not
limited to
compliance of
Ministry of
Corporate Affairs,
Reserve Bank of
India, FEMA
POSH, \Water
and enaergy
conservation, IT
security, incident
investigation,
productivity
environment
protection,
digitization,
safety related
sessions and
sensitization of
compliances
under Code of
Conduct to
regulate,
monitor, and
report trading by
Designated
Persons.
325 Awareness 100.00%
Programmes on
Health and Safety
and On-skill
Development
Programmes

Employees other than BoD and KMPs 55

Workers
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2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in
proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/
judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall make
disclosures on the hasis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI [Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity's website):

A

PICCADILY

= ST

Monetary
Penalty/ Fine NA
Settlement NA
Compounding fee NA
Non- Monetary
Imprisonment NA
Punishment NA

3, Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases
where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed. NA

4. Does the entity have anti-corruption or

| anti-bribery policy?

Yes

If Yes, provide details in brief

PAIL covers Its Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery policy
under the Code of Conduct Policy which is availahle
on Internet, which offers a formal mechanism far all
employees to raise their voices on unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud or flag any violations of the
Company's Code of Conduct.

Provide a web-link if the entity has
| anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy

www.piccadily.com

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by
any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
| Directors 0 0
KMPs ] 0
Employees 0 0
| Workers 0 0
6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:
' FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
: Number Remarks Number Remarks
' Number of
complaints
recei?.red in 4 . 0 e
relation to issues
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| of Conflict of

| Directors
| Mumber of

Interest of the

complaints
received in
relation to issues 0
of Conflict of
Interest of the
KMPs

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties /
action taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption
and conflicts of interest.

MOT ARPPLICABLE since there were no fines, penalties, or action taken by regulators, law enforcement

agencias or judicialinstitutions on cases of corruption and conflict of interest

| 8. Number of days of accounts payables

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
i) Accounts payable x 365 days 2975536.08 4421455.04
ii} Cost of goods/services procured 56962.12 49959.96
i) Number of days of accounts 52 29
payables

9. Open-ness of business - Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading
houses, dealers, and related parties along-with loans and advances & investments, with related

parties, in the following format:

Parameter

Metrics

FY (2024-25)

PY (2023-24)

AMNMUAL REPICHT -

Concentration of Purchases

houses

a. 1) Purchases
from trading

ii':| Total purchases
iii} Purchases from
trading houses as
% of total
purchases

0.00

41717.10

0.00%

0.00

36441.70

0.00%

b. Number of
trading houses
where purchases
are made

trading houses

¢. i) Purchases
from top 10

i) Total purchases
from trading
houses

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

= ST
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-

iii) Purchases from
top 10 trading
houses as % of
total purchases
fram trading
houses

Parameter

Metrics

FY (2024-25)

PY (2023-24)

Concentration of Sales

a. 1) Sales to dealer
/ distributors
i) Total Sales

B8625.65

88625.65

82812.45
82812.45

iii} Sales to dealer /
distributors as % of
total sales

100.00%

100.00%

b. Number of
dealers /
distributors to
whom sales are
made

859

829

c. i) Sales to top 10
dealers /
distributors

27079.46

23820.26

ii) Total Sales to
dealer /
distributors

88625.65

82812.45

i} Sales to top 10
dealers /
distributors as % of
total sales to
dealer /
distributors

30.55%

28.76%

Parameter

Metrics

FY (2024-25)

PY (2023-24)

Share of RPTsin

a. i) Purchases
(Purchases with
related parties)

i) Total Purchases

291.10

42538.05

338.88

36441.70

il) Purchases
{Purchases with
related parties as
% of Total
Purchases)

0.68%

0.93%

b. i) . Sales [Sales
to related parties)

230.08

150.45

ii} Total Sales

88625.65

82812.45

fil) Sales (Sales to
related parties as
% of Total Sales)

0.26%

0.18%

c.i) Loans &
advances given to
related parties

0.00

0.00
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ii) Total loans &

| advances
iii) Loans &
advances given to
related parties as
% of Total loans &
advances

0.00

d. i} Investments in
| related parties

i) Total
| Investments made

8130.45 7680.00

2130.45 7650.00

iii) Investments in
related parties as
% of Total

| Investments made

100.00% 100.00%

Leadership Indicators

1, Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles
during the financial year

=
==

|

2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests
involving members of the Board?

If Yes, provide details of the same.

Yes, the Company has Code of conduct for Employee, Senior Management and
Directors, which requires the Employees, Senior Management and Directors of the
Company to take utmost care when participating in any transaction directly or
indirectly in which they have a director indirect interest that conflicts, or may conflict,
with the interests of the Company. They are expected to:

1, Avoid conflicts of interest

2. Refrain from accepting benefits from third parties

3. Disclose interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement (transactional
conflicts)

4, Declare interest in an existing transaction or arrangement,

5. To observe utmost care while applying for any tender and bid or adopting

new policies.

Every member of the Board and Senior Management is required to submit an
affirmation of compliance with the provisions of the code of Conduct annually

Yes
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PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is
sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of RED and capital expenditure [capex) investments in specific technologies to
improve the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex
investments made by the entity, respectively.

Details of
F'I‘ {2“24_15] P'f {2023_24} rmprc:a'u'errtents in
environmental and
I B social impacts
A& 0.00% 0.00% o |
Capex 0.00% 0.00% 0 i

2. a. Does the enti't'gr have procedures in place for sustainable s.ourc.ing?
(Yes/Nao)
b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably? 66 00% |

Yes

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end of life, for

a) Plastics (including Packaging): PAIL has intreduced the concept of re-usable packing all across its plants and
continues to explore innovative ways to convert single use packaging methods into reusable packaging methods.
PAIL also has the Life Cycle Management Process of the packaging material in place. E-waste, Hazardous Waste,
and other waste (ETP Sludge, Spent Oil, Discarded Containers, Non-Hazardous Waste, Oil-Soaked, Sludge, etc.)
are sentto the authorized processors for disposal with negligible land-fill risk.

b) E-waste: PAIL has introduced the concept of re-usable packing all across its plants and conlinues to explore
innovative ways to convert single use packaging methods into reusable packaging methods. PAIL also has the Life
Cycle Management Process of the packaging material in place. E-waste, Hazardous Waste_ and other waste (ETP
Sludge, Spent Oil, Discarded Containers, Non-Hazardous Waste, Oil-Soaked, Sludge, etc.) are sent to the
authorized processors for disposal with negligible land-fill risk.

¢} Hazardous Waste: PAIL has introduced the concepl of re-usable packing all across its plants and continues 1o
explore innovative ways to convert single use packaging methods into reusable packaging methods. PAIL also has
the Life Cycle Management Process of the packaging material in place. E-waste, Hazardous Waste, and other
waste (ETP Sludge, Spent Oil, Discarded Containers, Non-Hazardous Waste, Oil-Soaked, Sludge, etc.) are sentto
the authorized processors for disposal with negligible land-fill risk.

d) Other Waste: PAIL has introduced the concept of re-usable packing all across its plants and continues o explore
innovative ways to convert single use packaging methods into reusable packaging methods.. PAIL also has the Life
Cycle Management Process of the packaging material in place. E-waste, Hazardous Waste_ and other waste (ETP
Sludge, Spent Oil, Discarded Containers, Non-Hazardous Wasle, Oil-Soaked, Sludge, elc.) are sent to the
authorized processors for disposal with negligible land-fill risk_

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the
entity's activities {Yes / No).

If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended
Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards?

Mo

If not, provide steps taken to address the same.
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Leadership Indicators

A

PICCADILY

1. Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective [ Assessments (LCA) for any

of its products (for manufacturing industry) or for its services (far service

industry)?

Mo

If yes, provide details

e TR

to mitigate the same.

2. If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from
production or disposal of your products / services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective /
Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action taken

Action taken to mitigate significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from
production or disposal of products / services

1 Liquor

2 Sugar

5r. No. | Mame of Product/Service

while producing

PMolasses a by product

Description of the risk/concern |
Foul smell & spent wash emanating

Action Taken

Zero Liquid

| Discharge(zL0)
i Sold to Pharmag other

Industries

NA

3, Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production
(for manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).

&4, Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes)
reused, recycled, and safely disposed, as per the following format;

FY (2024-25) ) PY (2023-24)
Safely Safely
Re-Used Recycled | Disposed | Re-Used | Recycled | Disposed
Plastics lincluding packaging) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 i 0.00 |
E waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00
Hazardous waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other waste 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00
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PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees,
including those in their value chains
Essential Indicators
1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:
' % of employees covered by
| Health Accident Maternity Banafits Paternity Day :.:?re
Category Tota . insurance insurance Benefi‘ts% Nfa:ihtie;
L Mum ; Ly &
WAL | ey 'tf‘ ,i? her | %(C/ A} ””{”D"f” 1;';? '::'?E? £/ | ber | (£/
(8) < Al 13| A)
Permanent employees
| 0.00 : 0.0 0.0
Mo 234 [a] % 222 F4.87% 0 e o 0%
0.00 0.00 0.0
— 33 i} & a3 100,005 0 % 0 0%
| .00 0.00 0.0 0.0
Either 0 ¥ o 4] 0.00% 0 a 0 % 0O 054
0.00 0.00 .0 0.0
Total ! 267 0 % 255 95.51% 0 % 0 o% | 0 0%
Other than permanent employces
0,00 0.0 0.0
hAale 538 0 a 438 B1.41% 0 o 0 oy
.00 0.00 0.0
Female 1 2] % | e | > 0] O | % 10 fow
0.00 0,00 0.0 0.0
Other | ¢ B % 9 s d % g 0% g 0%
0.00 0.00 0.0 0.0
540 o 440 1.48% a a ]
Total | 9 5 94 0% 0%
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
% of workers covered by -
) Health . Accident Maternity benefits Paternity Da'g.r E;r_e
o b WSUTANGE : insurance | Benefits Facilities
Mum Mum kS Mum %
VB | i 'ff E; ber | %(C/A) ””t"[;]'f‘er 9;;? :'_';";E']’ (E/ | ber | (F/
Category | 1By L€ | . i 1 L AL | (F) [ A )
Permanent workers
0.00 0.0 0.0
Male 22 i} o% 22 10:0.00% 0 0% 0 0%
0.00 0.00 0.0
Female & L 2% ) W | o | S ° = | 1 ® low|
0.00 0.00 0.0 0.0
Other | % | % | e | B | RE P lw | % Jow| % |ow
| 0.00 0.00 o0 0.0
o 1001 L]
Total e % W G : % ¥ D% 0%
Other than permanent warkers
' 0.00 0.0 o0
Male - 212 0 o% 0 0,005 0 0% o 056
0.00 0.00 0.0
[E] [u} a 0,
Female % Gk g % M 0%
0.00 .00 0.0 oo
Other 9 d % & Q0% ki % O low| ° |om
| 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.0
Yotal 212 o} % a 0.00% 0 % 0 0% 0 05
€. Spending on measuras towards well-being of employees and workers
_{including permanent and other than permanent} in the following format:
FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
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i) Cost Incurred
o wellbeing
FHEasUres
{well-being
measures
means well-
being of
=mployeesand 16552000.00 9109000.00
workers
lincluding male,
female;
permanent and
other than
permarnent
employeas and
workers)
it} Total revenue
B92807E000.00 §289414000.00
of the company
iii} Cost incurred
onwellbeing
Measures asa % 0.15% 0:11%
of total revenue
of the company | |
2. Details of retirement benefits
: F¥ {2024-25]) PY [2023-24)

Deduc
ted
and

No.of MNo.of MNo.of Mo.of deposi
Benefits employees workers Deducted and employees workers ted
covered asa | covered asa depasited with the covered asa % | covered as with
% of total % of total autharity (Y/N/M.A) of total a % of total the
employeess workers employees wiorkers author
ity
/NS
. M.AL)
PF 33.00% 73.00% Yas B2.00% B3.00% Yixs
Gratuity 100.00% 100.00% Yes 100.00% 100.00% |  Yes
E5l 1.75% 85.24% Yes 4.00% 86.00% [ Yes
Others — please | : |
: I
sy | Add Details |
3. Accessibility of workplaces
Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and Viis |
workers, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabllities Act, 20167
If not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard,
4, Does the entity have an egual cpportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with K
Disabilities Act, 20167
Hso, providea |
web-link to the
palicy.
5. Return to work and Retentien rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental
| teawe,
Fermaneant employees Permanent workers |
| Returnto Retention '
Gender wark rate rate Return to work rate Retention rate
Male 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00
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Famale 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other {1 0.00 0.00 0.00 =
Total 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
B. s there a mechanism available to recelve and redress gnevances for the following -
categories of employess and worker? &
(i
Yes,
then
If yes, give :;::i
detalls of the Yes/ e
mechanism in Mo
; the
brief.
miach
anis
min
brief)
Permaneant No
Waorkers
Other than
Permanant No
Workers [l || -
Permanent i
Emplayeas
Other than
Permanent Mo
Employees
7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:
FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
— Me.of
) empioyeas
employees / _
Total workers in Total ,n"warker.s "
employaes respective employees / FESpScye
Category e B categoryw | % (D)
warkers in category, (B A) waorkers in PR o)
respective who are part respective ofp
category [4) of category (C) Senriataa
association(s) "5} e
ar Unian {B) (o]
Total Il I o
Permanent
Employees 267 0 0,00% 179 1] 0.00%
Male 234 0 0,00% 155 0 0.00%
Female 33 o 0.00% 24 o 0.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
Total
Permanant
‘Workers. 2 | e 0.00% 22 0| 000%
Male 22 o 0.00% 22 8] 0.00%
Female 0 0 0,005% 0 0 0,005
Other 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
8. Details of training given to employees and workers:
..... FY (2024-25) PrEoasae) 0000
Category Tota On Health G kil On Hﬂglth ang On Skill
| (A} and safety st Total (D) safety upgradatio
| measures ok measures n ;|
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No. | %(B | No. %(C/ No. | %(E/ | No. | %(F ]
(B /A i &) [E} 2] (F} | /&)
Employees
10000 10¢.0 100,
7 BE7 41 99% 420 42 4
Mle % g || ' ® | o% | **] oow
100.0 104.0 100,
Eaiali 35 35 ot a5 100,005 24 24 0% 24 a0
0.00 0.00
Other [ @] % | s | O] 0% | O |0 [0 K| |
10000 100.0 100,
722 722 454 62.88% 444 EE 444
Total 0 0% Q0%
Warkers
100.0 100.0 100,
Male . 177 | L7 | ’l_'l*}é. | 575 | 324.86% - 471 | 471 | o | 4?1” U@v n
0.00 0.00
4} ] o 0.00% ] o 0.00% [}
Famale % 0 %
0.00 0.00
Gikie 0 ] 5 0 0.00% 0 ] 0.00% 0 ng
100.0 10000 100,
7 77 15 . 471 47 a7
Total il s ox | ° 24.86% 1 ow Y oom
9, Details of perfarmance and career development reviews of employees and
worker:
FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Category Tota | No. 2% (B | Total Mo
% (ESD
A | @ | /e | (o (€) i
Employaas
100.0
Male . 6&7 687 oo | 420 . 420 I 100,002 | I
100.0
35 35 24 24 10:0.0
Female 0% i
0.00
Other 4] ] 5 0 0 0.00%
100.0
722 72 444 444 i
Total s 2 | ow ity
Warkers
100.0
7 4 ;
Male 177 17 0% 471 71 100,002
0.00
Famale o v % 0 v 0.00%
0.00
0 ] o 0 0.005%
Other %
100.0
) 4 h
Total 177 177 0% 471 71 100.00%
10. Health and safety management system: _ i
aWhether an occupational health and safety
management system has been implemented by Yes
_the entity? (Yes/ No/ NA}. | |
h 'IH‘H et dumwm Tresalih, sed
If yes, the coverage such system?® ﬁ“ Jpciact” mbpatiiing. ot
::# :ﬂﬂmhmuﬂ‘}ﬂ
Toa =i T sakely Wl
b. What are the processes used to identify work- mumﬁ-h o esas et
related hazards and assess risks on a routine ancd | and i e @ socsed adbiies Brough koo
non-radtine basis by the entity? e
¢. Whether you have processes for workers to
report the work related hazards and to remove Yes
themselves frorm such risks?
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d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have
access to non-occupational medical and Yes
healthcare services?
11. Details of safety related incidents, in
the following format:
Safety Cate FY PY
Incident/Numb gory (202 {202
ar ., 4-25) | 3-24) 1=
Emp
Lost Tirme Injury loye 0.00 0.00
Frequency Rate [
[LTIFR) (per one
i Wor
million-person 0.00 0.00
hours warked) kers
Emp
laye 4] 4]
Total recordable | es | .
work-related Wor
ap [u) 0
s kers
Ernp
loye o i}
Mo, of fatalities | es L |-
o0l R 0
kers
High Ernp
Cconsequence loye ] a]
work related es L
injury orill- ) *Including in the cantract
health Wor waorkforce
: 4] (1]
(excluding kers
fatalities)
! il s oy et Mock Drlts ard i ealcly
12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe. | 0 o B o e i - i e ey
and healthy work place.  Puci R .. 2igan
13, Number of Complaints on the
fallowing made by employeas and
workers: - . . | =
FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Pandi
ng
Filed | resol Filed 5
duiri ution duri Pendlvg
Rema resolution
ng at ng Remarks
rks at the end
the the the
of year
year arnd year
of
year
Working
Conditions q & 9 v
Health & Safety 0 a ] o
14. Assessments for the year: 15. Prowide detaids of any cormective action taken or underway to address safaty-related incidents
R e us, of your plants and | (fany) and on significant risks / concerns ansing from assessments of health & safety practices
alfices that were and working condibons. As a proactive measure, several activities such as free medical treatment,
assessed (by entity or | OfEanEation of medical camps, awareness programimes an varous 35 pacts are undertaken by the
statutary authorities Campany. Vanous safety protocols/S08s are in place 1o ensure workplace safety and safety of
or third parties) team members. All leading and Lageing indicators are capiured and accordingly, corrective, and
Health and preventive actons are planned and implemented across all operations.
safety practicas 100.00%
Warking
Conditions _100.00% _
Leadership Indicators
1 Does the entity extend any life Insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of
[&) Employeas (Y] Yes
1B} Warkers (¥/MN]). Yes
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No, the company
doesn’'t have any
value chain partners.!

2. Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory
dues have been deducted and deposited by the value chain partners,

3. Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high conseguence work related
injury / ill-health / fatalities {as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been are
rehabilitated and placed in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in
suitable employment:

No. of employees/workers
that are rehabilitated and
placed in suitable
employment or whose
family members have been
placed in suitable

Total no. of affected
employees/ workers

employment
PY FY |
(2023- | (2024-
FY {2024-25) 24) 25) | PY(2023-24)
Employees 1] 0 | o0 0
Workers 0 0 a a
4. Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate '
continued employability and the management of career endings resulting Mo
from retirement or termination of employment? [Yes/ No/ NA)
5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:
% of value chain
partners {by
value of business

done with such

partners) that

were assessed
Health and safety practices 0.00%
Working Conditions 0.00%
6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to
address significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health Mo such assessments
and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners. were undertaken

during the year under
review. However, we
may do it in the future
to address the health
and safety concerns of
our value chain
partners

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its
stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity,
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Stakeholder mapping is undertaken at various levels, covering the Company’s plant level and corporate level,

PAIL identified the key stakeholder groups by considering the individuals or entities that have a significant
interest or influence on our activities, operations, or success. The list of identified stakeholders includes the
Employees, Communities, Suppliers / Service Providers, Opinion Leaders / Experts / Academic institutions,
Media, Customers, Investors, Sharehaolders and Regulators / Government Autharities.

2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with
each stakeholder group.

Whetity Purpose and scope
identified Details of Details of ¢ :
as Channels Other Frequenc Other ﬂ. engalgemenl
5r. | Stakehold | Vulnerabl of Channels y of Freguency :nc!wf;lmg Ky
; topics and
Mo. | erGroup e& COMMuURic of engagem of :
- _ 1 concerns raised
Marginali atian communic ent engageme ;
: during such
zed ation nt dhganetaant
Group
Regulator No E-mail Others — Need- Compliance-
y bodies/ please based related
Governme specify reguirements such
ntf as the filing of
Industry periodic returns,
Associatio reports,
ns payment of taxes,
i . . . . | et .
2 | Opinion Mo E-mail Others - Need- Compliance to
Leaders / please based legal
Experts / specify requirements,
Academic advice on
Institution business, legal, tax
5 and environment-
| related issues.
Investors/ Na E-mail Others — Annual, Regulatory
Funders/ please Quarterly | compliances,
Sharehald specify Monthly, | financial
ars Weelkly, performance and
Daily business updates
4 | Vendors/ Yes E-mail Others - Annual, To share and
Suppliers/ please Cuarterly, | understand mutual
Cantracto specify Monthly, | needsand
rs/ Sellers Weekly, expectations
Daily including for
guality, cost &

delivery, growth in
business

avenues. Also
Jfoensure
compliance to
ethical practices.

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }

1151



3“;}

PICOCADILY

e TR

5 Mo Other Customer Others — MNeed- Promote and grow
Customer Meets, Key please based business by
s Account specify educating

Process,Su them about the
rveys; product, services,
Feedbhack and new
calls; Traini initiatives {if any).
ng Understanding
Forums;Dir their
ect expectations about
Wisits products and
zervices and
ways to improve
therm. Fulfill
tramsactions
involved for doing
business. Brand
Satisfaction
Survey,

6 | Local Yes Other Meetings Others — PAIL has identified
communit with local please the disadvantaged,
ieg community specify wilnerable and

sPublic marginalized
hearing stakeholders
(CSR initsareasof
Initiatives operation, Based

an their needs,the
Company engages
in initiatives
related to
healthcare, educati
on, infrastructure
development,
provision forsafe
drinking water,
fighting hunger
and sustainable
livelihoods, st

Annual, Thiese objectives

Quarterly, are achieved

Maonthly, through the

Weekly,Dai | Company's C5R

[y initiatives,

7 | Employee Mo Cther sunrise Others — Annual, Employeswelibain

5 and sunset please Quarterly, | g Enhancing
meetings, specify Maonthly, | efficiencyand
weekly/ Weekly,Dai | productivity,
manthly Iy Imparting training
reviews,HR through regular
forum;meea Programmes;
ting increasing
stownhalls: awareness of all as
focused pects of the
group business (codes,
discussions walues,
meetings. etc. ). Healthandsaf
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& | Managem

ety,Rewards,and
recognitions

Mo E-mail Others = | Board To meet the
ent/ please meetings | highest standards
Board specify with of governance.
defined Guidance on
frequency, | smoath
operations,
improving
efficiency and
| productivity.
9 Media/NG Mo Other Regular Others — Ongoing miaintaining
O Interaction please guality standards,
5 specify health ,

wellbeing,a nd in
clusive growth in
the community.
Interaction is done
with

MNGO's to do need
analysis for the
C5R project related
to Local
Community and
communication to
local media for
AWarensss

. B _____Leadership Indicators —
1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic,
environmental, and social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such

consultations provided to the Board.

The Campany performs the materiality assessment periodically. By using the Principles of Global

Reporting Initiatives to pin point the Company’s crucial economic, environmental, and social issues,

stakeholder assessment was carried out. The identification of material issues is based on inputs
from the stakeholder engagement process, global and sectoral sustainability trends, and other

factors. The comprehensive materiality evaluation helps the Company prioritize strategies, policies,

and action plans relating to economic, environmental, and social conseqguences by providing
context for sustainability. The outcomes of the materiality analysis are provided to the Board .

2. Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management

of environmental, and social topics,

Yes

if so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on these
topics were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

AMNMUAL REPICHT -

Yes _Based on the consultation PAIL has adopted policies which include the CSR palicy, 2s well as PAIL Code of Condwct PAIL has implemented

various C5R programmes and centinucusly improved on the HR practices. We take this feedback from the stakeholders ta improve our

performance.
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3. Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the
concerns of vulnerable/ marginalized stakeholder groups.

The Company has identified avenues to be meaningfully engaged with the communities through
structured projects for improving their livelihood through education, skill-based trainings as well as
health awareness programs. Under its CSR, the Company has been driving various activities to uplift the

marginalized and vulnerable community. Details of CSR initiatives are available at the Company’s webszsite
www.piccadily.com

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }
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Essential Indicators

e TR

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(izs) of
the entity, in the following format:

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Category Total | NE.af . %@ | Total ‘ e af Y
(A) employees/worker Ia) (© employees/worker €
s covered (B) 5 covered (D)
Employees _
100,00 100.00
T 267 267 o 179 178 5
Other than 540 can 100.00 365 265 100:.00
permanent %o i
100.00 100.00
Total Employees HoF BaE o s s o6
Workers
100.00 100.00
Permanent =2 =2 o 22 £Z S
Cther than i 544 100.00 449 449 100.00
permanent % %%
100,00 100.00
Total Workers &4 2 % L AT E
2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
FY (2024-25) | _PY(2023-24)
Equal to Mare than Equal to Maore than
Pinimum Wage Minimum Wage | Minimum Wage Minimum Wage
Category Taotal | N N | Total | N M
(A) | o 0. o} | o o.
| BEMA || e/ €| ®E || %(E/o)
) ] ] |
. Employees :
PJ | 1
267 | D 0.00% & 100.00% 179 | O 0.00% 7 100.00%
Permanent 7 | 9
2 1
234 8] 0.00% 3 100.00% 155 0 0,005 5 100, 0%
Male 4 ! 3 |
3 2
33 0 0.00% 100, 00% 24 0 0,005 100, 00
Female : —— = o | e 4 B
_Dther 4] o 0.00% o 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0.0 %
1 4 6 2
Other than 540 1 21.85% 2 78.15% 265 1 23.02% 0 76.98%
Permanent 3 2 | | 4
1 4 | ' p 2
538 1 21.56% 2 78.44% 265 1 23.02% 0 76.98%
Male 6 o 2 - 4
Female b 2| 10000% | D 0.00% ] 0 0.00% o 0.00%
Other 0 0 0.00% i) 0.00% 8] 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
rrEnat-2s |

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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Waorkers
22 5 22.73% 1 TT.27% 22 0] 0.0 % 100.00%
Permanent 7 2
22 5 22.73% A F1.271% 22 0 O, (2 : 100005
Male F 2
Famale 0 0 0.00% L] 0.00% 0 L] 0,002 0 0.00%:
Other o |0 0.00% 0 0.00% o |0 0.00% 0 0.00%
2 1 2
Other than 212 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 449 9 44, 10% 5 55.90%
Permanent -2 B -
' 2 1 2
212 1 100.00% 0 0.00% 449 9 A4.10% 5 55.90%
Male ; & | . ; B = 1
Female 0 |o| 000% |0 o000% 0 |0 ©000% |0/ 000%
Other ] 0 0.00% a 0.00% o o 0.00% o 0.00%
3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:
‘a2, Median remuneration / wages: -
Male Female Other
Median Median Median
remunerati remunerati remunerati
Numb | on/salary/ | Numb | on/salary/ | Numb | on/salary/
er wages of er wages of er wages of
respective respective respective
category category category
Board of Directors (BoD) 6 19569250 1 0 8] 0
Key Managerial Personnel 4 9356014 0 0 o 0
SRppesyaliEr-hn Bl 254 | 256646695 | 29 3054420 0 0
and KMP
Waorkers 759 13569331 0 0 a 0
b. Gross wages paid to females:
FY (2024-25) PY (2023-248)
Gross wages paid to females 33265137.00 28532268.00
Total wages 288626373.00 299714350.00
Gross wages paid to females
{Gross wages paid to 11.53% 9.52%
females as % of total wages)
4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible
for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or Yes
contributed to by the business?
5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances | The Company has a Whistle Blower
related to human rights issues. Palicy that allows and encourages its
stakehaolders to raise concerns about
the violations agaimst the Code of
Conduct. Mecessary actions are taken
to address the concerns/issues in the
best interest of the aggrieved parson.

ARMUAL REPOAT - FY2024-25 |
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6. Mumber of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Filed Rending Filed Sl
ducsn resolution S aE diiins fhe resolution | Remark
& at the end & at the end 5
the year year
of year of year

Sexual Harassment (i} 0 0 0
Discrimination at 0 0 0 0
workplace
Child Labour 0 0 0 0
Forced
Labour/inveluntary 0 0 0 0
Labour
Wages 0 0 0 0
Other hll.Jman rights 0 0 0 0
related issues

7. Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, in the following format:

_ FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
i} Tatal Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment on of '
Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and i 4]
Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH)
ii) Female employees [ workers o 0
i) Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees /
workers
iv) Complaints on POSH upheld ; i) 0

8. Mechanisms to prevent adverse conseguences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases,
The Whistle Blower policy mentions a clause on maintaining confidentiality of complainant/ EI'IEIJI'“'I_E
protection against victimization. It states that the disclosures of wrongful conduct are submitted ona
confidential basis or submitted anonymously. Such disclosures are confidential to the extent possible,
convenignt with the need to conduct an adeguate investigation. The Company is obligated to take
stringent actions against any director, supervisor or employee found to have sa violated this clause.

9, Do human rights reguirements form part of your business agreements and
contracts? (Yes/Mo/NA)

Yes

10. Assessments for the yvear:

were assessed (by entity or

parties)

% of your plants and offices that

statutory authorities or third
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Child labour 0.00%
Forced/involuntary labour 0,00
Sexual harassment 0.00%
Discrimination at workplace 0.0
Wages .00
Others — please specify NA

11. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns

arising from the assessments at Question 10 above.

Mo corrective action was taken as no instance were reparted on the above issues, hence the guastion is

not applicable.

Leadership Indicators

1. Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights

grievances/complaints. NA

2, Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted. NA

3, Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the reguirements

of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167 To be

reviewed

4. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by vallue of business done
with such partners) that were assessed

Sexual harassment 0.00%
Discrimination at workplace 0.00%
Child Labour 0.00%
Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour 0.00%
Wages 0.00%

PRINCIPLE 6: Business Should Respect and Promote Human Rights

1. Details of total energy consumption (in loules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Whether total energy consumption and energy intensity is
Yes
applicable to the company?
| FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Revenue from operations (in Rs.)
| 292807800:0.00 828941406400
Parameter Units | FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }
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From
renewable
sources

Total
electricity
consumption
(A)

Gigajoule (G))

127037.00

12085014.00

Total fuel
consumption

(8)

Gigajoule (G1)

0.00

0.00

Energy
consumption
through other
sources (C)

Gigajoule (GJ)

0.00

.00

Total energy
consumed
from
renewable
sources
[A+B+C)

Gigajoule (Gl)

127037.00

18085014.00

From non-
renewable
SOUrces

Total
electricity
cansumption
(D)

Gigajoule {G)

2589.00

53136.00

Total fuel
consumption

(E)

Gigajoule (Gl)

83.01

590941.46

Energy
consumption
through other
sources (F)

Gigajoule {G1)

0.00

0.00

Total energy
consumed
fram nan-
renewable
SOUrCes
(D+E+F)

Total energy
consumed
(A+B+C+D+E+
Fl

Gigajoule (GJ)

Gigajoule (GJ)

2672.01

129709.01

644077.46

18729091.46

Energy
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
(Tatal energy
consumed [/
Revenue from
operations)

Gigajoule (G)) /
Rs.

0.0000145282

0.0022593987

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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Energy

intensity per

rupee af

turnover

adjusted for

Purchasing

Power Parity Gigajoule {Gl) /
(PPP) Rs,
[Total energy

consumed /

Revenue from

operations

adjusted for

PFP}

0.00

0.00

Energy
intensity in
terms of
physical
Output

Gigajoule (Gl) 0.00

0.00

Energy
intensity
{optional) -
the relevant
metric may be
selected by
the antity

Gigajoule (Gl) 0.00

0.00

Mate: Indicate if any independent assessment/
evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external
agency? (Y/N)

If yes, name of the external agency.

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as
designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance,
Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of
India?

Mo

If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme
have been achieved. In case targets have not been
achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

2. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water,

Parameter FY (2024-25)

Water
withdrawal by
sgurce (in
kilolitres)

PY (2023-24)

in the following format:

_water

_Groundwater

{i) Surface 0.00 0.00

(i) 255117.00 210826.00
(iif) Third

0.00 0.00
party water

{iv) Seawater / |
desalinated 0,00 0.00
water |

AMNMUAL REPICHT -

Fr2n24-z5 |



x’};

PICCADILY

e TR

{v] Others

Total volume
of water
withdrawal (in
kilolitres) (i + i

00T+ v+ v)

Total volume
of water

consumption
{in kilolitres)

0.00

255117.00

255117.00

0.00

21082600

Z10826.00

Water
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
{Total water
consumption /
Revenue fram
operations)

0.0000285747

0.0000254332

Water
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
adjusted for
Purchasing
Power Parity
{rPP)

(Total water
consumption /
Revenue from
operations
adjusted for
PFF)

0.00

0.00

Water
intensity in
terms of
physical
output

0.00

0.00

Water
intensity
(optional) -
the relevant
metric may be
selected by
the entity

0.00

0.00

Mote: Indicate if any independent assessment,
evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external

agency?

If yes, name of the external agency.

Mo

4. Provide the following details related to water

discharged:
Parameter

FY (2024-25)

PY (2023-24)

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in

kilolitres)

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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(i} Te Surface
water

0.00

0.00

Mo treatment

0.00

0.00

With
treatment =
please specify
level of
treatment

0.00

0.00

{ii) To
Groundwater

0.00

0.00

Mo treatment
With
treatment —
please specify
level of
treatment

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

{iii) Ta
Seawater

0.00

0.00

Mo treatment
With
treatment —
please specify
level of
freatment

{iv) 5ent to
third-parties

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Mo treatment

0.00

0.00

With
treatment —
please specify
level of
treatment

(v} Others

0.00

67726.00

0.00

5970.00

Mo treatment
With
treatment —
please specify
lewvel of
treatment

.00

6772600

0.00

5970.00

Total water
discharged {in
kilalitres)

67/726.00

970,00

Mote: Indicate if any independent assessment/

evaluation/fassurance has been carrled out by an external

agency? (Y/N)

If ves, name of the external agency.

Mo

5. Has the entity implemented a

mechanism for Zero Liguid

Discharge?

Yes

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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If yes, provide details of its
coverage and implementation.

The Company has adopted effective mechanism of 2ero liquid discharge
through ETP & STP systems The recycled water is used within the plants itself.

6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG amissions) by the entity, in the following format:

.‘-'.d;hetl.'.mr air emissions tnther than GHG emissinns-] by the Yes
entity is applicable to the company?

Parameter P'“"‘::i':““f" FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Mk Kg 102300.00 101376.00
S0x KE 54.00 66.52
Particulate
matter (PM) Kg a504,00 17424.00
Persistent
arganic
pollutants Kg v00 Ll
(POP)

WVolatile
organic

L0 0.0
compounds Ke L e
{voc)
Hazardous air
pollutants Kg 0.00 0.00
(HAP)
Others —
please specify
Mote; Indicate if any independent assessment)/
evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external Mo
agency? [Y/N)
if yes, name of the external agency.

7. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1and &

following format:

cope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the

Whether greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2
emissions) & its intensity is applicable to the company?

Yes

Parameter

Unit FY (2024-25)

PY (2023-24)

Total Scope 1
emissions
{Break-up of
the GHG into
CO2, CH4,
N20, HFCs,
PFCs, 5F6,
NF3, if
available)

MiCo2e 0.00

0.00

AMNMUAL REPICHT -

Total Scope 2
emissions
(Break-up of
the GHG into
C02, CHA,
N20, HFCs,

PFCs, 5F6,

MICOZe 0.00

0.00
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NF3, if
available)

Total Scope 1
and Scope 2
emission
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
{Total Scope 1
and Scope 2
GHG
emissions /
Revenue from
operations)

MtCO2e / Rs.

0.00

;’};
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0.00

Total Scope 1
and Scope 2
emission
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
adjusted for
Purchasing
Power Parity
{(FPP)

(Total Scope 1
and Scope 2
GHG
emissions [
Revenue from
aperations
adjusted for
PPP)

MtCo2e /[ Rs.

0.00

0,00

Total Scope 1
and Scope 2
emission
intensity in
terms of
physical
output

MECO2e

0.00

0.00

Total Scope 1
and Scope 2
emission
intensity
{optional) =
the relevant
metric may be
selected by
the entity

MLCO2e

0.00

0.00

Mote: Indicate If any Independent

assessment,

evaluation/assurance has been
carried out by an external

| agency? (Y/N)

Mo

If yes, name of the external

agency.
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8. Does the entity have any
project related to reducing Green
House Gas emission?

If Yes, then provide details.

Yeas

Target undertaken

by Company

9, Pravide details related to waste management by the
entity, in the following format:

Parameter

FY (2024-25) |

PY (2023-24)

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

Plastic waste
(A)

14.765

0.273

E-waste (B}

0.00

0.708

Big-medical
waste (C)

0.00

0.00

Construction
and
demolition
waste (D)

252.00

265.00

Battery waste

(E}

0.00

0.00

Radioactive
waste (F)

0.00

0.00

Other
Hazardous
waste. Please
specify, if any.
()

Other Man-
hazardous
waste
generated (H).
Please specify,
if any. (Break-
up by
composition
i.e. by
materials
relevant to
the sector)

0.025

20,047

0.045

0.145

Tatal (A+B +C
+D+E+F+0G

tH)

Waste
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
(Total waste
generated /
Revenue from
operations)

286.837

0.0000000321

266.171

00000000321

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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Waste
intensity per
rupee of
turnover
adjusted for
Purchasing
Power Parity
(PPP)

{Total waste
generated [/
Revenue fram
operations
adjusted for
FPP)

0.00

0.00

Waste
intensity in
terms of
physical
output

0.00

0.00

Waste
intensity
{optional) —
the relevant
metric may be
selected by
the entity

0.00

0.00

For each category of waste generated, total waste
recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery
operations {in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i} Recycled 125088.00 148500.00
(i) Re-used 0.00 0.00
{iti) Other

recovery 0.00 0.00
operations

Tatal 125088.00 148500.00

For each :ai':eg”ﬁry of waste g&néfat;e&. total waste
disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i} Incineration 0.00 0.00
(i} Landfilling 9504.00 6270.00
(iii) Other

disposal 0.00 0.00
operations

Total 9504.00 6270.00

Note: Indicate if'anv'Fnd'e penﬁeﬁi As5E5s meni‘.}
evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external

agency? [Y/N)

Mo

If yes, name of the external agency.

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy
adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous
and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the
practices adopted to manage such wastes.
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We comply with all regulations concerning
the safe & responsible management of
waste material, The waste is disposed

off to authorized vendors.

11, If the entity has operations/offices infaround
ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife
sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity

hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where il
environmental approvals / clearances are required, please

specify details in the following format:

12, Details of environmental impact assessments of

projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, Mil

in the current financial year:

13. Is the entity compliant with
the applicable environmental
law/ regulations/ guidelines in
India; such as the Water
(Prevention and Control of
Pollution) &Act, Air (Prevention
and Control of Pollution) Act,
Environment protection act and
rules thereunder (¥/N/NA).

Yes

If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

Leadership Indicators

1, Water withdrawal, consumptian and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres):

For each facility / plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information:

Details For each facility f plant located in areas of water stress

Sr. No. Particulars
1 MName of the area District Karnal Haryana
2 Mature of operations Manufacturing Unit
3 Water mthdrawal, tﬁnﬁunﬁﬁfiun and diEEHai’ge"in the - i o
following fnrrg at: .
P FY (2024-25) | PY (2023-
24)
{i) Surface water 0.00 U'DD
(i) Groundwater 50906.00 | 210826.00
(i) Third party water 0.00 0.00.
{iv) seawater / desalinated water 0.00 0.00
{v) Others 0.00 0.00]
Ezt:jllslc;i::;a of water withdrawal 50906 210826
Total valume of water consumption (in kifolitres) 50906.00 |210826.00
Water intensity per rupee of turnover {Water consumed / turnover) 0.00 0.00
Water intensity {optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the entity 0.00 0.00
Water discharge by destination and level of treatment ({in kilolitres) 0 0

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }
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{i} Into Surface water 0.00 Q.00
Mo treatment Q.00 .00
___With treatment — please specify level of treatment 0 0
(i} Inte Groundwater (.00 0.00
Mo treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment — please specify level of treatment i 0
{iii}) Into Seawater a 8]
Mo treatment 0.00 0.00
With treatment — please specify level of treatment 0.00 0.00
{iv) Sent to third-parties ) o
No treatment 0.00 _©:00
With treatment — please specify level of treatment 000 0.00
{v] Others 64441 5970
Mo treatment 0.00 0
With treatment — please specify level of treatment 64441.00 5970.00
Total water discharged {in kilolitres) 64441 5570
Maote: Indicate if any independent assessment/
evaluationfassurance has been carried out by an external Mo

_agency? (Y/N)

If wes, name of the external agency.

2. Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

Whether total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity is No

Parameter Unit FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
Total Scope 3
amissions
{Break-up of
the GHG into
CO2, CH4,
M20, HFCs,
PFCs, 5F6,
MEZ, if
_available)
Total Scope 3
emissions per
rupee of
turnover
Total Scope 3
emission
intensity
{optional) —
the relevant
metric may be
selected by
the entity
Mote: Indicate if any independent assessment,/
evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external
agancy? [¥/N)

If yes, name of the external agency.

3.With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported
at Question 10 of Essential Indicators above, provide details
of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on

ARMUAL REPOAT - FY2024-25 | {168
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remediation activities.

4, If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or
used innovative technology or solutions to improve
resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions /
effluent discharge / waste generated, please provide details
of the same as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per

the following format:

A
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5, Does the entity have a
business continuity and disaster
management plan?

Details of entity at which
business continuity and disaster
management plan is placed or
weblink.

Yes

Yes, PAIL is committed to ensuring uninterrupted aperations and the
safety of its stakeholders. It covers the identification of critical business
functions, risk assessments, and the implementation of preventive
measures. It involves regular risk assessments, employee training, and
the establishment of an Incident Response Mechanism, The Business
Continuity Plan includes backup systems, and data recovery processes.
Post-incident, a detailed assessment and recovery plan will restore
aperations swiftly

6. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the
environment, arising from the value chain of

the entity. What mitigation or adaptation measures have
been taken by the entity in this regard, B

7. Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business
done with such partners) that were assessed for

environmental impacts.

MNotes

PRINCIPLE 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy,
should do so in a manner that is responsible and transparent

Essential Indicators

| 1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations. 0

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined
based on the total members of such body) the entity is a member of/

| affiliated to

Sr. | Name of the trade and industry Redchy of Htade and_rnfiustw
No. chambers/ associations chamhn?rsf asscctatlo_n <
[State/National/International)
1
2

| 2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues
related to anti- competitive conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders MA

from regulatory authorities.

Leadership Indicators

1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity: Mo

AMNMUAL REPICHT -
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PRINCIPLE &: Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (51A) of

projects undertaken by the entity based on Nil
applicable laws, in the current financial year.

2. Provide information on project(s) for which

ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) Nil

is being undertaken by your entity, in the
following format:

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and
redress grievances of the community.

The Company works closely with the
community in the identified areas of
contribution in the thrust areas for

carrying out the Corporate Social
Responsibility initiatives. Within the area of
work, the employees of the

Company work with the communities to
understand the impact of the initiatives on the
intended beneficiaries.

These interactions provide the people with
ample opportunities to gauge and address
community concerns.

Based on these interactions, we have not
encountered any specific grievances from the
community at present.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total

inputs by value) sourced from suppliers: EY,j2024=25) FPEiaces2d)
Directly sourced from MSMEs, small 27.03% 19.47%
producers

Sﬂurcml:l dlr‘ECl‘.E'l,l' fmlm u:;nthln the district 0.92% 0.63%
and neighbouring districts

5. lob creation in smaller towns - Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees
or workers employed on a permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following

loeations, as % of total wage cost:

AMNMUAL REPICHT -

FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)

1. Rural

i) Disclose wages paid to persons employed
[including employees or workers employed on a &8 0t EEE G0
permanent ar non-permanent / on contract
basis)

i) Total Wage Cost 88571573.00 115884000.00

iii) % of lob creation in Rural areas 0.00% 0.00%
2. Semi-urban

i) Disclose wages paid to persons employed
{including employees or workers employed on a 189.00 108.00
permanent or non-permanent [ on contract
basis)
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ii} Total Wage Cost 45545420.00 22630000.00
iii) % of Job creation in Semi-Urban areas 0.00% 0.00%
3. Urban
i} Disclose wages paid to persons employed
e i b el 5700 5700
basis)
ii) Total Wage Cost 50485125.00 22446000.00
iii}) % of Jlob creation in Urban areas | 0.00% 0.00%
4. Metropolitan
i} Disclose wages paid ta persons employed
{including employees or workers employed on & 97.00 96.00

permanent or non-permanent / on contract
basis)

i) Total Wage Cost

109264257.00

138704350.00

iii) % of of Job creation in Metropolitan area

0.00%

0.00%

Leadership

1. Provide details of actions taken to mitigate
any negative social impacts identified in the
Social Impact Assessments (Reference: Question
1 of Essential Indicators above):

Indicators

Mot applicable as no social
impact assessment was
carried out during FY 2024-
25

2. Provide the following information on CSR
projects undertaken by your entity in designated

aspirational districts as identified by government NA
bodies:

3. (a} Do you have a preferential procurement

policy where you give preference to purchase -

from suppliers comprising marginalized
fvulnerable groups? (Yes/No/NA)

(b) From which marginalized /vulnerable
groups do you procure?

Mot Applicable

(c) What percentage of total procurement (by
value) does it constitute?

0.00%

4. Details of the benefits derived and shared
from the intellectual properties owned or
acquired by your entity (in the current financial
year), based on traditional knowledge:

The company does not

own/acquired any

intellectual properties

based on traditional

knowledge, Hence, not
applicable.

5, Details of corrective actions taken or
underway, based on any adverse order in
intellectual property related disputes wherein
usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

As no intellectual properties
involved, this is not
applicable

6. Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

Nil

AMNMUAL REPICHT -

Fr2n24-z5 |

1171



FIL

A

LADILY

= ST

PRINCIPLE 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a

responsible manner

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the mechanisms in
place to receive and respond to
consumer complaints and
feedback.

2. Turnover of products and/

PAIL is focused upon Customer satisfaction therefaore we have
adopted a dynamic and vigilante customer complaint handling
process to recejve and address consumer concerns related to our
product. Consumer can raise their concern to PAIL by calling on our
Toll-free No.9996448100/0124 -4300840 or through an email
ir@piccadily.com. Post Registration of complaint PAIL Customer
care team will take further action and resolve customer concern at
the earliest. The team would ensure that sample is collected from
consumer who has raised concern for investigation. Investigation
result will be communicated to. consumer and concern will be
addressed as perour consumer policy.

services as a percentage of As ata
turnover from all gt
ducts/service that carr £ To ot
Rraed Y turnover
information about
Environmental and social
parameters relevant to the 100.00%
product |
Safe and responsible usage 100.00% |
Recycling and/or safe disposal 100.00%
3. Number of consumer
complaints in respect of the FY (2024-25) PY (2023-24)
following Re Re
i m i ma
Received Pendir.'ng " Receive PE"dE".‘E
RS resolution rk Ao resolution rk
g at end of g at end of
the year the year
| year year
Data privacy 1] | 0 0 8] i | G
Advertising o | i} 0 o 0 8]
Cyber-security 0 §] | 0 0 0 0
Delivery of essential
bl s 0 0 0 0 0 0
services * | S |
Restrictive Trade Practices 0 0 0 0 ] 0
Unfair Trade Practices 0 0 o 0 0 0
Other . 0 0 0 0 0 0
4. Details of instances of product
Reaszons
recalls on account of safety Number
/ for recall
issues
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Voluntary recalls 3] 0]
Forced recalls 0 0
5. Does the entity have a
framework/ policy on cyber
L Yes
security and risks related to data
privacy?
If available, provide a web-link of www.piccadily.com
the policy N
6. Provide details of any Mo such
corrective actions taken or incidents
underway on issues relating to and
advertising, and delivery of hence it
essential services; cyber security | is not
and data privacy of customers; applicabl
re-occurrence of instances of e.
product recalls; penalty [ action
taken by regulatory authorities
_on safety of pr_udycts / services. B
7. Provide the following information relating to data
_breac_hes: _ -
a. Number of instances of data breaches o
along-with impact
b. Percentage of data breaches involving
personally identifiable information of 0.00%
customers
NA
c. Impact, if any, of the data breaches
Leadership Indicators
1. Channels / platforms where information
on products and services of the entity can be www. piccadily.com
accessed (provide web link, if available).
2. Steps taken to inform and educate MA
consumers about safe and responsible usage
of products and/or services
3. Mechanisms in place to inform consumers Fooe Fumpanv infares thiaugn
. : 5 emails and phane calls.
of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of
essential services.
4. Does the entity display
product information on the -
product over and above what is
mandated as per local laws?
Extra features of the product,
If yes, provide details in brief, bEnElis i TarvRArRowith
’ others,
Did your entity carry out any
survey with regard to consumer Yes
satisfaction relating to the major
products / services of the entity,
significant locations of operation
of the entity or the entity as a
whole?
Franpa-2a |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Piccadily Agro Industries Lid
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Piccadily Agro
Industries Ltd (""the Company"'), which comprises the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended March 31, 2025, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as "the standalone
financial statements').

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone linancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the 1ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those maitters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The company's annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audil or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frands and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
roing concern and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraod or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

ddentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as rauwd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

AMMUAL REPOHT - FY2024-25 |} 1175



i

PICCADILY

ol 1

©Obtain an understanding ol internal Gnancial controls relevant to the audit m order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and the board of directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management and the board of director’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company ability to continue as a gomng concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we arerequired todraw attention in our auditor&sreport to therelated disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditori
report. However, [uture events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
S0INE CONCErn.

*Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, mcluding the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiahty 1s the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
mdividually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and quahitative factorsin (1) planning the scope of our audit work and n evaluating
the results of our work; and (i1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those char ged with governanceregarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding mdependence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and whereapplicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
maltters that were ofmost significance in the audit ofthe standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our
auditor&report unless law or regulation precludes pubhic disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our reporl because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

ie) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
20025 taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31,2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f With respect to the udequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
reporting “Annexure A7, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
inits standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements,

[l The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses:

[I. There has been no delay in transferring amounts and equity shares, required o be
transferred. tothe Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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V. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
{“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behualf of the Company (“Ulumate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

V. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Company shall. whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

VL Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come o our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (v) and (vi) of Rule 11{e) contain any material misstatement.

VII. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, for the periods audit trail (edit log)
facility was enabled and operated throughout the year for the respective accounting software,
we did not come across any instance ol the audit trail feature being tampered with.

VIII.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 201 3.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors” Report under Section 197(16)
of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us,

For JAIN & ASS0OCTATES
Chartered Accountants
(Regd No.:001361N)

Sd/-
Date: May 20, 2025 Krishan Mangawa
Place: Gurugram Partner
UDIN: 25513236BMJPJQ4533 Membership No.: 513236
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 8Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementsi
section of our report to the Member s of Piccadily Agro Industries Limited of even date).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (¢the Acté)

Opinion

Wehave audited the internal financial controls over financialreporting of PICCADILY AGRO
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (¢the Companyé)as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audat
ofthe standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal inancial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over hnancial
reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial
Controls Over Fmancial Reporting issued by the Institutie ol Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over linancial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and mamntenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective companyis policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation ofreliable financial information, asrequired under the Companies Act, 2013.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
¢Guidance Noteé) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and mamtained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves per forming procedures to obtlain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
QOur audit of internal fnancial controls over financial reporting included obtaming an
understanding of internal financial controls over linancial reporting, assessmg the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors
judgement, mcluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to [raud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opmion on the miternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
linancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's mnternal financial control over financial reporting imcludes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2)providereasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the mherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
madequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comphance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For JATN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(Regd No:001361N)

Sd/-
Date: May 20, 2025 Krishan Mangawa
Place: Gurugram Partner
UDIN: 25513236BMIPJQ4533 Membership No.: 513236
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TOTHE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under #Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementsa
section of our report to the Member s of Piccadily Agro Industries Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course ofaudit,
we state that:

L. In respect of the Companyi Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangble
Assets:
a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
mcluding
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and
relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company hasmaintained proper records showing full particularsofl
mtangible assets.

b) The property, plant and equipment and right-of use assets have been physically
verified by the management according to the program of periodical verification n
phased manner which, in our opinion, 1s reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of'its property, plant and equipment. The discrepancies, if any,
noticed on such physical verification have been properly dealt with in the books of
dccounts.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on thebasis ofour
examination of the records of the Company, the title deed of immovable properties are
held in the name ofthe Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(mcluding right-of-use assets)and intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been mitiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

[1. (a) As explained to us, the inventories, were physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

(b) The applicability of this clause depends on upon the sanctioned wor king capital limits
of Rs. 5.00 crores or more from banks during the year. Since, the Company has been
sanctioned workmg capital limits of more than Rupees five crores in aggregate from
banksduring the year on the basis of security ofcurrent assets of the Company,
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this clause 1s applicableThe quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with
such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company and the
details are as follows:
{in Crores)
Value as per i
o :t::::n:;gﬂ Reason for
Quarter Ending :M:cuu.nts filed to the Differences Ailfterences i s
including current :
lender
assels
30th June, The difference 1s on
2024 Il 125 333 account of electricity,
30th sugarcane, store &
Septmber,2024 11242 111.20 (1.22) spares and blend not
I1st considered in stock
December,2024 185.05 175.00 (10.05) Stﬂllﬂinﬁ"t and
3 valuation of IMFL
st and Malt as per IND
March,2025 303.20 269.92 (33.28) e
III.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records, the Company has made investments in a company, and has
provided guarantee but not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, unsecured,
to other parties during the year.

AMMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 }

a. Based on the audit procedures performed by us and according to the
mformation and explanations provided to us, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has provided a
corporate guarantee amounting to  1,00,000/- in favour ofits associate company, Indian
Malt Whisky Association, which 1s limited by guarantee. The said guaraniee was
outstanding and in force as at thebalance sheet date

b. According to the information and explanations gmiven to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made and the security
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c. The Company hasnot granted any loan during the year, hence reporting under
clause 3(im)(c) of the Order 1snot applicable.

d. The Company has not granted any loan during the year, hence reporting under clause
3(u)(d)ofthe Order isnot applicable.

e No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, hasbeen
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to setile the overdues of existing loans given
tothe same parties.
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| The Company has not granted any loans or advances i the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(i)(f) isnot applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to investment made.

V. Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules
framed there under. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (v) of the

Order isnot appheabletothe Company.

VL We have broadly reviewed the books ofaccount relating tomaterials, labour and
other items of cost maintamned by the Company as specified by the Central Government
of India under section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

VII. Inrespectofstatutory dues:

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues
apphcabletoit.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund,
Income tax, Goods and Services Tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
vilue added tax, cessand other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding on
account of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax and cess.

VIII.  According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books ol
accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as mcome during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vii) of the Order i1s not
apphcable to the Company.

[X.(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books
and records examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has not defaulted n
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender including the loans and interest which arerepayable on demand.

(b)  Accordingtotheinformation and explanations given tous and the records of the
Company examined by us including representation received from the management, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial mstitution or
other lenders or government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, prima facie,
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used forlong term purposes by the Company.
(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company

has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

() On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

X. (a) The Company has raised moneys by way ofissue of convertible debentures and warrants
during the year and based on the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company the same were prima facie applied for the purposes
for which they were raised and the unspent amountisinvested in bank term deposits.

(b) During the year, the company has made preferential allotment of convertible warrants and
debentures during the year and have complied with the requirements of section 42 and section 62
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. The amounts have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised, though idle funds which were not required for
immediate utilisation have been invested inreadily realisable liquid investments.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (x1) (a) and (b) of the Order 1s not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information & explanations and representation made by the management,
no whistle- blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.

XL The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xi1) of the Order is
not applicable.

XIL.  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 withrespect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

XIIL.  (a) Inour opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of'its business.
(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

XIV. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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XV. (a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934 are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xvi) (a) to (c) of
the Orderis not applicable to the Company
(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

XVL.  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, The
Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediate
preceding financial year.

XVII, There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

XVII. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 1s not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

XIX. (a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, in compliance with the proviso to
sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act, Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) is not
applicable,

(b) There are no unspent amounts and ongoing projects in the company, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section 6 of section 135 of
Companies Act.

For JATN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
{Regd No.:001361N)

Sd/-
Date: May 20, 2025 Krishan Mangawa
Place: Gurugram Partner
UDIN: 25513236BMIPJQ4533 Membership No.: 513236
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PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN:L01115HR1994PLC032244)
REGD.OFFICE : VILLAGE BHADSON, UMRI-INDRI ROAD, KARNAL (HARYANA}
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025
Amount in Lakhs (INR)
STANDALONE
S No. Particulars Note AS AT STANDALONE AS AT 21.03.2024
31.03.2025
A) ASSETS
1 Non-Current assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment 1 28,192.85 21,781.58
(b) Capital Work in Progress 1A 18,219.86 2,613.96
(c) Biological assets 2 2.42 9.83
(d) Financial assets
i) Investments 3 8,130.45 7,690.00
(i} Other financial assets 4 ar.zz 97.32
(e) Other non current assels 5 492707 1,692 56
Total non-current assets 59,509.87 33,885.25
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories ] 30,320.47 19,603.80
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 13,686.94 13,655.18
{i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 8 938.94 1,420.17
(i) Other Bank Balances 9 379414 404.81
(iv) Other financial assets 10 1,988.94 1,703.87
(c) Other current assets 1 4 366.83 3,231.04
Teotal current assets 55,096.25 40,018.87
Total assets 1,14,606.12 73,904.12
B) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Eguity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 9,433.93 9,433.93
(k) Other Equity 13 58,854.88 2485511
Total equity 68,288.81 34,089.04
2 Nen current Liabilities
(a) Financizal liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 14 14,204.13 5,944.03
(b) Provisions 18 162.60 86.06
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 16 1,661.83 1,485.91
(d) Other non current liabilities 17 594,44 1,835.12
Total non-current liabilities 16,623.01 9,351.11
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 18 16,612.51 11,235.80
(i)  Trade Payables 18 5,297.08 11,007.23
(i) Other financial liabilities 20 1,754.80 511.24
(b) Current Tax Liabilities 21 1,807.03 2,648.17
(c) Other current Liabilities 22 4,046.36 5,043.75
(d) Provisions 23 176.53 19.78
Total current liabilities 29,694.31 30,463.97
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,14,606.12 73,904.12
Notes on Financial Statements'1-48 For and on behalf of Board
ALDITOR'S REPORT
As per our separate report of even date
FOR JAIN & ASSOCIATES Sd/- Sd/-
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Natwar Aggarwal Harvinder Singh Chopra
FRN: 01361N (Chief Financial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
DIN: 00123891
Sd/-
Krishan Mangawa Sd/- Sd/-
{Partner) Niraj Kumar Sehgal Dharmendra Kumar Batra
M. No. : 513238 (Company Secretary) (Whole-time Director)
Place: Gurugram M.No.: AB019 DIN: 07847018
Date: 20-05-2025
UDIN: 25513236BMJPJQ4533
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PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIM:LO1115HR 1994PLCO32244)
STATEMENT OF 5TANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025
Amount in Lakhs (INR) except EPS
STANDALOME AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
W el Note 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
I Revaris from operations L A8 625,65 2281245
Ddher Incoma 25 G563 B1.E8
Total Income B9,280.77 B2,884.14
V. Expansas:
Cost of materials consumad 26 41, 71710 36,449, 70
Change in F.G, WIP. and Slock-in-Trade Fij (8, 803.36) (T45.TE)
Purchase and Related Cosl of Stock in Trade G,813.15 A RS 58
Empiowas Banefit Expensas 28 4,404, 52 326816
Finance costs 23 2TEZEE 167021
Depraciation and amorbization expenss 0 1,944,897 1,818.68
Daher expensas il 206,095.90 2338
Total axpenses T4, 865,14 T1016.77
V. Profit before axceptional items and tax 14,415.63 1187457
VL Exceplional lems
Profit {Losg) on Sale of Fixed Assels 0.08 293050
VIl Profit Before Tax 14, 415.72 14,813.36
Vil Tax expanse:
[1) Currant fax 348777 33T AT
(2} Deferred tax 21473 162,68
58 Income tax of Pravious Year 237 65 BO.B3
XL Profit after tax 10,465.57 11,213.48
Other comprahensive income
{i) hams that will not be re-classified to profit or lass:
-Remessurarments of defined bansefit obigation (net) [154.18) -
-Income tax relating 1o iterns that will not be reclessified 8.0 -
to profdit or loss
(&} lbams that may be re-classdied fo profit or loss:
-Income tax relating to-items that may be reclassified -
%o profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive incoms (net of Ex) (115.37) -
X, Total comprehensive incoma 10,350.20 11,213.48
Earnings per equity share-
-Basic (IMR) 11.08 11.68
-Dilsed [INR} 11.08 11.88
Noarminal Value of each share 10.00 10000
Mobtes on Financial Slatemants™] -48 For and on behalf of Board
AUDITOR'S REPORT
Ag per our separate repoet of even date
FOR JAIN & ASEOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOLNTANTS Sdf- Sdr-
FRN - 01361N Mabwar Aggarwal Hardnder Singh Chopra
{Chief Financial Officer) (Managing Deacion)
CrIb: (e 20k
L
K rishan Mangawa
(Paeniner] Sl S
M. No, | 513235 Maraj Kumar Sehgal Dhgnmiendra Kumar Balra
Place. Gurikgram [Camparny Secretary) [Whole-time Dirgctor
Drale: 20-05- 2025 WMo, ABT1Y CHRM: DF94Tita
WDIN: 2551 32368 MJP 04553
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PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CiIN : LO1115HR1994PLCO32244
Registered Office : Vill Bhadson, Umri-indri Read Teh.Indri, Dist.Karnal Haryana - 132109
STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025
{Rs. In Laes)
Far the year anded | For the year ended
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
AUDITED AUDITED

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
FROFIT AFTER TAX 10,350.20 11,213.48
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO MET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INCOME TAX CHARGED IM PROFIT AMND LOSS AN 3.5911.3% 3,6545.88
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 1.4 87 1.418.68
FINAMCE COSTS 2 782 BE rs70.24
LOSSAPROFIT) Ol SALE OF FIXED ASSETS §0,09) [2,936.95)
INTEREET INCOME RECENED {506 .96} (1213
EMPLOYEES STOCK GPTHOMN SCHEME 14868 =
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 18,632.01 15,251,132
CHANGES IN OPERATING ASEETS AND LIABILITIES:
TRADE RECEIWABLES [31.76) (6.7 12.32)
OTHER RECENABLES 14,748 67 [(2.078.07)
INVENTORY & BICLOGHIAL ASSETS (10 T08.26) (534.60)
PROVISIONS 23525 B.B7
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES {1.327.95) 1.031.17
CASH GENERATED FROM OFERATIONS 2,046.68 6,963.98
INCOME TAX PAID (MET) 4 574 56 ¥510.72
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A} {2.527.90) 5,453 26
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
MET PURGHASE OF FIXED ASSETS (23.062.05) {1,751 60
CHANGE IN ADVANCE FOR CAPITAL GOODS {3,234.51) [BT1.61)
NET CHAMGE [N INVESTMENTS {a4D:45]) [TS5.61)
INTEREST INCOME RECEIVED BOE Q5 1213
MET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) ETJ 30.06) (336710}
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
PROCEEDRS BY WaAY OF COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND CONVERTIBLE o9 59065
WARRAMTS TR -
PROCEEDS FROM LOMNG-TERM BORROWIMES B.260 10 T3 B9
FINAMCE COST {2, 782.86) [1.670.21)
DIVIDEMNDS PAID - {1&3.@
MET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C) 28,177.13 (1,025.20)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (480.83) 1, 060.96
DPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,386.78 325.83
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Mé.ﬂﬁ 1.386.78
Cash and cash equivalents ag per tha above comprise of the
Tellewiriy
Cash amd cash equivalents [a38.94 142097
Less: Earmarked balances 3266 3339
Balance as per statement of Cash flows HOS D6 1.386.78
Motes:
1} The above Cash Flow Statemenl fas been grepared undar the ‘Indirect Mathod™ &g sel oul in the Indian Accounting Slandard-T on Stalement
2} Addifians of fiked assets includge movement of Capital work-in-progress during the year
3} Procesdsi(repayment) of Shori-term & Long-Term borrowings have besn shown on net basis.
43 Figure in brackefs represonts cash outflow from respective activites
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STANDALOMNE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A, Equity Share Capital
Loy Srares of (NK 10 =ach msued, subrorbed and tully pad op
Particulars Murnber of shaeed  Amaiiil in Laslis (IR}
Ae at Apni 1,2033 | BAR AT VB 00 9,486,132 |
hangos in oguity share cazitel 3,21, 800,00 EFRT]
Balance as al March 12004 | 5 43 30, 780.00 943393 |
Changyes in sipdly shame agis - -
Babance 2= at March 312088 | 8.43.38. 200,00 [EEEEER|
B. Other Equity
s in Lakhs (HR)
Attributable to Equity Share Holders
3 Reserves and Surplus
Particulars B Kt Dl had Db Sharo Bazad Totsl Other Equity
. P a i P rianed 3 )
Capital ad Earnings as Equity in Neture Comprrhenatve Faymaant Ragaraa
A ab 158 Aprd 2023 1,08 e RLEL IR EFECTERR
Prialil Tor ra gariod 11048 TR
Dradend paid dunng the year REETL] 5364
Forades Shares s g
e 41 3764 March 202 1,645 Wi F2k0808 . 3 Faenin |
Frafr for tre penod A0 46EET 1046557
Dirar Comprahensio incoma
[Loes) 16T A5
lsgoe ol Compuisorly Converizln
Disbanfures = 2119009 210
Issue nf Compuisoriy Gonverticie
Warranis . 250080 250000
Grant o Employpss Siock Opions
" IR 3.
Difeldand paid dimng the e = L]
Forteird Shares - -
[&3 & 461 March 2e25 [T FE] FEL I EECED EECET; T TSR
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Note-1 Standalone Property, Plant & Equipment as on 31.03.2025

Amiunt in INR [Lakhs]

Lar £ Than Plartd  Bul Furniterc & Office ;

Land | """:':':I | Bukdng e "’:&P““ e h Vehicl  Tracks  Computsr Tetal
Gross Amstunt
Balance as ot Apnl 1,2024 0466 4543 2AET.64  29,5603.00 71506 .00 f2iz 206101 1 STAT ) 4262170
Aadifions .45 - 2850.02 B HO5.67 - 1447 2959 a558 - 2550 5 5F05
Disposals = = . [ . . oy B . pER] 1.85
Balance as =t March 313008 .11 4949 S454.37 1500867 711508 1847 18112 21348 134 12239 | B0 A5TT)
Acpumsitalzd Reprisintion
A o April 1,2084 5 - 1FEE 1823505 167.66 A6 B6.97 AT 124G T8 | 205407
Diapraciation changsad for i year - - 8036 151747 112.60 344 1221 18850 e LT T
DRpussts - - - - - - - 2048 - 0405 H0Hy
Balanca as & March 31 3025 x - 1,342.35  19,740.5% 38008 TAAR 9918 113ETE 1080 B2.70 | 22 Ted 83
Mot Carrging Amourt
As at March 31, 325 T08.11 4348 411602 1535815 £.274.80 M. f185 L00RT2 mew 359 | 2813285
&g al March 31,2004 T04.66 4548 181650 11,279.95 E54T.40 .82 26 LA0ETE TR 2E:05 | 2178158
As al March ¥1, 3033 1021588
AR Al March 31,0004 261196

Datails of capital work-in-progress as on 31.03.2025 is as under:

peRing m

Progmss as Al 3151 March 2024 3.613.96
1+ Additions 10,097
|=} TramsiersiCapitalised G05.47
+] Disposals .

| s Batice ot e

Progress as at 3¥st March 2028 18,290, 88
Capital Wi Againg Seheduls “Amoum |

| 0-1 ¥anr T 15,026.44
1-2 Yonrs 2,734 6B
243 Yonrs 5
» 3 Yaarn SR T4

| TOTAL WiF 1831806
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HOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 315t MARGH 2025

STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NOTE 2 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 31.03.202% 31,03 2024
Apricuitural Procucs 242 82.63
TOTAL 2.42 983
STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NGTE 3 NOMN CURRENT INVESTMENTS 31.05.2025 103 2024
1) i
A, -Assosciate (8l cost)
Quoied
i.  Piecadily Sugar and Allied incustries Limitad 182128 163120
linvesiment Rs 1621.28 Lacs includes 13,83, 871 Equily Shares & Rs.5,340- Per Share for
B, ~Subsidiaries
Unguoted {at cast)
I.  Portvadie Distillers & Blenders Limited 22mAT 178772
{24200 (1742001) ordirary share fully paid up of 1 GBP each]
il Six Treems Drinks Privabs Limded 1.00 1.040
(10000 Equity share having faca Value of Rs. 100 each)
c. Others
Unguoted {at Cost}
i Guod Maming India Media Pt Lid IO 00 F00,00
{30 Lecs Equity Shares at Rs. 100- aach.|
ii. Piccadily Holeds Private Limiled
(39800 Equily shares having face value of Rs 100- at shane premium of Rs 9800- each.} 3,980.00 3,880.00
TOTAL 8.130.45 7,680.0d
STANDALONE AS AT ETANDALONE AS AT
NOTE 4 OTHER MOMN CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 11.0%.2028 31,038,204
Secunty Deposils araz ur.a2
TOTAL 37.22 97,32
STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
NOTE 5 OTHER MON CURRENT ASSETS 31.03.202% 33,03 2004
Meance for Capital Goods 493707 1,682 58
{Ursacuned But Consdanad Good) ST p—
TOTAL 4,927.07 1.602.56
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STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NUTE 5 PRENTORICE 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
{Ae par inventanas taken , vEiusd & cerified by the managamand)
Slores & Spares 18360 an1.23
Raw Matarials 1.001.55 1680.60
‘Wark In Progross 16,538,385 G,7E1,93
Fireshied Goods 10.758.97 11, 660,03
TOTAL 0 3F0.4T 19, 603. 50
‘rafer nobe on significant podicies for the valualion of inventories
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
ROTE T TRADE RECEIVABLES 03,2025 31.03.2024
(it Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good 13,686.94 13,655.18
a) Lass than & Maorihs 11938 40 11,448 6
by & Mantng - 1 Year 509,76 atiT 54
Ch 1 Year -2 Year 586.87 G32.4p
i 2 Year - 3 Year 40143 T30.87
&) Mare Than 3 Yaar 68 46 3544
13,686,944 13,655.18 |
aun, STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
iikd e PEENTS 31.03.2025 3.03. 2024
()  Cash & Cash Equivalents
-Cash in Hand M5 Mg
~Chegue iin Hard - -
() Balance wilh Banks
<in Currenl Aocounks 88181 1,362 50
{c}  Balancewith Banks
-In Dapasit Account|Earmarked Balancas) 3298 R
TOTAL 938.94 142017
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
NOTE 4 OTHER BANK BALANCES 79.03,3035 11,038,204
(@ Fired Deposits
Maduring after 12 Monlhs 252,55 182,18
Maturing within 12 Manshs 141552 200,02
(b)  lerast Accrued on FOR BT 1287
TOTAL 3,784,144 204,81
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOME AS AT
NOTE 1 OTHER FINANGLAL ASSETS 21.03.5025 31,03 2024
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Security daposits 25741 R
Othar ebis considered good 1 T3.53 1,645,546
TOTAL 1,9848.94 1,703.8T7
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NROTE 11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 39.03.3025 34.03,3004
[Unsecured considered good unless athersise stated)
Advance lo supphers 118411 210913
Prapaid expansas 01495 657 87
Balances with Staluicey Authoilies 2280y 254,05
nler Lnil Balancas
TOTAL 4,364,873 31.231.04
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
KOTE 12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 31.03.2025 34.03.3024
Al AUTHORISED
11,00, 00,000 {10, 10,040,000y Equity shares of Rs. $0/-sach 11,000,000 10,480, 00
ISZUED SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP B4531.93 g435.01
BA130260 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 sach
fully called up and paid ug.
943393 9,433.93
B) RIGHT OF SHAREHOLDERS
i Each Bhareholder is entitled to ane vole per Share.
il Each Sharehalder has the right in profit'surphs in propartion 1o amount paid vp with respect
respact o share holding,
) Intke event of winding ug, the equty shareholders will be entilled e receive the remainng
remmainirg balarcs of asets, ifary, in progorisrabe o Eeir individust sharshaldng in
tive paid up equity capital of the company,
G) DETAIL OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES
Humber af Shares Hold
As on 31st March 2025 Aa on 3t March 2024
1 Mr, Siddhartha Sharma 2,14 40, 718:.00 .14 40 716.00
2. Mis Scon N Sure Holdings Lid. 3,95,64,.6592.00 305,64 652,00
3. Piccadily Hotels {P) Lid. 1,37 47 284.00 13T 47 284,00
0y  DETAIL OF SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS
A on Met March 2025 As on 31st March 2024 % Of Total Shares % Change During the Year
| idividual "“m“m“'m Number of Sharos Held
Sxddhertha Sharma 21440796 21440716 2273 E
Prachi Setty 2,060,000 200,000 .21 -
i Promuoter Group
Piocadity Hotels Pl Lid 13747 264 1,57 47,284 1457 -
Saon M Sue Holdings Lmited 3,156,654 6o 43,1584 692 F146 =
Piccadily Suger And Alkad
inidustriess Limitad . s i i
TOTAL .50 52 606 6,60.52 596 ro.ar -
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Ej  Reconciliation of number of shares and amount oufstanding at the beginning and al the end of the reparting periad:
Subscribeed and fully pakd up Equity Shares: Ho, of Shares Hald Amont]
Ag al-April 1, 2023 B.43,39,268Q 9,433.93
Al Shares gsued during the yaar - -
A% ol March 31, 2024 9.43,39, 280 9,433,953
Auaid: Sharaes issued during the year - -
A5 &l Manch 31, 2025 8.43,39,200 9,433.53
OTHE STANDALONE A3 AT STANDALOME AS AT
RpauTY 31.03.2025 14.03. 2024
A) CAPITAL RESERVE 1, Ba8 184882
1,046.82 1.940.92
B) SECURITY PREMIUM vz araz
ar.oa 97.21.800.00
A PROFIT & LOSS ACCDLUNT
A5 Par Last Balance Sheat 22, F06.%a 11.551:99
Met Profit during the year 10465 57 1121348
Add Forfeited Sharas. - 318
Dividerd Paid [188.58)
Intar pnd Transfor -
01 Rlessnve (15.37) =
o Instrument Classified as Equity in Nature
Compuisarty Convertible Deberdures (2849448, 21,138.89 a
Convertile Waments (13,08 684} 2,800,000 -
E} Share Based Payment Reserve 148 68 -
Closing balanca 56,808.75 2360898
Tolal (A+B+C+DHE) 5805408 2465811
Purposa and Mature of Each Reserve
1 Capital Reserve
{Cimpilal receipd inpucsuanos af Sugar Incenlive scheme 1983 for repayrient of Term Loang)
2, Securities Premium-
\Premium on issue of shanes recorded. uiiisad in accondence with the provisions of the act)
i 8 Profit and Loss Account (Retained Eamings)
{Created fram the profl / loss of the company, as resaned for further distibution)
d, Instrument Classifled as Equity in Nature
a_ During the year [28.49 448 fully pasd Compulsonly Convertible Debertures of fzoe valua
of R 100 each ot a price of Rs. 744/ [ully paid bas been issued on a Preferanlial Basis,
Each Gompulsonly Gonvertible Debanture will ba sllatted are Equity shere after the axpiry
of 12 mealbe lrom 9% Septermbsar, 2024 al & arertiien of Fs. T34L par share |
b Dwring the yaad (8, 72,041 Convestalile Waranls of face value of Ra. 10~ each at a price
of Bis, 744 has bean issued on s Prefarertial Bests, Each Goemvertible Warrants will be
allathed are Equity share afer e expiny of © months from 6% Septamber 2034 a1 & pramium
of R5, T340 por share )
€. Dunng the yesar (636,943 Convartible Warrants of face value of Rs. 1- agch al a prica
of Res, TBAL has bean isswed an a Prafarentisl Basis, Each Cormartible Warrants will be
alintted ore Equity share sRer the expiny of B manshs. fram 19 Decombar 2024 81 a
provoiumegf Rs: TTAL per share )
5, Share Based Payment Reserve

ANNLAL REPORT - FY2024-25




7

PICCADILY
[Exparesa incurrad on the Employes Stock Qptiens Granted during the year) Rafer Naba Mo-
40
STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALOME AS AT
T R GG 31.03.2025 31,03.2026
l. SECURED
A LOAMS & ADVANCES
i) Term Loan From Punjab National Bank 385.83 949,62
{Waorong Capsal Term Loan ranked second charge secuned against Govemnmant Guaranes, 1o be
If) Term Lean From Punjab Mational Bank 2.102.8% 2,680,
{Term Lean for 35,25 crore secured aganst marigagpe of bleck of assets for increaseng capacity of
i) Term Loan from Punjab Mational Bank 253163 41542
(Tesm Loan of Fs. G40 crore and 0.40 crore under PNB Sampati Scheme by way of takeaver from
i) Wehicle Loan 432,22 56116
{viahicta Loars from banks ara sacured by hypothecation of wechicles under Hire purchass
] Term Loan from Punjab Matlonal Bank 242 3% 25T
(Term Lean of 126 grore secured agairst morgage of bock of assets for Flant & machinery for
wi} Tarm Loan from Indian Bank 1,063,74 1,296, 68
[Terrn Loan secured agairst Freshold Properly havng plol ne 278 Situsaled al Frut & Vegetable
wii) Term Loan frem Indian Bank TIr 5T -
({Tesmn Loan agairst Freshold Commerical Property heving plot ne 217 situated 81 Fruit ard
TOTAL LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 14,204.13 5,244,030
STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
MOTE 15 MNON-CURREMT PROVISIONS 54,03 2025 54.0% 2024
Provision For Employes Banefits
- Leave encashmant 270 -
- Graluty 152.90 BE.06
TOTAL 16260 BiG, 06 -
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NOTE 16 DEFERRED TAX 31.03,3058 .03 2624
A DOeferred Tax Assol
On Accounl of Disalkewances, Leng Term Capital Loss and other Temparary Differences B4.22 TE.Ca
O Account of OCT Lass 3060 -
B. Deferred Tax Liability
G A of Timing Diferenar due o Depriciation 1,784 86 1,504 .[¥]
Mot Doferred Tax Lisbility (8 - &) 1,661.83 1 4850
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STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
17 OTHER MOMN CURRENT LIABILITY 21.08.2025 31,02 2024
Craditor for Capital Goods 1TIEE 476,13
Trade Payahles - B
Secunly Degposd B1.16 6166
Ollser Mon Current Payables 359,40 1,208,532
TOTAL 594 44 1,835.12
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (AT AMORTIZED COST) 31032025 31.05.2024
SECURED
A FROM BAMNKS
i} Cash Credit Alc S.Td8.73 9,357 ER
|Cash Credit accouns are sacured by first charge on presenl & fulure book debls, whale of
iy WORKING CAPITAL DEMAND LOAN B AR a7 -
{Working Capital Demand Loan ana secured by first change on presand & future book debils,
CURRENT MATURITIER OF LONG TERM DEET 1.865.82 1.808.13
TOTAL 16,612.51 11.235.80
STANDALOME AS AT STANDALOME AS AT
TRADE FAYARLES 31.03.2025 31032024
Sundry Creditora
i Total outstanding dues of Micre and Small Scale Industrial Enterprises 1.683.48 625.42
Legs Than 1 Yeas 1.BE1.O0N B3.52
1-2 Years - 16T
-3 Years - 13
More lhan 3 Yeas J4B -
il Total sulstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Scale Industrial 3.613.60 10,381.81
Lest Than 1 Yeas 150215 10,282,817
1-2 Years 51.92 16,54
23 Years 41 590
More I 3 Years 5413 B4, Td
iii) Total sustanding dues of Micre and Small Scale Industrial Enterprises - Disputed - -
Less Than 1 Year - 7
1-2 Years - E
-3 Yeprs -
More lham 3 Years - -
i) Total sutstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Bcale Indusirial - -
Less Than 1 Vear -
1-2 Yoars - -
2.3 Years -
More {amn 3 Years -
:I'(:ITAL 5.287.08 11,007,23
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‘cired fo Micro and Small Enferprises have beet defermined fo the aofen! such parfies have
been idenitfied on the basis of information collected by the Management.
“Infgrmation 8s required e be furaished 88 per section 22 of the Micra, Smai and Medium Enterprises
Developrent Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been provided in Note
STANDALONE AS AT STAKDALONE AS AT
MOTE 2 QTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 31.03.2025 31,03 2034
Exparsas Payakia 1.184.56 437,68
Crnditor For Capstal Googs - -
Infarest poonued but not due on barmowings 248 4,00
Ingaresd Accnied but not gue an CCD AT 46 -
Security depesits 50.3% 3616
Linpeaidd dividerd 3295 33,58
Provsian for doubtful detits - -
TOTAL 1,754.80 51124
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALCONE AR AT
MOTE 21 CURRENT TAX LIABELITY 31 032025 34002024
Incoms Tax Provision JA87. 7T BAET ST
Less ; Tax pald duning the year 1,600.75 6B .40
TOTAL 1.807.03 284617
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NOTE 22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31.03.2025 2403 2024
Silatutory Dusas 136147 18345
Avanca recalved from cusipmens 2HE0S 184451
Chegues lssued Bul not Présented 313 574
TOTAL 404836 5,043,785
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
NOTE 231 CURRENT PROVISPDNS 31.05.2025 31052074
Provisien For Employes Benefits
- Lo ardashemant 1188 =
. Gratuty 164,66 1878
176.53 19.78
STANDALOME AS AT STANDALONE ASL AT
NOTE 24 DETAIL OF REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 34.03,2038 39030024
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Revenue from sale of products
Gross Sales
Draarrmsstic: &2 A80. 50 7887141
Exparis 5745 26 3,841,013
£8.625.65 g2 812,45
STANDALONE 45 AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
NOTE 5 DTHERINCOME 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Interest Incame 506.95 1213
Other non-operative Incoma
Farm Incame Az 41
Misc Income 2432 10.82
SBundry Balanca wiofl 165 1.53
Gair on fareign exchange lucluaban 56,54 .07
Rty Inveme M .
Chemical Sales . E
Rarzal ncoms 4.00 -
Discount Receivad 188 45,72
Taial B55.13 81.60
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
NOTE 26 COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 11.08.2025 21,04 2024
Opening Stock of Raw Matoerials 180.60 51264
Add Purchases during the year 42 K30 0% 38,108 E6
Less Chosing Stock 1.001.55 180.60
41.717.10 36 441,70
STANDALONE A5 AT STANDALONE A5 AT
HOTE 27 CHANGES IN FINISHED GOODS, WIP, STOCK IN TRADE 34033025 2403 2054
Opening Stock
Work In Progress B.7E1.93 6,204, 96
Feishag Goods 11.660.02 11,407 26
TOTAL A’ 18.441.96 17,602.22
Cilosing Stock
‘Waork bn Progress 16.535.35 §,781.93
Fnishag Goods Stock 10, 758,97 11, 660,03
TOTAL "B £7.335.32 18,441,596
TOTAL {A - B} {8.823.36) {749.75)
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
] 2 MPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPE|
£hE i i 31.03.2025 31032024
Salaney 147439 298760
Share baged paynhent sipense 1ALES -
Corpribition b Provigent Fund & Dfer Funds 1337 9.55
Directars Remuneration 186.05 181,24
Retrarchment & Compansation 55T LN
Siafl Wellare 16542 .03
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TOTAL 4,404,523 3,256, 16
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE A5 AT
HOTE 2% FINANCE COST 31.08. 2038 34.0% 2024
Interest Expenas
Iriteresi 258898 1,453.49
Othar Borrowing Cost
Bank Cherges G388 116.72
TOTAL 2.782.8E 1,570.21
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
HOTE 30 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 11.03,2025 ¥1.04.2024
Depreciabion of Progesty, Pl & Equipment 1,944.97 1,618.69
TOTAL 1,944 57 1,618, 68
EXPE STANDALDNE AS AT STANDALOME AS AT
WRIE 3 GUER M3Es 31.03:2025 31.03.2024
Manufacturing Expentes
Chamicals, Oil & Lubricanis 111786 1,036.03
Power & Fuel 21357 3,501.61
Packing Materal 11.037 35 §298.27
Etaciricats Reper a1 42,03
Plart & kachinery Repair 107428 1,276.67
Loadifg & Unloading 106.06 128.22
Cane Deviopment Experses 172 12,04
Esactricity & Water Charges 178.45 246,651
Envirenmeanptal & ETF Exp 245 2364
Total & 16.548.68 4, 386.66
Sglling Expensas
Advertisament 280 50,49
Commission B2.65 21242
Rebate & Discourt Z1THAE 3,732.74
Trarspod & Hardling 851.72 256.87
Business amd Sales Promosion 16TETE 1, 688,77
Total B 543,38 G,140.43
Adrinstrative & Other Expenses
Balance Writhen off - %
Braskaga and Damages 12044 261
Corporate Social Responsibility Expendiure 140,08 .o
Dho ey - -
Doubthd Dalats -
Elsciricity Expercas. 3413 -
Fam Expansas 4.7 a.57
Hire Chiarges 147 0.53
Ingurance T45.35 T0.60
Inlesast an TDSTCS b 141
Paymants to Auditor
Audi Fea 2325 225
Tan Audit Fees .25 0.25
Pastags & Telaphone sxpenses 18.70 14 Bf
Professional Charges 731,43 520,35
Pririrag Statorery & publishng G518 13,59
Rant E1.67 #5.45
Rale, Fes & lanss $.067.51 1,924,278
Repair & Maintenance
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Building 14,68 41,54
Others A0 211,88
Rurmning & Mairsenance of Vehicle 154.24 169,88
Travelling & Conveyance
Direcior 166 1,88
CAhers 391,79 33r.28
Total © J.115.82 3,286.00
Gramad Total (A+B4C) 26.085.90 23,813.18
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE A5 AT
NOTE 32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 11.04.2028 99.0% 2024
Ay Inrespect of unassessed cases af Income Tax, Sales Tax, )
Excise Duly & Service Tax MWk Mabarial Mad halaral
by Eslimated emount of confracls remaining i be executad on capital eccount
and reat grosided far (net of advances) Mea Matarial Mot Matenal
NOTE 31 PAYABLES & RECEIVABLES
Balancy of cerain sundry debilors, loares & advances (inchuding copiled advances), credtors and other liabililies ore in
procass of confirmation'raconcillistion. The managemant is of the opinion that sdjustmant. if any. ansing o of such
reconciilation would nat be matarial
MOTE 34  ADVAMCES RECOVERABLE
In this spinicn of the Board, the current assets. loans and sdvances ara approximstely of the vafue stwted, i reakizad in the
ardinary course of business, The provision for known liab#ies is edequate and nol in excass of amount reasonably
TECHESATY,
NOTE 35 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND A5-3E IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
In serms of Ind AS 36 on impainment of assels, bere was no impairment Indicalons exist as of reporting date s per s
irmterial ranagement estimates dones and berce no impairment chargs is recognised durning the year under review
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALOMNE AS AT
B
NOTE 36 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND A5-31 EARNING PER SHARE 31.03.2025 34.03.2024
Prafit Afer Tas Atribuable 1o Eguily Shareholders 104 B 57 31613 1424347, 660.35
Waighed Auerage Murmber of Equity Shares [Basic) 9,43,38.250.00 8,453,509, 260,00
Add: Dilutive effect relading o Comverbible Warranis (Mo's) 93 901,060 -
‘Waighted Average Number of Equity Sharas (Dilubag] 9,44, 33161.00 BAS, 50, 260,00
Face Vahee (Infs.) 10,08 0,00
Basic Eaming Per Shares {In s} 11.08 11.86
Diluted Earning Per Shanas (In Rs) 11.06 11.88
“For the year endad March 31, 2025 ESOF and GC0 ars npt ponsidansd for calculation of ERS since they warg anb-déeiive i natuns,
STANDALONE AS AT BTANDALONE AS AT
MOTE 3T INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.03,2025 34.03,2024
A incoeme Tax Expsnza {Ra. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Cuprant Tax
Curent Tax on Prafits for tha Yasr LAGT T BAET BT
Adjustments far curent tae of priar year 25765 B E3
Tatal Current Tax Expense 3.735.42 3,417.20
Defarred Tax
Daferred Tax Change!(incomal 2473 182 68
Tofal Tax Expense 15045 3,589.88
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B Recenciliation of tax expeanse and the accounting profit
Profit Befone Tax 14,485,732 14,8135
Income Tax (Calculated st 25.168%) JE2AE 3,728.23
Taw Effect of :
= Incoms Exermpt from Tax [1.99) {T41.80)
- Braught Forward Tax Losses - -
= Expansa not-allowad as par Income Tax Act 7402 038
- Oltrears 248,07 54,08
Imcorme Tax Expenssa 395015 3,509.88
NOTE i@ DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS-108 SEGMENT REPORTING
PARTICULARS SUGAR DISTILLERY Talal
Reavenus 2495010 3,675 55 BB 65
Liss: Inler Segrienl Revens = . ~
Othear Income 655,13
Total Revenue 24.950.10 B3,675.55 B8, 280.77
Profitloss} (before unallocated expandibure finance cost and t 327145 18,015.540 17.6085.58
Less:
i} Fimence Costs 2,TB2.B6
ii) Qe ursalioeabie axpandilure nel
off umaliocated Imoome afs Ep
i} Exceplional llem |00
Profit Before Tax 14415.72
Tan expansa:
1) Currant tax JAETT
) Parferrned fan 294,71
13) Incame e of Previous Year 237 65
Profit after tax 10,465.57
Other information
Segment Assets 3342323 81,182,889 1,14,606.12
Segment Liabilities 1168377 31,154,650 4234845
Dllkar Uralloeabda Liabililiss 3,468.86
Capital Expandilres (WIP) - 16,509.37 16,509.57
Dapraciaton debited o Siatament of Profit & Loss 19790 1,747.07 154,67
Motes:

ay  The Company has ldantified Business Segmenls as primary Segments
Thie repariable business Segments are "Sugar and "Disfilkery”

by The fype of products in eech business segments ara as undar:
Sugar | Sugar, Molasses, Power iod Bagasse
DastiBery: Liquor, Malt, Carbardicesde Gas and Ethancl

[} Thiz Company is atse comering resin in o pet bottle, which (s exclusieely used far Liguar which i taken in Distilleny Segmisnt and o
no separate segqment |s reporied far the same.

dy  Inaddifion o the significant accaunling policies applicable 1o the operaling segments as sof out in nate 44, the
accounting policies in relaton to segment accounting are as under:

(i} Segment revenue end experses.
Joird ressarus and joint expanses of segments ane alivcaled amongst tham on a reasonable basis, All othar segmenl
revenue @nd expenses are directly etiribulable W the segments.
5} Segmant asseds and liabiliies:

Segment asseds indiude all operaling assets wsad by & seqmeant ant consist principally of operabing cash, rade receivables,
myestaras and proparty. plani and equaments, ned of aBowances and provesions, whech are reporad as dires offsels in the balanca
aneal Bagmeant Eabiilies nclude all operaiing liabiliies and consst principally of rade palrables. Seqment assets and liabililies do
not inchuge defernad income taxes. While most of the assets! lisbiliies can be direcily atiribuled S individual segment. 1hea carmying
amount of certain assets’ Eabdities penainmyg to two or more segments are allozasad to the sagmants on a reasonable basis.
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STANDALOME A5 AT STANDALOME AS AT
NOTE 33 EMPLOYEE BEMEFIT EXPENSES 244 s 54.02.2024
Disclosure as per IND AS-13
A Shortterm ampioyes benefits
Shar-lerm empioyas benaflits are thoea employes benefits (othar than sarmnation benefits) thal re sepactad 1o be satiled wholy within bwslve mantns afler the end
B Defined contribution plan
This Company makes conlritutiond treard s pravident fund, smplayvee shiss isumnce, and albar funds as g of & defmed contriboticon retiremen? banefit phan far
{Amounl in Bs o Laca,)
For ¥edr Entded Mareh For Year Ended March
n, 028 M, 2024
Expansa recogrsced in the Profit and Loss 1331 q.55
c Defined banefit plan
- Graluity Plan
The: Company provides a defined berafit graluity plam in accondanoe with the: Paymem of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended). Linger the: plan, ghgbie employecss are
- Leave Encashment Plan
The Compary pravides kve ancashrent benehils o employees, allowing Ment 1o accurmuiale earmed lepve, which can be duailéd dufing senace or
- Valuation of Defined Benefit Plans
Thee valustion af the gratuity Eabifly has been comguted using the Projecied Linit Cradit [PLIC] method. Under the PLC method a profected accried banedt is
G Actuarial Assemptions
Cla  Summary of Actuarial Assumptions for Gratuity
For Year Endad For Year Ended
Farticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Maality Rale 100% of LALLM (2012 - 14) 10055 al WALM (2052 - 14)
Discourt Raba 67 T.13%
Fulure Satary Increase Rele 5500 5.50%
Withdrawal Withedsawal
Adtrition Rate Rate {%) Rate: (%4}
Lip by 30 ywars: 3007 J.00%
Framr 31 b dd years: Z2.00% 2.00%
ALGYVE 44 YERS: 1.00% 1.00%
CAl  Summary of Actuarial Assumptions for Leave Encashment
Far Yoar Ended For Yoar Ended
Particukars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Faliremert Age T il
Martalty Rate 100% of ALM (2012 - 140 0% of LALM (2052 - 14)
Disconnd Rate 679 000
Fulunz Salary incroase Rate 550 0.00
Leave
Laave Avaiment Rata 2000 ]
Leava Lapsa Rata Whils in Sarvics 0.0 ]
Lmive Lapse Rate on Exil (1N ] ]
Leivn Encaisbrmesi Bods ‘Wi i Serdce 0.0 ]
‘Withdrawal Withdrawal
Attrition Rate Rate (%) Pt |%2)
Lip b 30 years: 00 ]
Fram 21 to 44 years: 0, ]
Abiawe 44 yedrs 1.00% o
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€11  Economic Assumptions
Thes principsl assumgdiors are the discount nive & sakirg growth rate. The dscount mile is genesly based vpon the market viskds meaikible on Gevemmant bonds a
Foar Gratulty-
Particulars 3032075 31032024
i} Discounting Rabe &, T4 T.13
i) Fubure Sty Increamse [ 5.5
For Leave Encashment-
Fartlcutars F1-03-3035 F1-03-2024
|| Mscounting Rata L [
i) Futune saiary increasn BE (1]
CAZ Demographic Assumplions
For Gratuitys
Farticulars 31-03-2025 3-03-2024
Iy Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
I} Marlsliy retes incusive of provision for disabdity FOE% of BALM (3042 - £4) | 100% of IALM (2013 - 14)
i) Attrmn at Ages Wishdraasd Rene {%) ‘Withdrawal Rata (%)
Lig ba 30 Yaors 3 )
Fraon 31 ko 44 years 2 z
Abave 44 yars 1 1
-Mortality Rates for speciman ages Age | Rate | Age Rate Age Rate
15] p.0006sE| 45| noogsza 75| 0pamzl
2] £.000s) S0 DLD0d436 80 CLDE1945
23] 00053 5] D1 a5 n.m:rgj
30 B000E T L R W [ 2 0163507
35 0O3F0G 5| 001587 Q5| 0.7 58 70|
ao] oo e 7ol podddosy 100 0357733
For Leave Encashmant.
Farliculars 1030015 F-03-2024
I) Rebrement Age (Years) ] [
i|_;| Mariality rafes inclusive pfprm':glm ﬁ',wcllsahll‘l‘:,l - 100 % qfr.l‘-'ul_M[?I:l'l?-TA_l 0% of AL (2017 = 14)
it | Lot v
Leave Avalmeni Rale 2% 1]
Lesave Lapse Ralo Whits In Sarvice o 0
Leave Lapse Rate on Exit o [
Leave Encashment Rata Whis in Service [i] [
iv) Atinhon af Agrs VWinoraaml Raie (%) ‘Withdrawal Riabg (4]
Lin by 30 Y -] o
Fram 31 1o 44 yeans 2 o
Al 44 poans 1 1]
-Mortality Rates for specimen ages | Age | Rae fuge Aate Age Rare
15] p.oooess] 45| 0LO0ZSTI 75| 0.03E721
0] OOG0EES S0 Doood436] o] sy E L |
251 0000511 55| DLOOTS13 A5{ 0100975
30 .000eTT 6 00L1162 O 0. WE2507]
35| C0L700 5] CUDESEET a5| 0.75970¢
| 7a| oooasosy] 00| 0.357733
€2 Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefil Gifigation
({Te be Recognised In he Balanca Sheal)
{Amount in Bs in Lacs. |
For Year Ended For Year Ended
Farticulars March 31, 2025 Warch 31, 2024
&} Present Yalue of DBO s at the Beginning of the Periad 105683 Ta.20
b Aequisition Adiustment - 5
(=] Inferast Cost 7.55 5.49
niteresl Cost on DBO .55 44
o} Current Sarvice Cost 531 49 T8
L1 Pasi Bervice Cost including curtafiiment Gains/Losses 1808 17.08
il Benelits Paid - -
{11 Tatal Actuariad [Gabkn)iLoss on Obligation 154.148 -
-hotuansl fEanyloss on artsing fram Change 01 Fnancis Assumpion 73 -
~Acizanal (Ganpyloss on arisng from Expenence Adustmen 15045 .
Lal] Fresont Yalue of DBO as &1 the End of the Periad 3313 10583
C.3 Compenents of Expense Recognlsaed
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CA31 (Recogreses inthe Stalemenl al Prafil and Loss)
For Year Ended For Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
aj Taotal Service Cosl Ti.57 2415
~Currént Service Cosl 53.4% 7.4
Past Service Cost inchiding curtaiment Gars/Losses 17.78 #7.08
-Gians or Losses on Mon routine setlisments - -
a4} Interast Cost 7495 543
slrterest Cosl on DEO T.EE .49
c Tatal Expense Recognised in Profit and Loss TH.12 29.64
C3.2 (Revalalion Recogniged in Clher Comprabensive Inconme)
Fas Yiear Ended Far Yiear Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
&) Unrecognized actuasial gaini{boss) for the year -154.18 -
~Actuarial gain ¢ {loss) for the year on DBO =154.18
~Aciuarial gain dloss) bor the year on Assat L5} =
by Met Revaluation gaind{loss) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -154.18 =
£.3.3  Tola Defined Benefil ool Recognised i Proft end Loss and Other Comprehersive Income
For Year Ended Far Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tl Expenss Recognisad in Proft and Loss Th 12 54
Met Revaiuation (gain}ices Becognised in Ciher Comprebansive Incomsa 15418 -
&y Met assel | (liability) recognized in the PIL and DCI 23128 23684
G Melasset | [liabdlity) recognized in the standalone Lalance sheet
For Year Ended For Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prasent Vale of DBC a2 the End of the Period 36 A3 10483
Far Value af Plan Assets o i
&y Het assel | [liability) recagnized in the standalone balance sheel 33813 105.83
.5 Bifurcation of BBO at the End of the Year in Current and Non Current
For Year Ended For Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 24
Current Ligbiity (dmount dims séthin ore year} 1753 i9.78
Mon-Currerd Libiily {Armounl diss oear ore ek a2 Gl Bi.05
&) Met asset [ [liabdlity) recognized in-the standalone balance shesl 339.13 105,83
C.6  Risks associated with defined benafit plan
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Based on the actuarial valuation report, the following risk exposures dirsctly alfect the Defined Benefit Obligation [DBO):

1. Galary Incresse Rigk: The DBO ks sensitive In projected salary increases because banedits are ceicuiated on the besis of the Bnal salary at ratiement. |f aclus)
salancs grow al & higher rate than the assumed 5 50%. the Rabilty wil be underestimabed. keading 5o a higher abligation than axpecied

% Discoum Rate Risk: The valuation of the DBD & highly dependent on tha dscourt rate soplied. A lower giscount rate increases e pregant value of future|
bezndits, ard the repant’s sensitivity analysls indicates that sven a 0.5% change ¢an bave a sigrificant impact on the DEQ, Vardations i market sonditions - that afecy
poverriment bond yiekls {Used o deterring the discount rabe) represent & key rigk.

. Mortality and Disability Risk: Assumplions around madality (nckding disagiily provisons) are sed on astablised moradly tbies (100% of e 1AL 2072-14]
ratas). Deviations from thess assumpliore—such @3 empioveed living longer die 1o improved heallh culcomes—would realt in a higher DBCC a8 berwlils Sooh
T & ionpar panod:

4. Attrition/Withdrawal Risk: The plan factors in employee wilhdrawal rales (300% for emplopees up bo 30 years, 2:00% for those Debwsan 31 1o 44 years, and
1.00% for employeas above 44 yearsh B achual etfrition differs from these assumptions (for exempla, if employeas remain longar than. expectsd). the accnuang
Lereditg—arwd bance the DBO—atuld be maleially dilferant Tram the aslimalas,

& investment Risk (In a funded scenario): Allhough plan assels ane not separately stated in the repert. ina scenarig where the plan werg furded, any mismaizh)
besbvesen e aclual return on plan assets and the assumed Esoount rale weud allec] the nel bty Pace rvestmenl gerfarmance relative lo e discounl rale wauld
waorsen the funding status, indiractly impacting the neporad LEO.

€7 Sonstivity Analysis of tha Defined Banafit Obligation®

=For Gratuity Plan

a) Impact of the Change in Discount Rate |

1) Prasant Valua of Obligation at the end of the period EEEE

1) Impact dus o ingreass of 0.50% -5.87

14 Impact due bo degresse of 0.50% 6.31

hr Impact of the change in t.ahry increase

2} Pregent Value of Obligation 8t the end of the pericd MT.55

2:a) Irnpact dis o e fedsa of 0.50% 8:38

2] Impact dus 1o decresse of 0.50% -5.87
-For Leave Encashmen: Flan

a) Impact of the Change in Discount Rate

1) Prasant Value of Obligation 8l the end of the peried 25T

1a] Impact due bo incresse of 0.50% -0.d1

1.4 Impact dus to decresss of 0.50% 043

b} Impact of the changs in salary increaso

L.} Pregent Value of Obligation at the end of the period 21.57

2.4) Imnpact due o incragsa of 0.50% 0.4£

2]}:| Irpact due bo decreass of 0.50% ~0.41

* Zansilivities due fo monalily & wilhdrawals are not malenal & bence mpact of changs dus bo these nol calouialed, Sensilivilies as rabe of increase f persaons in
paymant. raba of incraase of pansions bafora retirement & e expeciancy are not applcatle
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NOTE

40 Share-Based Payments

STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

EQUITY SETTLED STOCK OPTION PLAN

This Piccadily Agro Industries Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 has been approved by the Board and by the Shareholders

ofthe Company pursuant to the spedal resolution passed at the Postal Ballot of the Shareholders, held on 30 October 2024.

In accordance with IND AS 102 - Share-Based Payment, the Company recognizes the fair value of stock options granted to
employees as an expense in the financial statements, with a comesponding increase in equity. The fair value of the options is
determined at the grant date. The options granted under the Plan are subject to vesting conditions, which may include service-based
and performance-based oriteria. Upon vesting, employees have the right to exercise their options within the stipulated exercise

period.

Total expense arsing from share based payment transaction for the year is 1.50 crore has been charged to standalone statement of
Profitand Loss. Also, for the ESOP Plan 2024, the range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the yearwas INR 10.

ESOP PLAN 2024

Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

Number WAEP (INR)

Total Mo of Oplions Granted During the Year

235045

Total No of Options Vested During the Year

0

Total No of Options Exercised During the Year

0

Foreited/Expired During the Year

0

Outstanding At the End of the Year

235045

Exercisable at the End of the Year

0

NOTE

41 Corporate Social Responsibilty Expenditure

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 ofthe Act, the Board of Directors of
the Company had constituted a CSR committee. The Company is required to spend
at least 2% of its averagenet proft made during the immediately 3 preceding
financial years on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. Following is
the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses incumed on CSR
activities.

STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Particulars

STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

(d)

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year-

Amount spent during the year on CSR activities-
1} For construction / acguisition of any assets-
ii) For purposes other than (1) above-

Shortfallf{Excess) spent during the year (A)
Unutilised excess CSR spend as at the beginning of the year (B)
Unutilised excess CSR spend as at the end of the year (B-A)

12991

140.09
i
140,08

-10.18
1.68
11.87

64.04

65.72

-1.68

1.68

NOTE

42 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS-24 RELATED PARTY

(A) List of Related Parties and Relationships:

a. Key Management Personnel
Sh.Harvinder Singh Chopra (Managing Director)
5h.D K. Batra {Whaole-Director)
Sh.Natwar Aggarwal (Chief Financial Officer)
Sh.Balinder Kumar (Ex-Chief Financial Officer)
Sh.Miraj Kumar Sehgal ( Company Secrelary)
Sh. Akhil Dada (Ex-Director)
Sh. Jai Parkash Kaushik [Director)
Sh. Rajeev Kumar Sanger (Director)
Sh. Rajan Talwar (Director)
Mrs, Heena Gera (Direclor)

b. Subsidiary
Portvadie Distillers & Blenders Limited
Six Trees Drinks Private Limited

c. Associates:
Piccadily Sugar and Allied Industries Limited
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d. Pramater Group
5h.Siddhartha Sharna
Piccadily Holels Privale Limnited
Boon-n-Sure Holdings Lid
@, Relative of KMP
Mrs. Deaplka Batra
Wiz Hanchian Sehgal
Mz, Ehakl Rani Sharma
Mirs, Kailash Ganclhi
{. Significant Influence
irwcllzn Mait Wiesky Association [Significant influence ower Seclion )
i STANDALOMNE AS AT STANDALOME AS AT
B Bubted Party Tansston; 31.03.2025 31.03.5024
{Rs. in Lakh=) {Rs. in Lakhs)
i. Sale of Goods/Services:
Piecadily Sugar ard Albed Indutins Livibed 23008 150.45
Piccadily Hotels Privale Limiteg - -
Il. Purchase of GoodsiServices:
Plocadily Hotels Frivale Lirnited = -
Picesadily Sugar and Aad ndusdhas Lirmded 20040 333,88
ill. Gffice Rental Income
Indign Mait Whesicy Association 400 -
iv. Office Rent Expense
Searer-Sure Holdings Lid - N
Piccadily Hoteds Put, Lid - i
Shakt Rani Sharma 1290 1.20
w. Membership Subscription Fees
Indlian Malt Whisky Association 25,00 -
vii  Invesiment Received
Soami-Sure  Holdings Lid 1.250.0D0 -
wil. Investment Made
Parlvadie Dislillers & Blenders Limited Ad45 -
wiil. Professional Charges
Siddhartha Sharma 121.20 3.0
Mire. Kanchan Sehgal BaT v.28
[T+ Balances cutstanding with Related Parties
Piccadily Sugar & Allied indusiries Limited 4206455 3,788,313
Plecedily Hoteds Pyt. Lid 15281 147 B4
Indian Mall Whiskay Aszocralion 482 -
1813 Remuneration to Directors
Bh. Harvinder Singh Chopra 144 90 12224
Sh. D.K. Batra 5115 39,00
Sl Fajeay Kumar Saager .80 :
Bh Megn Gerni 1487 -
Sh. Ralan Tatwar 158 .
Sh Akl Dada Pengding
Sh Jes Parkash Keushek Pendng
{E) Romungration {o KMP and Relative of KMP
Sh. Matwar Aggarwal AT -
She Miraj Mumar Sehgal 1368 13.64
Sh. Balindar Shasma 12.20 12.20
Mrs. Denzpika Baira 18.06 15.00
Mrs. Kadash Gandhi 178 -
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Principal
Inbanesd

(b} Principal amount pasd (indludias unpaid)
bevond the Bppointad date

(&) Inberest due ard payabie forthe year

[d) The amourd of inferest secnaed and remaining urpesd al
1ha end of accounling year.

(&) The armount of futhes nleres) rerairing dus and
panyabihe gen in the succeeding years, unlil such
ety when the mhenst dues 35 above are acrply
pakd b0 the small erterprise for tha purpose of dizallowance es 8
deduclibe expanddue under secton 23 of the MSMED A1, 2006

STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
MNOTE 43 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS-41 AGRICULTURE 1.03.2025 31.03.2094
PARTICULARS
Opaning bakance L E ] 11.56
Addilians dus by Recogritian 11.36 B4
Decrease due fo harvesied 1878 10,17
Closing Balance 242 853
STANDALONE A5 AT STANDALONE AS AT
NOTE dd4 FOREMGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION 39.03.2025 103,202
{Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
{i) Wirluee af imgrorts inclustee af fraight paid ta fareign logistic companies calcutabed on CIF basis by the comgany during
tha financial year in respact of
1 Rera Malarnals MIL HETZ
2. Comgooents and Spane Fars HIL HIL
i Capital Goods 457137 501584
4 Cher Imparts 397 .58
(b} Expenditure in Farelign Travelling A6 44,41
(c) Sale Fromolion Especse 188 MIL
STANDALONE AS AT STANDALONE AS AT
MOTE 45 MICRO 5MALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2008 31.09.2025 31032024
(R5. in Lakhs) (R5. in Lakhs)
Information as required to be furnished &8 per section 22 of the Micro, Small and 2006
[MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2025 Medium Enterprizes Development Act,
[Ell Principal amount ard irterest due thareon remaining
urpsid to any supglier coverad urder MSMED Act:
1,683.48 E26.42

MOTE 48 REGROUFING OF FIGURES

with rewvised Schedule |1 Division (i}

Thie presvious yedr figures hiave Dean recast’ regroupsed wheneser considered necessary bo faciliale comparison

NOTE 47 MSCLOSURE OF RATIOS

ARMUAL REPORT - FY2024-25 |

209



7

PICCADILY

= |

-

L5

PARTICULARS

Current Ratio s[Currenl Assets/
Current Liabilities]

{Currant Liabaties =Tabal curent
Jliabilities-Cumrent Mahrities of Mon-
Currerit Barrowings)

STANDALOME A5 AT
.03.2028

1.58

STAMDALONE AS AT

.03, 2024

1.48

% CHANGE DURING THE
YEAR

41.27%

EXPLANATION FOR MORE
THAN 256% CHANGE

Duie foy increase in current
ass6Rs and desrasss in
currar liakilily

Debt Equity Ratio = [Total Debt
(Casrrent and Mon Gurrent)Total
Equity]

(Tedal Equily: Ecuily Shara
GaplitaHOthar Equity}

.56

“10.46%

Debt Service Coverage Ratho =
[EBITDA Interest + Principal
Rapaymant]]

(EBIDTAEsmings bealons
Tan+interast Expansa on non-curmant
beiirinaings HDepraciation &
Amorteaton Expansa)

Return on Eq:uil:.l Ratio = [Profit
Adter Tax! Average Equity)

{Total Eguity: Ecailty Share
Capitat+ Othar Equity)

020

LE ]

(]

-55.TE%

-47.90%

Due to incresse n
rapayrienl af grincipad and
iterasl i comgenson

mcroase m ERIDTA

D b itscreage i ohes
ety onaccoun of issue of
comEtEe debentames ard
warranks

Inventory Turnocwver Ratie = [Cost
Of Goods Soldifverage Inventory)

{Ceat of Goods Sold:Opening
Irvantory+Purchasas = Manufachring
Expeitses-Closng lventary)
fvarage Imvandony: (Opening
Jliveritorys Glosing Inventary @

58

“25.01%

Due to increass in averoge
invenlary in Curreat Year in
coniparison to Pravicus Yeaar

-

o

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio
= (Rewenue From
Operationsifyerage Trade
Recuivables)

Awarage Trade
Recaividles:[Dpaning Trade
Hecalvables+Clasing Trade
Rrecaivableskd

.48

LRI

A19.38%

Trade Payables Tumover Ratio =
(Purchases during the yaarl
Average Trade Payables)
fuverage Trads Payalies:(Opening
Trace Payabbes+ Closing Trade
Panyain |2

47.13%

D b0 gecresase in credibars.

Met Capital Turnover Ralio =
[Rawenue Fram
OperationsWorking Capital)
Warking Capilal-=Currant Assals-
Currart Liabdties

(Gurrard Liabiiias =Talal currenl
|ligbilities-Curent Matugithas of nen-
cueEnt borrowings)

T2

-54.95%

Ditse b irscraass in working
capital

Med Profit Ratio = [Nat Profit!
Revenue From Operations)

1181

13.54

12.79%

Retuen on Capital Employed =
(Profit Before interest and Taw/!
Capital Employad)

.20

032

-36.68%

Capital Employad=Eguity Shana
Capiat+Oiber Equity+Mon Corrent
Barsnwings Houment
Barrowings+Hlhafered Tax Liab#ties

Dl b increzse in cagital
amgoyed

AMMUAL REPOHT - FY2024-25

210



w

PICCADILY

= |

11 | Return on Investment = [Nel
ProfitCapital Emplayed)

12.44 7.m -53.95% | Due to incrassy in cagital
Capital Employed:Equity Shere efrgleyed
Capital+Othir Equity+Non Gurner
Eoerwinga+ Cument

EBorrowings=-Deferrad Tax Lishilities
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (note-48)

1. Corporate Information

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited {CIN No. : LO1115HR1994PLC032244 ) ('the Cormpany’) is a public limited
campany incorporated in India. The Company is incorporated with an aim to provide boost to state industry
by establishing an eco-friendly sugar mill in the year 1996 and distillery in 2007 at Village Bhadson, Umri-
Indri Road, Karnal (Haryana). The financial statements have been approved by Board of Directors in their

board meeting dated May 20, 2025,

It manufactures White Crystal Sugar from Sugar cane cultivated in the surrounding rural areas and
Rectified Spirit, Carbon dioxide Gas, Extra Neutral Alcohal (ENA) from Molasses/ Rice | Wheat, Malt, Pet.

2. Statement of Compliance with IND AS

These slandalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

3. Basis of Preparation

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or amartized cost at the
end ol each reporling period. Historical cosl is generally based on the fair value of the consideralion given
in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets
and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of
resources and the realization in cash and cash equivalents of the consideration for such sernvices rendered,
the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months. The statement of cash flows have been
prepared under indirect method. These standalone financial statements have been prepared in Indian
Rupee (%) which is the functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities are refranslated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet dale and exchange
gains and losses arising on settiement and restatement are recognized in the staterment of profit and loss

4, Going Concern

The Board of Directors have considered the financial position of the Company as at 31* March, 2025 and
projected cash flows and financial performance of the Company for at least twelve months from the date of
approval of these financial statements as well as planned cost and cash improvement actions, and believe
that the plan for sustained profitability remains on course.

The board of directors have laken actions lo ensure that appropriate long-term cash resources are in place
at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operations.

5. Use of estimates
The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the
Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of
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contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any
future years if the revision effects such periods.

Also key sources of estimation uncertainty is mentioned below:

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:
As described in the significant accounting policy, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

i) The fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where level 1 input are not available, the Company engages third party
valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs, used in determining the fair value of various assets, liabilities are disclosed in notes to
standalone financial statements,

6. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Cost of acquisition or construction is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes, other directly
attributable incidental expenses and gains or losses on effective portion of cash flow hedges related to
purchase in foreign currency and interest on loans attributable to the acquisition or construction of assefs
up to the date of commissioning of assets.

The Company is following straight line method of depreciation in respect of buildings, plant and equipment
and other assets.

Depreciation on all tangible assets is provided on the basis of estimated useful life and residual value
determined by the management based on a technical evaluation considering nature of asset, past
experience, estimated usage of the asset, vendor's advice etc., which coincides with the useful life as
prescribed under Schedule || of the Companies Act 2013 except for certain items of Plant and Equipment.

i) Estimated Useful Lives:

i FACTORY BUILDING | 30 Years
‘ADMINISTRATIUE BUILDING 30 years
|'PFLTAH? & MACHINERY 15 years
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FURNITURE & FIXTURE | 10 Years
| COMPUTERS | 3 Years
' OFFICE EQUIPMENTS | 5 Years
51n."EHEIELES | 10 Years

{iy  Estimated residual value;
The Estimated residual value of assets other than Land is taken as 5% of its original cost.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of additions. On assets sold, discarded stc.
during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of salefdiscard.

b) Capital work-in-progress:

Capital work-in-progress are carmried al cosl, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
atiributable borrowing cost, less impairment losses if any,

c) Inventories:

Inventories are valued as follows: Raw materials, stores and spares, Material in transit and packing
materials Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use
in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on FIFO Basis. Finished goods
Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials, labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Work-in-process Valued at lower of cost
and net realizable value up to estimated stage of process. Cost includes direct materials, labour and a
prapartion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary fo make the sale. By-products are valued at Net realizable value.

d) Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue from sale
of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to
the customer and is stated net of trade discounts, sales returns. Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company
has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is to be recognized. Revenue includes excise duty however, sales tax/ value added tax
(VAT)/Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the company on its own account, Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue. Income against claims of the company, viz., export incentives, insurance claims,
elc., Is recognized on accruallright to receive basis.

e) Other revenue streams

Interest Income
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For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument{for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

fi Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans

Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and superannuation fund are
recognized in the staterment of profit and loss.

{ii} Defined benefit plans

The liability recagnized in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting perlod less the fair value of plan assels, where applicable. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-measurement comprising
actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assels (exciuding net interest) are recognized in the other
comprehensive income for the period in which they occur and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

(i  Bonus Plans

The company recognises a liability and an expense for bonus, The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

{iv)  Gratuity

The Company has defined benefit plans for post-employment benefits in the form of gratuity for its
employees in India. Liability for defined benefit plans is provided on the basis of actuarial valuations, as at
the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial valuation method used by
independent actuary for measuring the liability is the projected unit credit method.

{v) Long Term Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has defined contribution plans for post-employment benefits in the form of provident fund,
employees’ state insurance and Labour Welfare Fund.

g) Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at fair value at each Balance Sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market parficipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible
to the Company,
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements
are calegorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

sLevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

“Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

sLevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and
disclosure. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

h) Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee (). Transactions in
foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction,

Monetary items (i.e. receivables, payable, loans etc.) denominated in foreign currency are reported using
the closing exchange rate on each reporting date.

The exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting these items at rates
differant from rates at which these were initially recorded/reported in previous financial statements are
recognized as incomelexpense in the period in which they arise except for exchange difference on foreign
currency borrowings relating o assel under construction for fulure use, which are included in the cost of
those assels when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost on those foreign currency
barrawings,

i} Financial instruments :

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs thal are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of financial asset or financial liabilitiss, as appropriate, an initial recognitian,

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaclion cosls that are attributable {o the
acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are
included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trade) are recognized on frade date. While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognized net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the
following categories: non derivative financial assets comprising amortized cost, debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair value through
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profit and loss account (FVWTPL) and non-derivative financial liabilities at amortized cost or FVTPL. The
classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held.
Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement:
A Nan-derivative financial instrumants
(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subseguently measured at amortized cost if it is held in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) if
it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amaount outstanding.

(iiiy  Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

(iv)  Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the conftractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind
AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance
Sheel when the obiligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

i} Impairment;

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired.  any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. Value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at
the end of its useful life. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment
loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement to the extent carrying amount exceeds recoverable
amount. Assessment is also done at each Balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no lenger exists or may have
decreased.
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i) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss for the financial assets which are
not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount egual to lifetime expected credit loss.

i} MNon-financial assets: Tangible and intangible assets

Froperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount {i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced fo its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, The Company review/assess al each reporting date if there is
any Indication that an asset may be impaired

k) Income taxes

The Income-tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and are recognized in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the income tax and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respactively.

(i} Current Income Tax:

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in aquity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respact to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are
presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and there is an intention to
settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

(ii)Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assels and
liabilities are recognized far deduclible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except whean the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred income tax assets are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset fo be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary
differences are expected to be received or setfled.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and fo the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset
is reviewed at each balance sheel dale and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is wrilten down to
the extent their is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets
against liabilities representing the current tax and where the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,

1) Provisions and contingent liabilities:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
besl estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
gvents where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannol be made. Conlingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in the standalone financial statements.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognized in accordance with the
requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amaortization recognized in accordance with the requiraments for revenue recognition.

m} Earnings per Share:

Baslc eamings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed by adjusting the number of shares used for basic EPS with the
weighted average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have
been issued at a later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value ie. average market value of outstanding
shares,

The number of shares and potentially dilulive shares are adjusted for share splits and bonus shares, as
appraopriate. In calculating diluted earnings per share, the effects of anti-dilutive potential equity shares are
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ignored. Potential equity shares are anti-dilutive when their conversion to equity shares would increase
earnings per share or decrease loss per share.

n) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assat
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Az per Ind AS 116 each lease companent within the contract is accounted as a lease separately from non -
lease components of the contract and the consideration in the contract is allocated to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease componeant and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components. A right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date is recognized. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset or restaring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-
use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasuremenl of the lease liability. The righl-of-use assels is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
useful life of righ-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tesled for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments thal are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental
borrawing rate is used,

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the camrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassaessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments. The amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification is recognized as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of
modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the

measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement
in statement of profit and loss.

Company as a lessee:

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases on short- term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low
value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

o) Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets thal necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
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from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred,

p} Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income. Government
grants relating to the purchase of propery, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets and presented within other income.

During the year in accordance with IND AS 20, the subsidy has been accounted for as income in the period
to which it pertains, despite the actual receipt being deferred lo a subsequent financial year. The
recognition is based on reasonable assurance that the grant conditions have been met and the amount will
be received.

q) Provisions

Provisions for claims including litigations are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a
result of past events, in the year when it is established by way of orders of court or government notifications
etc. that it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations and the amount
can be reasonably estimated. The provision including any subsequent adjustments are accounted for in the
same expeanditure line item to which the claim pertains.

r} Employee Stock Options (ESOP'S)

The Company has implemented an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) to attract, retain, and motivate
employees by offering them an opportunity to participate in the equity ownership of the Company. Under
the ESOP scheme, eligible employees are granted options that vest over a defined period, subject to
continued employment and other conditions as specified in the plan.

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 102 — Share-based Payment, the Company measures the
fair value of the options granted on the date of grant and recognizes it as an employee compensation
expense over the vesting period. During the financial year, the Company granted 2,35,045 stock options to
eligible employees. Based on the fair value of these options on the grant date, the Company has
recognized an employee benefit expense of 1,50 crore in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This expense
is allocated over the respective vesting period, and the amount recognized during the year reflects the
portion attributable to the current year.

s) Instruments Classified as Equity in Nature

The Company classifies certain financial instruments as equity in nature in accordance with the principles
laid down under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, where such instruments do not contain
any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset and are mandatorily convertible into a
fixed number of equily shares. These instruments are presented under "Other Equity" in the financial
statements. The Company has issued financial instruments during the year which, in accordance with the
principles laid down under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation, have been classified as equity
instruments. These instruments are non-redeemable, mandatorily convertible, and do not involve any
contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets, thereby meeting the conditions for
classification as equity.
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Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs)- The Company accounts for Compulsorily
Convertible Debentures (CCDs) as equity instruments where the terms of the issue specify
mandatory conversion into a fixed number of equity shares after a specified period, with no option
for redemption in cash. Even though the CCDs carry a fixed rate of interest, the interest does not
result in a contractual obligation for cash payment. Accordingly, the proceeds from such CCDs are
classified under "Other Equity — Instruments entirely equity in nature." Interest accrued on these
instruments is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost, with a
corresponding credit to Other Equity.

Compulsorily Convertible Warrants (CCWs)- The Company issues Compulsorily Convertible
Warrants (CCWs) which entitle the holder to subscribe to a fixed number of equity shares upon
conversion, with no repayment or redemption feature. As the conversion is mandatory and there is
no obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset, these instruments are classified as equity.
The amount received on issuance of such CCWs is accounted for under "Other Equity -
Instruments entirely equity in nature,” in line with the requirements of Ind AS 32,

t) Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requiras the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of asset and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the period presentad.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future are:

i) Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment: Useful life and residual value are
determined by the management based on a technical ewvaluation considering nature of asset, past

exparience, estimated usage of the assel, vendor's advice etc and same is reviewed at each financial year
end.

iy Deferred tax assets: The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets including MAT
credit at the end of each reporting period and reduces to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

i) Revenue:

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services
to a customer. The Company assesses the products | services promised in a contract and identify distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgment
o determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer lo benefit independently from such
deliverables.

» Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract and to ascribe the transaction
price to each distinct performance obligation. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of
customer consideration or varable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, service level
credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, The transaction price is also adjusted for
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the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any
consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a
distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The
Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the
contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance
obligations.

+ The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes
benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer
of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

» Revenue for fixed=price contract is recognized using percentage-of completion method. The Company
uses judgment to estimate the future cost-to=completion of the contracts which is used to determine the
degree of completion of the performance obligation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDMTOR'S REPORT
‘T'o the Members of Piccadily Agro Industries Lid

Report on the Aodit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of M/s Piccadily Apro Industries Limited Chereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company™), and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Giroup™), its associate companics which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit & Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hercinafter referred to as “the Consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its
associates as at 31st March, 2025, and their consolidated profit, conszolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated
cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those Standards are further described in the Awuditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Acecountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements underthe provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judpment, were of most sipnificance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there
are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

(Orther Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information compriscs the information included in the Manapement Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including
Anncxure to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Sharcholder’s Information, but docs not include the Consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Holding Company's annual report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report

Owr opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
Consolidated Financial Performance, Consolidated Total Comprehensive income, Consolidated Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other aceounting principles generally accepted in
India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judpments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the acecounting records,
rclevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Group or to ccase
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for oversecing the financial
reporting process of cach company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether doe to frand or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranee is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judpment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We alsa:

»  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

#  (btain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Group and its associates have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

&  Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting cstimates and related
disclosures made by management and board of directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management and board of director's use of the poing concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw attention in ouwr auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue asa going concem.
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=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial starements represent the underlying transactions and evenis in g
manner that achieves [air presentation.

Mateniality is the magnitude of misstaternents in the consolidated financial statements that, individoally or in
agaregate, makes it probable that the economic decizions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the scope of
aur audit work and in evaluating the resulls of our work: and (i) (o evaluale the effect of any identified misstatements
in the financial statements;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and signaficant audit findings. including any significant deficieneies in nternal control that we identify duting our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we bave complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought ta
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the maticrs communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
deseribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that o matter should not be communicated in our teport because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the Gnancial statements of | subsidiary which is located outside India whose financial statements and other
finaneial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective
country, whose Financial Statements reflect Total Assets of Rs. 193577 lakhs, total revenue of Rs. N1L and total net profit/{loss)
after tax of Rs (193.35 Lakhs) for the year ended 31.03.2025 respectively, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements.

Our opinion on the Consohidated Financial statements 14 not modified in respéct of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the Financial Results certified by the Board of Directors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

by In owr opinien, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so faras it appears fromour
examination of those books;

ic) The Consolidated Ralance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements.

() In our opinien, the aforesard Consolidated Financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20014,

ie) With respect to 1he adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating eifectiveness
of such controls; refer to our separate Report in “Amnexure A” which is based on the auditor's reports of the Group, its
subsidiary and pssociate companies, Our report expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
ofthe Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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With respeet to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectivencss
of such controls; refer to our scparate Report in “Annexure A” which is bascd on the auditor's reports of the Group, its
subsidiary and associate companics. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
cffectivencss ofthe Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respeet to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section

197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Ciroup o its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of scetion 197 of the Act.

(h)

(115

iii.

vi.

il
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With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companics

{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated financial
statements  Refer Note 33 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements:
The Ciroup and its associate did not have any material foresecable losses on long-torm

contracts including derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts and equity shares, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which arc material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including forcign entity
{“Imtermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intcrmediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on
behalfof the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any puarantee, seeurity or the like on behalfof the Ultimate
Beneficianes;

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which arc material either
individually or in the aggrepate) have been received by the Group from any person or entity, including forcign entity
{*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the Lltimate
Bencficiaries;

Bascd on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (i) of Rule 11(c).

The reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companics { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023,
Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its
books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, for the periods audit trail (edit log)
facility was cnabled and operated throughout the year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail foature being tampered with.
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viii. The group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

2. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Reportunder Section 197(16) of the Act:

Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid during the current year
by the Holding Company to its directors 1s in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of
the Act. The subsidiary companies incorporated in India have not paid any remuneration to its directors during the
vear. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us.

For JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(Regd No.:001361N)

Sd/-
Date: May 20, 2025 Krishan Mangawa
Place: Gurugram Partner
UDIN: 25513236BMIJPIT3 161 Membership No.: 513236
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Annexure “A™ to the Audit Report

{Referred to n paragraph 1{F} under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' scetion of our report to the
Members of Piceadily Agro Industries Limited ol cven date).

Reporton the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act™)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended March 31,
2025, we have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES
LIMITED (hercinafter referred to as “The Holding Company™) and one associate company, which are companics
incorporated in India, as ol that date.

Reportng under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Scction 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the mternal financial
conirols with referenee to consolidated financial statements is not applicable to one subsidiary incorporated in India
namcly SIX TREES DRINKS PRIVATE LIMITED, pursuant to MC A notification GSR 583(E) dated 13 Junc 2017,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Group, its subsidiarics
and its associate companics have, in all matenal respeets, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such intcmal financial controls over financial reporting were operating cffectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting critenia established by the respective companics considering the
csscntial components of mtemal control stated m the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Finaneial Reporting issucd by the Institule of Charliered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Group, its subsidiancs and its associate companies, which are responsible for cstablishing
and maintaiming intcmal financial controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting critena cstablished by
the Group considering the essential components of intermal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal
Finanecial Controls Owver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI™).
These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and mamtenance of adequate internal financial controls thal
were operahing cffectively for ensurmg the orderly and efficient conduct of its busmess, includng adherence to
respoctive Group's policics, the safeguarding of its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and ermors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of rehable finaneial information, as requited
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Aunditor's Responsibility

Owr responsibility s to express an opinion on the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group, iis
subsidiarics and its associates, bascd on our andit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the (indance Motc on
Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as
specificd under scetion 143(10) of the Companics Act, 2013, to the cxtent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audil of Internal Financial Controls and, both issucd by the Instituic of Charlered
Accountants of India. Thosc Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan
and perform the andit to oblain reasonable assuranee about whether adequate intemnal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effcetivel y in all material respeets.

Our audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
syslem over financial reporting and their operating effectivencss. Our audit of intemnal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of intermnal financial controls over financial reporting, asscssing the risk
that a material weakness cxsts, and testing and cvaluating the design and operating cffcctiveness of intemal control
bascd on the asscssed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the asscssment of the
nsks of maternial misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether duc to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Group, its subsidiary and its associate Companies.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, inreasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Group; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OTHERMATTERS

QOur report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company, in
so far as it relates to one subsidiary company, and an associate, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in

India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For JAIN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(Regd No.:001361N)

Sd/-
Date: May 20, 2025 Krishan Mangawa
Place: Gurugram Partner
UDIN: 25513236BMIPJT3161 Membership No.: 513236
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PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE : VILLAGE BHADSON, UMRI-INDRI ROAD, KARNAL (HARYANA)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31st March, 2025
Ameunt in Lakhs (INR)
S No. Particulars Note CONSOLIDATED AS AT COMSOLIDATED AS AT
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(a) Property Plant & Equipment 1 28,198.01 21,788.72
(b) Capital Work in Progress 1A 20,094.75 4,188.18
(e) Biological assets 2 242 9.83
(d) Goodwill 3 0.18 0.18
(e) Financial assets
{i)  Investments 4 6,024 .86 6,060 61
(i} Other financial assets 5 a7.22 97.32
f) Other non current assets ] 4.927.07 1,692.58
Total non-current assets 59,284.51 33,837 41
2  Current assets
(a) Inventones 7 30,320.47 19,603.80
(b} Financial assats
{iy Trade receivables 8 13,686.94 13,665.18
(i) ~ Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 962,14 1,448 84
(i} Other Bark Balances 10 379414 404 .81
{iv) Other financial assets 1 1,988 94 1,703.87
(e) COther current assets 12 4,400.34 3,253.19
INTERUNIT BALANGES - -
Total current assets 55,152.97 40,069.68
Tatal assets 1,14,437 .45 73,907.09
- CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
8 Ne- Particulars Note 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
B) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Edquity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 9,433.93 943393
(b) Other Equity 14 58,574.90 24 536.95
Total equity 68,008.83 33,970.88
2
(a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 15 14,204.13 5,944 03
(b} Provisions 16 162,60 86.08
(e) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17 1,661.77 1,485.85
(d) Qther non current liabilities 18 504.44 1,835.12
Total non-current liabilities 16,622.94 9,351.06
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i}  Borrowings 19 16,612.51 11,235.80
(i) Trade Payables 20 5,349.97 11,081.96
(iiiy ~ Other financial liabilities 21 1,813.32 557.69
({b) C iTax Liabilities 22 1,807.03 284617
(e) Ot rrent Liabilities 23 4,046,386 5,043.75
(d) P 5 24 176.53 19.78
Total current liabilities 29,805.72 30,585.15
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,14,437.49 73,907.09
Motes on Financial Statements "1-48 For and en behalf of Beard
AUDITOR'S REPORT
As per our separate repart of even date
FOR JAIN & ASSOCIATES Sdi- Sdi-
CHARTERED ACCOUMNTANTS Matwar Aggarwa Harvinder Singh Chopra
FRN : 01361M (Chief Finandial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
DIN: 00129891
Sd-
Krishan Mangawa Sdi- Sdi-
(Partner) Mira] Kumar Sehgal Dharmendra Kumar Batra
M. Ne. : 513236 [Company Secretary) (Whale-time Directer)
Place: Gurugram M.No.: ABD19 DIN: 07947018
Date: 20-05-2025
UDIN: 25513236BMIPIT3161

AMNMUAL REFOAT - FY2024-25

—_

231



Ay

PFICCADGILY

PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN:L0O1115HR1984PLC032244)
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st March, 2025
Amount in Lakhs (INR) except EPS
S No Particul Not CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
| rartediars oe 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
I Revenue from operations 25 B8,625.65 B2,812.45
Il. Other Income 26 655.13 81.69
1. Total Income 89,280.77 82,894.14
V. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 27 41,717.10 36,441.70
Change in F.G, WIP, and Stock-in-Trade 28 (8,893 .36) (749.75)
Excise duly on sale of goods 6,813.15 4,869.59
Employee Benefit Expenses 29 4,494 84 3,342.23
Finance costs 30 2,784.76 157212
Depreciation and amortization expense k3 1,946,95 1,820.53
Other expenses 32 26,197.09 23,899.33
Total expenses 75,060.54 71,195.76
V. Profit before exceptional items and tax 14,220.23 11,698.38
Vi. Exceptional items
Profit (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.09 2,938.99
Vil Profit before tax 14,220.32 14,637.37
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 348777 3,327.57
(2) Deferred tax 214,72 182.67
IX. Income tax of Previous Year 237.65 89.63
X. Profit after tax 10,270.18 11,037.50
Share of Profit/(Loss) in Associate & Joint Venture (35.75) (61.15)
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company 10,234.43 10,976.35
Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
(1) Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss:
-Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation (net) (154.18) -
-Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 38.80 -
to profit or loss
(iiy tems that may be re-classified to profit or loss: -
-Fereing currency transalation differences relating to foreign operations 69.32 32.61
-Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified - -
to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (net of tax) (46.05) 32,61
Xl Total comprehensive income 10,188.38 11,008.97
Earnings per equity share
-Earnings per equity share 10.85 11.67
-Diluted Earnings per equity share 10.84 11.67
Nominal Value of each share 10.00 10.00
Motes on Financial Statements '1-48 For and on behalf of Board
AUDITOR'S REPORT
As per our separate report of even date sdl- Sdl-
FOR JAIN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS MNatwar Aggarwal Harvinder Sinah Chopra
FRN : D1361M {Chief Financial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
DIM: 00128891
Sd/- Sdf- Sd/-
Krishan Mangawa
(Partner) Niraj Kumar Sehgal Dharmendra Kumar Batra
M. No. : 513236 [Company Secretary) (Whale-time Director)
Place; Gurugram M.No.: ABD1S DIN: 07947018
Date: 20-05-2025
UDIN: 25513236BMIPJT3161
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PICCADILY AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN : LD1115HR1994PLC032244
Raegisterad Office : Vill Bhadson, Umri-indri Road Teh.Indri, Dist.Karnal Haryana - 132109
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD 315T MARCH, 2025
[R5 in Lacs)
For the half year ended Far the half year ended
Particulars 31032025 31.03.2024
AUDITED AUDITED

CAFH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
PROFIT AFTER TAX AMD SHARE FROM ASSOCIATES: 19,168,338 10,9783
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO MET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITRES:

JINGOME TaR CHARGED [N SROFIT AND | D55 A0 3,735.45% B
CEPRECLATION ARD AMORTIZATION 1,846.65 1:520.53
FINANCE COSTS 2,784, 76 157242
LSS PROFT) O SALE OF FIXED ASSETS {3 (.60 51)

|INTEREST BMCOME RECEIVED |50 95 12.13)
EMPLOYEE STOCH OFTION SCHENE A | 2.6t
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 15,298,135 15,050.37]
CHANGES IN GPERATING ASSETS AND LIABRLITIES:

TRADE RECEIVARLES 3174 [B.r12.30
OTHER RECEIVABLES 4. 7a1 0L (219734

[IMVENTORY & BIOLOGICAL ASSETS |10, 7025 ) (534,60
PROMISICNS FEERY 667
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES [1.161.80 100127
CASH GENERATED FROM OFERATIONS 1,B67.57| 661400
IMNCOME TAX PAID [MET) 45745 1510.72
MET CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES (A} [2,?:6.99& Lk |
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

MET PURCHAEE E4LE OF FIXED ASSETS J2d, 2 T2y [#.197 51
CHANGE W ADYANCE FOR CAPITAL GOCOE [3Z#.51 (B71.81
MET GHAMGE IM INVESTMENTS 5.7 115

|INTEREST COME RECEIVED 506,94 12,13
MET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B} [26.254.53){ 12,996,041
CASH FLOW FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES:

PROCEELE FROM COMPULSORILY CONYERTIELE DEEENTURES AND CONVERTIELE WARRANTS 23,699 0% =
PROCEEDS FROM LONG-TERM BORRDWINGS 8,260, 10 T3 68
FINANCE COST [ T84 Th) AT
COIDENDS PAID | (185.60)
MET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (T} 2 ATEY 11.027.11)
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+G) (456 29) 108015
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,415.4 33532
CLOGMG CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS 323.i:|- 141545
Reconciiation of cash end cash eguivalents as par the Gash
Benw slademenl
Cash and cash equivaiants as per Mg abave comprise of the
ol lowing
Cersh amid cagh equividents g6z 14 144604
Less: Eamarked Balances '] 3338
Balance as per statamant of Cash fiows H216 1, 41545
Moles:

1) The above Cash Flow Statemant has been preganed undar the 'Indiract Melhod” &s 86t oul in the Indian Accounting

Standard-T on Stasemuent of Cash Flow
29 Acklitions of fed assets include movement of Degite wark-in-orogress dunng e year
3} Proceads/(rapaymant} of Shoet-tarm & Lang-Tam bomowings have besn shown on net basis.

) Frgure In brackets repressils cash oulflow Irom respective aclivilies,
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A i Lakba (IR}
COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A Equity Shars Capital
Equiy Shares of INR 10 asch ieeed, subaibed and by daid v
Amount im Lakhs
Parficulars Number of shares L]
s at Aprii 1,2023 3.45,61,120 8,866.12
Changss i aquily shars capilal [3:21 500 o 18y
Bslance s at March 31,2004 543, 50.50 9.45393
Changes i equity shane capeal ) - ;
Bal a4 at March 34,2025 8,473,308 280 0,483183
B, Other Equy
Atiributabie Io Equily $5ere Holders
Rugarvis aod Surplus
Panticalars Insir umarnt O Toksk Oy
Soourites Retained 4 Share Basod
Capital Resarve i Clissilied 83 | Comprehensive Equsy
Pramium Earnings Dol Payment Rusen
As at 1st April 2023 1,996 85 7.3 91,568 80 15804 47
Pl for e, pavicd 10,576,345 1057635
Dividerwd paid duting (he yusr (138.68) [HBEE3)
Forleitnd Shams 143 218
Ditwer Covpraharmibig Incoms! (Lose) 3z &l )
B A 314l March 20124 1,80065 ar.az &1, 40847 2Hn 2453605
ol Yo T pariod q0,234.43 V0,234 4%
(iher Comprehensie Incoms’ iLoss| (46,08 IELT-]
g ol Compuisoriy Convaditlg Debaniung 21,153.89 #1.199.83
gympe ol Comspubsordy Comeadibie Warmnts 250800 2.580.08
Granl o Empioyne Sock Oplions 143,60 145.68
Dividerad pard dwicy Ihe yasr - -
Forlotnd Shans . .
hn A1 Xt March 2025 1. JGR RS rad | B EFE ] R R [ELEL] LEE K] REETANT |
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Hote-1 Consabdated Property. Mlant & Equipmend as o 31002028 Amzurd in Lakks (IKEG
Lirad [Cothr
Flant & Budding Fumibtere £ Office
Lend TEL:T Biiling Machisary {DiEcs Flai) - E ol Vahich Trosinr  Comgpurisr Total

Dalericn ap st April 1 3434 R anan LBATS FLELER ) T804 LIE 1] mam 208845 1388 bR A%EITH
AZdFons (1] - LEA0ED LE A . 1347 2 Shm E &40 Bl
Dbsposais . 5 . 3 4 . Haz 3 043 2185
Reclagsibeatins B
Balanon as at March 11,0028 e | AgAY S.a38.57 04657 T80 0547 1142 MER 14688 12186 EGeTd
A o Apnil 12624 w . 1,251.88 1B 05 HET 68 Ta3E AL 85621 1288 212 20,B41:58
Depreciakon chinged for fhe yaa: L = WE 1 51747 2 B kN T2.at 15082 oo faL] 18588
Depotats - - % - £ : x 0148 = 025 o)
Balznion as ot March 11 028 - 1.MEM 1674052 200 Tk EEAL] [RECT] 1 [SEH FrRL N
Kt Carrpiveg Arsimi

e ok Merch 34, 2028 Tk FEFE] (ALY hEFURE LEETE ] AR EAR -] 10066 [ a1fe PR
s o Mawch 31,7028 FEN 1540 161556 1127505 GO4T 4 b H 1] 11z o BEET 7RI
A5 ol Neech 1, 3025 20,0475
A6 i Miwch 11,2038 418848

Defals ol cophial workdn-prograss os on 31002025 & a3 under:

Opening Balance of Capitsl Wotk
NFMH!HHMM 418613
[+ Acitiors A0
{ TeansharsCapitaiised 903 a7
| Dinpasah x
Cleaing Balancs of Capilal Werk
i Priogross 3 i 31t Mirch J28 008475
Capial WP Argeing Schedula  Amourt |
-1 Year 162712
148 oars 207154
23 Yoars 0 o]
> 5 Yearn LR
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ROTES TO COMSOLIDATED FIKRANCIAL STATEMENTSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t March 2025

CONSOLIDATED A5 AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT

ROTE & BOLOGICAL ASSETS i e i
Agricuiludal Produce 24l 1]
] TOTAL 242 .03
X
WETE 1 GOODWILL CUNS:E;;?!BM mﬁgl.l;.:l;i[: A3 AT
Opaning Balaos Rkl 1B
A (Goodwil ratngnize during the yaar 0 -
Closing Balance L] 1B

wopodml repments the ooel of soquinsd business sy sstabished gl the dals ol soquisiion of Ihe busibess in eaiess of e scguine s inlenss! in thes ned far vl us of Ta ddedifatle assels,
lizhitiag and coningan liabimes Wes socumdatd impaimeent koeses, I any. Goodil s tesked or Impainmien anmaaly of shen eoenls O CRumeranes indirale that the bep e ter

swalue of goodwil |s less Than its @rmying amount )

ROTE 4 NOM CUARENT INVESTMENTS

1 Investment in Equity Inssrumess.
LS shssosclaies | Accounted for esing the equity sethed)

Chacted
L Prccadily Sugar and &lad indisings Linited
B Gthars
Unquaotad | §l Cast)

L Good Waneng nda Meda Pv Ld
135 Lacs Equity Srams ot Bs 10 nach j

I Piecadly Moles Privete Limilsd
{35300 Equity shares hirdng face valie of R 1005 & chate premius

CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT

.03.2035 0322
1744 36 1, TRG1
30080 30000
58000 308000
TOTAL B34 36 0621

CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT

ROTE 5 OTHER HOM CURREMT FINAMCIAL ASSETS 012095 03,5024
Eacuriy Daposie rn araR
ToTh, : A Az
CONSCLDATED A% AT  CONSOLIDATED A2 AT
ROTE & OTHER ROK CUIRRENT ASSETS 002005 6035004
Advance for Capinal Goods 482707 1.6BE5E
[Urgsstured Bul Comsadened Good)
TOTAL 493787 1,692.56
CONSCLDATED A3 AT  CONSCLIDATED &2 AT
i HINNENT i 11.00.2025 a2
[ par inviendonies fakon  vailed £ cortted by Me masapamen|
Sirres & Epares 128360 981,23
Faw Miisrias 160155 TR
Wk In Progeess 6536 35 ETRIOY
Finished Goods: #,79R a7 1166503
TOTAL 0T84 THA0L.R0
*rafar mode ow significantd pobicies for the walustion of & .
COMBOLIDATED A% AT  COMSOLIDATED A2 AT
ROTE & TRADE REGENWABLES 34 03,2025 P
¥ Usdispeted Trads Ruoeivabios: Cuasl fered Good 50694 15E55.1E
Diaas than & b ) et 11428 82
14 Merthe < 1 Yiger SN37R aAT .54
% Teer -2 Yau SBE 8T Bakel
13 Vi - 3 Yanr 29142 a7
ml iorm T Foar - 848 _5E5
JERE 13585
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'COMSOLIDATED A8 AT  COMSOLIDATED A3 AT

kTN s i st st s
L] ash B Cacsh Equieaiangs
= (st i Han .15 PR
(1] Barance wih Banse
-in Curveni Arcodinis OiE Rl
{el Befance with Barnke
«iri Depaet fecmound B armarked Balarcss| 3z.ok 1314
TOTAL [TTHE] 5,048 B
CONSOLIDATED A5 AT  COMSOLIDATED AS AT
ROTE 18 Diher Bank Balanzos 31z T4
Ll Fiand Daposits
Matoring aher 12 Moiths: HoEL 1=2e
Melaring within 12 Monlhe oy | aaog
ib| Intees! Aoorued on FDEL =R 128
TOTAL 3T 14 4.1

WOTE 11 OTHER FARCIAL ASSETS COKSOLIDATEDR AS AT CONSOLIDATED A5 AT

83, W25 31033024
STy saposls 25741 e
[Mher dedls considensd good 1F5L5Y 1644938
TOTAL ' 19BN ATAET
CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
WOTE 12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 489,125 o 0505
u ] it good unkeas ofhineios sl
Atvnnos 1o supples 118411 210913
Priapuaid] s s L B
Hetances wils Staludony Bushiofes LRGN 408
TOTAL : 450054 “3,#83,19
CORSOLIDATED A3 AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
ROTE 13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL .43 5025 59 1% 2054
A AUTHORISED
TH.00.00.000 Equity shanes of As. tasach A1, 000.00 10, 10000
ISSUED SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP SEXLEY R b Kl
24325287 Equity Shares o Rs 100 aach
bally cplbead gy foead guaith .
TOTAL 34381 LR
a) RIGHT OF SHAREHOLDERS
i Each Shareholter is erdtiod i ore wok per shane.
il Each Shansholoer Has e tighl in rafilsurplud n peogoiion Kasnn| gaid up with
respedt o share hoddng
L} I e gaenk ol wicding up, e equily shaneholders wil be o od io receve e

seengng Bakinta of Baeals, T Aty in propemiose b ferinditat panholdng in
e pand up squity capia of the comoay,

[ DETAIL OF SHAREROLDERS ROLMNG MORE THAN 5% SHARES
Nt &l Shianes Mol Meosdior of Shisis Hod
Ag on 3e March 3025 Ag oo 3168 Mirch 2004
1 Wr. Saddhantha Sharme 214,85 T1E00 2A4.40,718.00
FA Wiz Soon W Sure Heldings Lid, 1,15,54682 00 3,18, 64, 652.00
EN Ficcadity Holuls [F] Lid. 1,37 4728400 45747, 264,00
o} DETAL OF SHAREHOLDMNG OF PROMOTERS
Apoon 3188 Misch  As on 3188 March
EE
Muinbr of Shares Mumber of Ssanes % of Totsl BRares 5 Changu Deing the Year
1 vl Huld Hald
Bidheartha Sharma 21440716 Z1440,T1E 2273 =
Prachi Seliy F00A00 a0 a0 L -
i} Proemcder Growg:
Phoaddly Holefs Pl Lid 1,37.47,284 1,37 AT 284 1497 -
S N Siste Hifdinge: Limibey ERELLEH ERLLLE 3%a6 -
oo a
Piocadiy Sugar snd Adied td ustries Linited ) [l 4 il
EHS5EHE  66842,895 a7
El Raconcliation ol nusksr of Shars and amount oulkiesdiog al lhe begnning and al s
ened of Ehe reporting pesiod:
‘Bubgeribied id fully pajl up Equily Shirea: Humber cf Shares Held  Mumber of Shares Hald
A Bipril 1, 0E) 9,£3,36.280.00 9,41, 55, 260.00
Mghd: Shares Issued during the year a E
As o Manch 31, 2024 AL RGO 00 940,558 260,00
Mgl Shares g during tha yar . -
s n Margh 21, 2025 9,41,30.280.00 943,59, 260,08
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CONSOLIDATED A5 AT  CONGOLIDATED &5 AT
1 CTHERMEUTY: EAR ] ELR-E R
&) AARTAL RESERVE 1, GBS 1,800
1,054 55 1,853.65
H} BECURITY FREMRIM e LTS
[+ PROFIT & LOSE ACCOUNT
A Por Lang Balenea Sheet ZRat106 11.583.60
Het Peodil durimg e yeer L LT R 10,870, 54
Acd Forletied Ehares - g
Diraatasd Paka - 15362
CCI R fL A L] g
o} Instraments Classified as Eguty in Maturs
Compulsony Comert e Debontunes [28 449 448) 21, 1R B =
Crewgmbla Wanants (1308 564) E50 =
Ei ‘Shara Eased Paymint Rasera 45 6E -
Closing halsncn B0 ATE 03 e TN
Tolal {A+B+CaD+E) [T 24,538.88
Furgoess snd Hehis al Each Rassere
L Coplal Basarm
sl roenia) in rsnca of Gugar ineontive schenss 5300 kor mposmenl of Toom Gcanes
E Bacuries Priiiars
{issraast on oo o dhamg e | ol i docnte e wih B proeen of (he eel)
& Profe g Liris Boount (Rldiid Edimiaisy
Tl Trorm thw ol bous ol i conyoy, i icesvad for furthir da e on
4 Share Beserw-d dar lasuancs Under Coriracts o Cammbrestis far saks of Shares.
0 A Tty pod Corepadapetly Coragriples Debesrmires of Fes apls of Ag 108 sch po g prics of A T4 hay b
s o @ Pralasabal Bass Duseg 1o yoor. Eoch Conpuieody Cotebrib Dolonnd s [a oot o Euily has
allar b gupiry of 13 masths sl 8 proerasm 2l Bs T persham )
bR TR Comeytible Wiarsnts oF 1304 vilss 51 B 10-s8ch 91 ppaneof Ry TEA- hag beaw inserl on g Prferential
Bk Duaie] I8¢ wiar. Eamn Ciras b Waavians wil Do sBonr o Eauity hand ofke T8 2 gy oF 12 9000 6 @ {ormann
nf RN T3 e nhatm |
o, Dnpi g T e’ (B, 18,34 % Cofmentibha ‘Wosments o [aos 'Wiite of As. 10V a0t a1 o pice oF 85 TES has Doe d isseed o0 &
Pritaririnl Binie Exch Cormerkid Wanirk il b abobs) e Bquity chene afier S asurp of O roniia fon 1be
Dioorrbis: 2024 ol a premasn of Rac 775 pershae.]
| Stars Bassd Paymeni Rasans
IExpagn oy o B R egione Siock Dptons. Gred tonag U vk ol Hoky Ng-
CORSOLIDATED A% AT CONSOLIDATED A% AT
1% LOKNG TERM BORROWINGS 39 89 095 8 e
EECURED
A LOANS & ADVANCES
i} Tams Loan Froms Pusjab Natioeal Bank T0E B2 THE0E
[Werking Capital Termn Loan ransed second crange setued against Covemarent Cuaanles. Io ba seeald in 38 egual monthiy Inslalleests
smountng B= 70 10 Lacs we f Decemzar 200+ along wth iferest @ & 15°% p o that shad e sened 35 and when due during the
TR o )
1l} Term Loan Fram Punjab Katonal Bank e v P ]
{Tarm Loan dor 3525 crona Secured poabest momgasa of blook of assals ko incraasing caganily of aadsiing distilery bom S0 KLPDHio 150
FLPD o & 58% 1o be repad m Fl insialmenis smouning Bz 48 56 Lams)
it} Term Lown from Punjab Katiceal Bank 2 K SiRar
| Tarm Loman of Ra. & 40 crove and 040 (rore peder PHE Sanipal Scteme by way of ke bt Bk ol dra ) L TER A
17 instalimeants raspacivaly, amouning Rs 1545 Lacs and 2.35 Lacs respacivaly)
Tl Veksake Lodi A3 5&1.1%
[Muchiche Loare fom banke pos secorsd by Py alion of vachicls undil Hire puechios Ao !
] Tarm Lomn from Punjab Kational Bank Az 7RE7
T Loan of 138 o sesuived again morgags of Dioc of assars for Flanl B machicany for Dsarissath Uni cumanty i Epiamannation
perind ol 2 Years)
il Tewm Lo frem Indian Esek. 1,063 74 1.7E6
|Tam Lo sacued apains] Freahold Propey Raving piat mo 276 Shuaked o ol & Vegslasie Morkat. Oknla Maw Oathi for Re 1500 coorn
o B50% %o b repard oy B4 instalimenls amountng S 97 26 Lacs|
) Tarmm Lok fram Wdan Baik ETET k=
|Tamn Loan 1 Fresshold Commencal Fropersy having piod no 275 shumsed s Froi and Vepalatde Marsot Odhin Haw Dalt for A= 5000
e at 12 50% i B rapeid in 84 medalesecis angueieg B 7087 Laca)
ToTAL JdEnaan sBs0
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COMSOLIDATED: AS AT CONEDLIDATED A5 AT
NOTE 168 NOMN-CUPRRENT PROVISIONS 1103, 3 4
Provigion For Empleyeas Banafi
= Leave Encashment 9.1 .
- Gratuity 5290 ZE0E
TOTAL 16260 E5.06
3 CONSOLIDATEDN AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
il A oo s Mo32025 stmanz
# Bofurrad Tax Aasnt
O Acgnunt of D salkiwancss, Loeg Term Capital Loss ard olhar Tempocary Difanantes L] L RT]
iy Becaird of Cebwr Compiuhaimig Reisrm 3850 -
B Dedarmad Tax Lisbility
CinAocount of Timing Diference due 8o Daepreciation 1,782 88 1564
Mt Difrract Taix Listiility B - ) _ABELTT RETLT
CONSOLIDATED &5 AT COMEQLIDATED A5 AT
HOTE 18 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITY i S e
Crediior for Capilal Goods 17388 43
Eciiirity Dapodil Bt.18 B0 BR
Cthar Koo Cusient Payaiies 35040 AR
TOTAL 50444 183512
COMSOUIDATED A5 AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
NOTE 19 EHORT TERM BORROWINGS (AT AMORTIZED COET)| 100202 3402 2034
L SECLIRED
LS FROM BANKS
1| Cash Credd Alc a6 12 8,500
{Cach Credil aonounts sre secuwrsd by firsd chamge on prsssnt & foture book deble. whods of cument asssis namely siock of raw
bl g0k, iy e pemi Nieiafied £ Brichad goode, slame and ppares relaliog 10 pland B machinenyooncusable Siome B
spanes] blis recaivable and bock debis and &l other moweatle bath prosont £ Rolore B fuither seoured by Hied chame on
fived assalz of the company and pasrscnally gurameed by promaless |
) WORKNG CAPITAL DEMAND LOAN S.ag0.07
{Working Capital Dumand Loan am socured by lirst change on present & future book debts, wheln of curenl assels namely
Al gl raw mawesl Mook in progesssecsl frished 4 feisted  goods skees and speres refaling S0 planl &
R SR Sire B 3pATR] DR recanEbhs and boal debis and Al oter vkl Doty presant & fiine & fuhar
setuned by thint ohange on - Teod assets of the compary and personaly gurameed by rromoliens and aro repayable on demand.|
I CUMRENT MATURITES OF LONG TERM DERT THES.A2 150800
TOTAL 1E.812.51 1123580
TRADE CONSOLIDATED: A5 AT CONEQLIDATED AE AT
NOTE n PAYABLER 31.03.2025 M.033034
Sundry Credhers
i Total pulzmaiadiag dues of Nicrs ind S Scale ledintial Eilersises 1, 883.48 X543
Lenn Thir 1 Y 1.683)00 EgED
1-2 Feam - 1.4
23 oo - a.3n
Woap e 2 Frar 0146 £
il Totsi oatsturadiny duas of Credinr uihr s Micro and Sosll Sest Indusirial Estirpeives e b
Loas Than 1 Vear 255503 157,55
12 oues Bi.82 184
8 Fime 541 250
o tvan 7 Years 5d.13 Ea.Tg
- Tt pisnareding dues of Miore gnd B Soale ladinwial Enmegrisss - Dispauied B -
Lotk Thian 1 Yaar . 3
1 Frorn e £
&3 Vs = -
ki P 31 Yars - -
Total putafanidicg duss of Crodibiors offser S Micne and Sasll Soabs mdimtia Estirpreso- e -
) Drespited
Lasn Thar 1 Yéar & 2
-2 Ve e =
A . =
Wi Bopn 1 Ypars 5 =
TotAL 5.340.07 11,043.98
“guan to Micra and Smed ; kwve bean o fha st such pariex fave
Dt A IR i B asis of b 2 i By L o
HRsrTane a8 Faqiwred [0 B fuoNsiig a8 o Seuivis 52 of W Midn, Simay dnd Mudiare Eropise
Ak, 08T (WEMED At for ¥ yaar wided Brch 31, 2028 s bion presided m Mato 48
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CONSOLIDATED AS AT COMSOLIDATED AS AT
NOTE 21 OTHER FINANCIAL LIMBILITIES 34.01.2035 2900 2024
Esporeas Fayablo 125708 484 14
lerletes] gy ued bul nol dis on bofraangs 2.45 -4.00
Intgrecsd Accrasd bul nat dus on GO0 AT0 48 -
Security deposits B0 35 4616
Urgaid dividend 1288 3%38
TOTAL 1.812.32 BET.E3
CONSOLIDATED AS AT TCONSOLIDATED AS AT
HOTE 27 CURREMT TAX LIABILITY 31.02.2025 31.01.2024
Encoina Tan Provision F407 .77 332757
Loss © Tax pakd during the year 1690, 75 681,40
TOTAL 1.807.03 264617
CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
MOTE 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Siabilory Dues 138147 R R Y
Advarce receieed fom custares 2862 05 1, Bd4:51
Chanuan ssiad Bul not Presented 393 _5.?9
TOTAL 4.046.36 504375
CONSOLIDATED AS AT COMSOLIDATED AS AT
HEaE B P 31032028 31032024
Provisicn For Emplayea Sansdtta = =
= Lparen encas bt 11.08 -
- Gormluty 164,65 1978
TOTAL 1653 EEAC)
NOTE 35 DETAIL OF REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS nuﬂsg:_-gl:u:ztsusn'r cms:‘:'_';‘gﬁ A5 AT
Rovarus from aale of produects
Groas Sales
Domestic A2.080 .33 oA .a
Expaa L 3,841.0%
HE_G25 ES 82,812.45
COMSOLIDATED AS AT COMSOLIDATED AS AT
NoTE M AT o 31.03 2625 39032024
Inberss Incame ] 213
DMhor non-oparative Incame
Eam Income T.n2 Bal
MiBG mcme 26,32 062
Discownl Receiven Q.EL 1.5
Zain an fareign exnchange fusiustion =i A | 307
Renlal ncome 4.00 F
Cash Discourt Reooived 3.85 A572
Tustal 2 655,13 1.6
CONSOLIDATED AS AT  COMSOLIDATED AS AT
HOTE 27 COST OF RAW MATERIAL COMNSLUMED 31.02.2028 31.02.2024
Dparving Stock of Raw Matariala 18060 51264
Add Purchases durng the year 42518 05 36,108 86
Less Closing Stock 1,061 .55 180.60
344170
CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
NOTE 20 CHANGES IN FINISHED GOODS, WIP, STOCK N TRADE 31,03 2088 31.00.3004
Oypaning Stack
Work in Prograss BTEY 83 #, 204,96
Firvshad Goos 1186003 1140728
TOTAL "A° 18,441 .06 17,602.22
Closing Stock
Wik in Prograas 16.536.35 8,761.03
Fireshed Goods Sock 10753 .57 11.6ED 05
ToTAL'E 27,335.32 18,241.86
TOTAL (A -B) 48,803, 38} 1749,

AMMUAL REPOHT - FY2024-25

240



PICOCADILY

= ST

CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
HOTE ¥4 EMPLOYEE EENEFIT EXPENEES 11032025 39.03.2004
Salwnas 0 2 N.OEL Bl
Comparisation bo Enployess (ES50FS) RC-Ri] g
Dirgctors Raanw rarstion 19605 18124
Cosniributean to Prosd st Furd & Cribar Funds 22,37 18,23
Ratranchnment & Compansabon 557 ==
Snd Walfare TS 81.08
TOTAL 4404 B8 3,342.33
CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
= i 31.03.2025 31032024
Interest Expensa o i R )
Inbarast Z2.600.79 1,454 64
Cxthesr Baorrawing Coast
Bark Charges a4 =7 14748
TOTAL 78476 1,572 1%
COMNSOLIDATED A5 AT CONSOLIDATED A5 AT
KROTE 31 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIEATION EXFEMSE 11.03.2025 31.03.2024
Drapraciplicn ol Property, Planl & Edquigmenl 1846 35 1,820,853
TOTAL 1,946.35 !
COMSOLIDATED A5 AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
HOTE 32 OTHER EXPENSES 31.03.2028 11.03.2024
Manufacturing Expenses
Chamizals, Odl & Lubricants 1. 11T.BEE 1,036.03
Cang Desinpriend Expanaag 6372 234
Elaciricity & Watsr Charges 190 24 2ha.4 1
El=ciricals Repair A a4z.03
Environmantal & ETP Exp 20.449 2383
Loading & Unloading 106E.08 139.23
Pawer & Fuisl EWEET 3, 504.87
Packing bateral 19,037 58 B 23827
Flart & Machinary Repalr 1.074.29 1.276.6T
Tatal & 1656249 14, 508,48
Selling Expunags
Adverisemant 28 50.83
Commission AZES 212,42
Fabale & Deeoound 1848 S, TIZTE
Tranapan & Handling 51,72 255,97
Total & [ SEN- ] 6,144, 64
Adminsirative & Othor Expenses
Broakage and Damages 1204 2.6%
Cidporate Sacial Responsbilily Exparnditung 14000 M.os
Elaciricity Expenges 3433 5
Farm Expansas B.ra 6.ar
Garmral Dfice Expenses D2 1.43
Hira: Chm\qﬁ 1.47 023
InGufanaa A5.63 TEAT
Intaraal on TORTCS AT 141
Fate Fee & axes 108 = 1,885 78
Frolossicnn Chargas Tar.Ea ZEG. AT
Faslaps & Taleghon: aapinsaes 20,22 15,97
Frinting. Stationany & pubshiig &5 33 1375
Payments to Susditor
ALt e ar.ag 2354
Tax Audit Foas 025 0.25
Fiant 681.72 05, 50
Risring & Maintanancs af Vahicka 154,71 170,38
Eepair & Malntsnancs
Building 14 24 471 64
Oilhers 30302 211.88
Trawvelling & Conveyanoe
Dhireczlion 1.54 158
Other _a1ae #6762
L] L f g
Grand Total (A+B+0) 26,197.04 23,509,533
CONSOLIDATED AS AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
HOTE I3 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 21.03,2025 19.05.2024
al in raspacd of unassessed cases of Incoma Tak, Salas Tax
Exclsg Duty & Sarvioa Tax Fod Matarie Mot Medorial
5] Eslimased amounl of contrasts ramairng 1o be vasg et on cagilal st
Al nol pravaded e (ret of sdvancas) Rk Iateriad Mol Maienal
KOTE 34 PAYAELES & RECEIVAEBLES
Bararce of cedain sundry debicrs, loans & pdvancas (insleding capital advancas), craditors ard other ligsilites =ne m
procass of confirmatonreconoilatan. The maragemant @ of tho opirdon thad adjesinwan, § any, aising out of swch
recoacillialion would nod b matadal,
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L] AFLADARCES NIODYRRABLE
i the oprion of the Board, e cument nsseis, loars ond sgvances ars approsmalsly of the value sialed, @ resfeed in T
onbrany ourse Of Busirsse The provEion for kngwen s les is sdequate and nel in eeosss of amounl masonably
TSRy,
MOTE 36 DESCLOSURE AS PER IND AS-36 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
iy L of Ind &5 36 on impaimment of assels, Sene was no impaimoon] indicalors alst as of neporing
dale g par e inlerne maresgeman] ssliralee done 3nd hengs ng mpalimeel cherge 8 eeogrised during
thaa yesar undhar raviiae.
CONSOLIDATED AE AT CONSOLIDATED AS AT
MOTE 3T DESCLOSURE AS PER IND A5-33 EARNING PER SHARE .00 2025 31007024
Frofit Durireg T ¥ear [ In RE | 1073443 11506 140,08, 08, 75744
Wieghsd average tombier of sguety shares {Beic) S40,00 280 00 .40, 98 280 0
Add; Dlutiea atfect relating to Convanibis Warmnis (No's) 9300100 -
Face Walue (In Bs) 10 0% RLed i)
Basic Eaning Far Sharas {in R nEs 11,67
Culutsd Eaming Fer Shames (in Hs) 1024 1187
*For e yoar onced March 31, 2028 ESO# and OCD aro not comsidered dor calculalion of EPS since hay wane anli=tlulhae in palure.
CONSOLIDATED AS AT  COWSOLIDATED AS AT
NGTE H INCOME TAX EXPENSE .03 2025 1832024
{Rs.in Lakhs) {Rsn Lakhs|
& Income Tax Expense
Current Tax
Currees Tan pn Frofits fof ®er Yiaad A4BTIT 33257
fudustimants for purment lax of prior year 2378 Bl
Tatal Curred Tax Expansi 3, 75543 JATI0
Dimfarred Tax
Cefered Tax Chargel Incomia) 21472 182 68
Total Tax Expenso 3.850.14 3,533
B Recorcliston of tas espense and the accounling prodi
Profit Before Tax - Fr ) T4 e e
Incoasa Tax (CEcualad &t 25 160% 1482815 T3
Tax Efecd of =
- Irames Enpgd froem Tax [RE=t] (e SR T
« Expense not afiowed as per Income Tax Act TA5E 15038
- Othess 906 S
Income Tox Expanse 3,90014 3,509.88
| NOTE 33 MECLOSURE A5 PER IND AS-108 SEGMENT REPORTING
PARTICLLARS SUGAR DISTRLLERY TOTAL
Ravenug 2495000 03,6T555 BEEZSET
Laga. bnber Segmant Rsweise - - o
Crrar Inzome [ E]
Total Revenue B9, 25077
Prafitiloes] (befors unallocated sxpenditure, 32743 17 ,B22 9 17 £34.37
Binanoe cost and Eax)
Lass:
ib Fingnos Costs - - 2.7EH4 76
1) Oy rpsilocabls experaiiure nel off
s bacaled ircome = 4508
1§ Exzepdonal Bom 10,06
Profit Bafors Tax " {2 T
Tax gepana
(1) Cumenidax 345797
(2] Dhecdertad 1o, 21473
Inoome Lod ol Pravious Vear 23T.EB
Prerdit afuf tax 0ETRAT
Othar information
Soagmen Asseis X423 B1 014 39 18 ASTHE
Sogeneni Liabiktios 11 BRI YR 91 2réos A2 @tapg
O e bocabie Linbdites F463 70
Gapital Expundiune ({P) - T A10.04 1B E100
Creprecation debiled %0 Simement of Prodt & Loss 157.50 . F49 08 1,45 5T
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Mobes:
al
e}

cl

{i}

The Compay has idanfified Businass Segments as prmary Segments

The reporiable busness Segmenls ane “Sugar and "Distillarg”,

Thee type of produchs In 8ach business GRQMENS & &5 wden

Bugar 1 Sugar, Molasses, Paser and Bagasss

Digfillery. Lagor; Mall, Carbordoxide Gas ard Ethan

Thie Compary is alsa comesering resin in o pet botde, which & eciosyoly

s Tor Liguod which is taken in Distilery Segiment and hend: i separate

segmant |5 meparted far the sama

I addition ba the signilicant sccounting pokcies applicable 1o Bw operaling segrments as s=2oul in note 4d. B aceaunling policies
I ralahion 50 Bagmant RCCouring ane as dndes

Segmant revanue &nd expenses;

Joint rovense and joinl oxpensos of segrnenis ane alooated amiongst Shem-on a reasonabh basis. 81 céer segmenl revenue and
enpenses are difeclly atinbutable to te segments.

Segment assels and Rabilites:

Sehment sdsels inciude all aparating sgels used by & ssmanl and somgal pringipaly of operaling cash, Irade resahabisg,
Irveriarias B praparty, plant and equipmants, ned of allowances and provisions, which sra reperled as direct offsels in e batanca
sheel, Segrert Sabdities indude all ageraling liakilites and congist principally of irsde payables. Segmen| assels and liabilites do
a0l inchida defarmad income taees. Winde moes of the assetal llabilfes: can ba directly stirduted to ndvioual segment, the <aeming
amaunt of cortain assets! liabilGes perthining o two ar more sogments are allccated fa the segements on a reasorablo basis
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NOTE

Consolidated as at Consolidated a5 a1

41 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 310320325 31.03.2024

CA

Cia

Disclosura as per IND A3-19
25
26

Short-term employee benafits

Ehort-lesmn employes benelits are those employes benefits (olher than fermmatan benefas) thal are expected o be seltfed whally withen beboe monihs after the and
aof the- anrual reporting panod in which the empioyees render the ralated sarwca. Thase includa lams such as salaries. wages, and ohher siméar banefils. Tha cosl of)
sharf-ierm employes benefits is recognised inthe period in which e relaled serdce §§ rendened by the employee. 6 Sability &5 recognised for the amount expecied 1o
be paid, inchuding the: expected cost of ex-pratia. when there i5 & presant legal or constructive obligation 1o make such payments a5 a resull of past sesdee provided
biy the emplayes, and when the cbégatan can be astimated refiably

Dofined contribution plan

The Company makes conlribulicre towards provident fund, ergiltyee stale insurance, and ofher funds as part ol a defined canlr bulion relirement beneht plan far
qualifying empkyess. Under he plan, e Company 18 teoiied lo contibule a spesilied peseantage of payrall sosl as governed by B redpechve regulations, b
thege funds to fund the berafits. The Company's obigation ks limded to the ameunt that i s reguined 1o connbuba to the fund. Such contnbutions are recognised &S
an expens in the Statement of Profit and Less o the year in which the employee renders tha related seavice.

{fnount ;m Rs in Lacs.)

For Year Ended  March For Year Ended  March
Particulars 31, 2025 31, 3024

Exparss recogrised in the Proft and Loss 133 5,55

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity Plan

The Compary provides & defined banefil grabuity plan in accortance with the Paymen! of Gratuity Act, 1872 (a5 amended). Urnder the plan, aligibie amployees ans
enlitied to recaive a gratuity benefil caloulated a2 the rase of 1526 of the last drawn basic salary multiplisd by the number of compleried years of service. Toe benafits
on early exit. wihdrewal, o death are measured using Lhe same accrusd formula as for normal retrement.

Leaye Encashment Plan

The Company provides leave encashment benefits to employees, allowing them to accumulate eamad leawe. which can be availed during senvice or
ancashed wpon wol. The kave encashmant amount is calculaled based on e last drawn salary and the accumulated kave bafanos at the time ol
exil. The vakiation considers the number of eligible leave days multiplied by the per-day salasy rate (mondhly satary divided by 26 working days)

Valuation of Defined Benefit Plans.

Tha wakuation of the gratuity Sability has besn computed wsing the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method. Under fhe PUC methed & projected aocried benefil 5
caakiatlubed at the beginning of tha period and again af e end of e perod Sor sach benefit tat will accroe Tor all acties membacs of e plan, The prajectsd accrued
berefit 15 based on the plan socrss fomda ard upon service a8 al Me begining and end of the period, but using members linal compensation, promcted o e age
al which the employee is sssumed i leave active service. The plan labdity |s the actuaris! presenl value of the projecied acorued benefits B on the date of valuation
far active mambers.

Acfuarial Assumplions

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions for Gratuity

For Year Ended For Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 Kearch 31, 2024
El_m-lai!y Rales 100% of LM (2012 - 14} 100% of LALM (2012 - 1d)
Digcoun! Rate B.79% Ti13%
Fuiure Salary incrarse Rals 5.80% 5.50%

Witthdrawal Wiithidrawal

Attritlon Rats Rate (%) Rate [3]
p to A0 yeans: Z00% 300%
From 31 to 44 years: 2.00% 200%
AGoe 34 yadrs. 1.00% 1.00%
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Cib Swmmary of Acfuarial Assumptions for Leave Encashiment

For Year Ended For Year Ended
Partlculars March 31, 2028 March 11, 2024
Feinamant Aga ) o
Mertality Rate A00%% of LALM (2042 - 14} 100% of IALM (2012 - 14}
Digcount Bl BTD nan
Future Salary increase Rate 550 .00
Leave
Leava Availmant Rate 2.00% a
Leave Lapsa Riate Whila in Service 000 Q
Luava Lapsa Ratw on Bxit X H] 1}
L Encashment Rade While in Service nan 1]

Withdrawal Withdrawal
Atrition Rate Riate (%) Rate (%}
Up to 30 years 5.00% ]
From 31 ba 44 years, 2.00% a
Abovs 44 yaars: 1.00% 0
£.1.1  Economic Assumptions

The princpal assumptions arg the discour rabe & salary growsh rate, The discounl rabe is garerally based wpon the market yiekds awailzble on Goverrenent berds 2%

e accounling dale ralevant b curengy of benefl papments loe 3 lem hal matches the labiliies, Saly growlh rate 2 company's lorng e basl aslimabe & 1o
salary Increases & takes accaunt of inflation, sentority, pramation, business plan, HR palicy and ather relevant factons an lang ferm bass ag pravidad in relevant

accounling stendand, These valugtion assumpions ara &5 foflows-

Far Gratuity=

Particulars 31-03-2025 31032024
i} Diacaurting Rale .70 T13

i} Fulere salary Increase 5.5 5.5

Faor Leave Encashment-

Partlculars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
I} Duzoounting Rale 575 1

&} Fubere salary Increase 6.5 1]

C1i2 Demographic Assumptions

Faor Gratulty- _

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

i} Retirgirnt Ags (Years) &4 &4

[i] Mortalily rases incusive of provisan lor deabilily

005 al IALM (3012 - 544

005 ol BALA (2012 - 141

iii] Atntaan at Ages

Withdrarwal Fate (%)

Withdrawal Rale {3

Lip bo 30 Years 3 3
From 31 fo 4+ yesrs 2 2
Abave 44 yiars 1 1
-Mortallty Rates for specimen ages| Age | fmte | fge | fate | Age | Rate

15] .oo063s] &3 aarsT 73| oo

20| 0.000924] SO 0004430 &j 00615965]

25| 0.000931) 55| 0007513 g6{ 010007

30| 0,000977 0] 0011762 sl 0 163E07]

35) 0.00120 55 0,01 954 0 25T

al n.mﬁ mﬁ I e
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Far Leave Encashment-
[Farficulars 31032025 31-03-2024
[i} Retinamant Aga iYears) 50 i
i} Mortality rates inclushve of pravision for dizabiliny ™ 100% of 1ALM {2012 - 14 | 100% of LALM {3012 - 14)
jii |Lesave
Laave Avadment Rat 2 0
Ledave Lapse Rabe While in Sarece i i
Leave Lapae Rate on Exil 1} i}
Lenve Encashment Rate Whils in Service 1 1
i) Atrition at Ages \Withdrawal Rate (%] Withdrawal Rate (%]
Lhp bo 30 Years 3 i
Fram 31 1o dd years 2 0
Abve 44 years 1 i
Morality Rates for spociman ages|  Age fate | Age fate | Age Rate
15] 0L00065R] 45 nuoesTs| 75| n.0asaz]
0] 0000 =0 0004435 Bl 0061885
= ss] oot o]
30 Q00T G0y QLOTE3ED G| DEEASHT
33 QL001Lhg 65 0.015532 55 0255706
& 000165 T 0.0406E] 100 0.397133
€2  Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
{Totie Recognised inthe Belance Sheet)
[Amaunt in Bs i Lecs:)
For Year Ended For Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
s} Prasent Values of DBO a5 at the Beginning of the Periad 10583 TE20
[:H Acquisition Adjustment o -
) Interast Cost T4 549
-nterast Coston DBO 755 548
i) Current Service Cost 5348 708
) Past Service Gost incleding curtallment GalnsLosses 1808 1708
il Bensafits Paid - -
K Tatal Actuarial [Gain)Loss an Obligation 15418 -
-heduarial {Sain)iloss on asising frem Cheange in Financial Assumption 373 .
~fyctuarial {GainlLoss oA aeising rom Expariarce Adjustmant 150 45 -
h} Prasent Valus of DBO as &l the End of tha Pariod 330013 105.83
€3  Components of Expense Recogniged
C.31  (Recogrised in lhe Stalament of Profit and Loss)
For Year Endad For Yaear Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
@) Tatal Service Cost Ti57 24.15
Currenl Service Cosl 5148 TOR
-Paest Serice Cost mchiging cudailment GairsdLosses 1T 7E 1708
-Gairs o Lasses on Nan routine setilamends - -
b literest Coat TA55 5.40
-Inberest Cost on DBO 58 £.48
[=] Total Expense Recognised in Profit and Loss 812 20.64
£.32 (Revaluston Recognisad in Other Comprahensive come)
Far Year Endad For Yaar Ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
&) Unrecognized actuarial gaini{loss) for the year 15418 -
«Aeiuarial gain | (poss) for me yesr on DB 15418 -
-Actuarial gain jloss) for the year on Asss! 0 =
b} Met Revaluation gain/{loss) Recegnised in Other Comprehensive incoms -154.18 -
£.3.3  Tolal Defined Benefit Cotl Recogrized in Profit and Loss and Diber Comprebansive Income
Far Tear Ended For Year Ended
Farticulara March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Talat Expenge Recpgaised in Praliland Logs T1Z 2854
Mel Rinsaluabion {oain)loss Recognised in Oiher Compratense income 154 18 =
&) Net asset | |Hability) recognized In the PiL and GCI 13329 2064
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-Far Leave Encashment Plan

1
18]
18]

2l Impact of the Change in Dlscount Rate

2}
2]
2]

Prasent Valus of Obdigation af the end of the penad 2137

impact due to incrassa of DA .41

impact duss to decraase of (.50% 43
Ib) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Value of Obdigation o the eivd of the period 21.57

Impact due I incresse of 050 .44

Impact due to decrease of 150% 141

= Bersitnines due to mortality & withdrewsés are not material & hance impact of charge dwe to these not calculated. Sansitdvities gs mate of increase of pensions in

payment, rese ol Increase of pensong befare retrement & life expectancy are nof spplicabls.
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C.4  Netasset | [Rability] recognized in the Consolidated balance sheet
For Year Ended For Year Ended
Partlculars March 31, #0258 March 31, 2024
Prasen Value of DBD at iha End ol the Period 13313 105.83
Fair Walue of Flan Assals 1] 0
ap Met asset [ {Hability] recognized In the Consolidated balance shest 338.13 106.83
G5  Bifurcation of DBO at the End of the Year in Current and Non Current
For Year Endad For Year Ended
Particudars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Currerd Ligiblity {Amgunt diee within ane year) 176,53 19.78
Mon-Curent Leability {Amount dua ear gre year) 1626 Bi.06
a) Med asset | (Eability] recognized in the Conselidated balance sheet 339,13 105,83
CE  Rizks associaied with defined benefit plan
Based on the acluanal veluation repod, the following risk exposures directly affect the Delined Benedil Coligation {DBO )
1. Salary Increage Risk: The DBO 5 serdifve 1o projeched safary inteases becinge benalils ane caloulabad on [he Dagis of be final Salary at reSremenl 1aclual
sailarigs grow 8t 8 higher rabe than e assumed 5.50%, he liabiSty wil be undgrestmated, lesding o & higher cbligafion then sxpeched
2. Discount Rate Risk: The waluation of the DBO is highly dependent on the discount rate applied. & lower discount rale increases the present velue of future
benafits, end the rapor’s Bersdnety analysis indicedes that evan 3 0.5% changa can have a significent impact on the DBO. Venatiors in makel condsons thal affec)
govemment bond yiekds (usad to dabammine tha decount rata) rearesent a key ek
3, Mortality and Disability Risk: Assumgilions anaund moraity (includng disability provisisrs) are based on established marality tables (100% of the LALB 2013-14)
i), Devisdions fom Bese assumpiong—such ag emphyess living longer due fo improved bealth oulcomes—sauld resull in & higher DBD, a5 banelils conae
ovar 2 kerger pariod
4. Atintion/Wihdrewal Risk: The plen faciors in employee withdrawal rates (3.00% for employess up fo 30 wears, 2 00% for these betwaen 31 to 44 years, and
1.080% dor employess above 44 yesrs). i actual attrition deéfers fram these essumptions (for exemple, i amployess remain longer than especkad), the accrued
benefits—and henge the DEO—couwd be materally different Irom the eslimates.
3. [rvasimend Rk dinoa funded scerana); Although plan assels ae no! separalaly Slabed in the meport, in 3 Stenanio where B plan were lordded, @y mismabch
botween the achual refum on pan assets and e assumuod descaurt rate would affiee the nel Bbility, Poor inestment performante setalive o the dscours rate wodd
waorsan the funding status, indirsctly impacting the raporad D80,
C.7  Senstivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Dbligation™
-For Gratuity Plan
a) Impact of the Changae in Discount Rate
1.h Present Value of Obdigation af the end of the period 37.55
1.4] Impact dise ln incressa of 050 5T
1.4 impact dwe to decraase of 1.50% .31
|B) Impact of the change in salary increase
2} Present Value of Obllgation at the end of the period 3755
2] Ienpract dlue 1o increass of 0.50% 650
20 Impact due (o decrease of 0.50% 597

1247



i

PICOCADILY

- M

NOTE

41 Share-Based Payments

EQUITY SETTLED STOCK OFTION PLAN

This Piccadily Agro Indusiries Limited Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 has been
approved by the Board and by the Shareholders of the Company pursuant to the
special resoclution passed at the Postal Ballot of the Shareholders, held on 30 October
2024.

In accordance with IND AS 102 — Share-Based Payment, the Company recognizes
the fair value of stock options granted to employees as an expense in the financial
statements, with a comesponding increase in equity. The fair value of the options is
determined at the grant date: The opions granted under the Plan are subject to
vesting condibons, which may include service-based and perfformance-based
criteria. Upon vesting, employecs have the right to exercise their options within the
stipulated exercise period.

Tatal expansa ansing from share based payment transaction for the year 15 1.50 crova has

bean charged 1o standalone stalement of Profit and Loss. Also, for the ESOF Plan 2024,
the range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 10

ESOP PLAN 2024
Year Ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Number WAEP (INR)
Total No of Opbons Granted During the Year 23504500 10.00
Total Mo of Options Vestad During tha Year - 10.00
Total Mo of Optans Exercised During the Year - 10,00
Forailed!Expirad During the Year - 10.00
Cutstanding At the End of the Year 2,35,045.00 10.0¢
Exercisable at the End of the Year - 10,00

NOTE 42 Corporate Social Responsibilty Expenditure
of the Company had oﬁrﬁﬁluted a CSR commitlee, The Company is required to
spend &t east 2% of #s aweragenet profit made during the immediately 3
preceding financial years on the Corporate Sccial Responsibility (CSR) activities.
Fallowing is the information regarding projects undertaken and expenses incurred
CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
Particulars AS AT 31.03, 2025 AS AT 31.03.2024
{a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year- 129.91 64.04
(b} Amount spent during the year on C5R activities- 14009 65.72
i} For constructan § acquisition of any assats- - -
iy For purposas other than (i) abowva- 14008 6572
Ic) Shortfall{Excess) spent during the year (A) (10.18) (1.68)
Unutilisad excess CSR spand as al the baginning of tha year (B) 168 =
{d) Unutilised excess C5R spend as at the end of the year [B-A) 11.87 1.68
NOTE 43 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS-24 RELATED PARTY

(A} List of Related Parties and Relationships:

a, Koy Managerment Parsonnel
5h Harvinder Smgh Chopra (Managing Directar]
5h.DuK: Batra {Whole-Dractorg
Sh Matwar Aggarwai (Chiaf Financaal Officar)
Sh_Balindar ¥umar (Ex-Chief Financeal Officer)
Sh.Hira| Kumar Sehgel [ Company Secreisny}
Sh_ Akhil Dada [Ex-Dwector)
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(B

(G}

o)

{E}

Sh, Jai Parkash Kaushik {Director)
Sh. Faejeey Kumar Banges {Direcior)
5h. Rajan Takwar (Director)

Mrs, Hegna Gera (Direchar)

b. Subsidiary
Porvadie Disi@ers & Blendars Limilad
Bix Trees Drinke Private Limitad

¢. Associates;
Piccadily Sugar and Allled Industries Lirmibed

d. Premater Group
Sh.Siddhartha Sheme
Piccadity Hotels Private Limited
Boan-n-Gué Holdings Lid.

a. Relative of KMP
Mrs, Deepika Balra

Mrs. Kanchan Sehgal
Mrs, Shakti Rani Sharma
Mrs. Kallash Gandhd

1. Significant influence
Indian Mait Whisky Associabon (Swgnificant Influence over Section 8]

Related Party Transactions:

Sale of Goods/Sarvices:
Piccadity Sugar and Afled Industees Limited

Purchase of Goodsi/Bervices:
Piccadily Sugar and Allked Industres Limited

Office Rent Expense
Shakti Rani Sharma

Investment Recelved
Soonn-Sure Holdings Lid

Professional Charges
Siddhariha Shamma
Mrs. Kanchan Sehgal

Balances outstanding with Raelated Parties
Plocadily Sugar & Alied Industnes Limited
Piccadily Hotels Pvt. Lid,

Remuneration Lo Directors
5h. Harvinder Singh Chopra
Sh. DK, Balra

5h Rajeev Kumar Sangear
5h Heena Gera

Sh, Rajan Takar

Remunaration to KMP and Relative of KMP
5h. Matwer Aggarwal

Sh. Mira] Kumar Sehgal
Sh. Baknder Sharma

CONSOLIDATED AS CONSOLIDATED AS
AT 31.03.2025 AT 31.03.2024

23008 150.43

281.10 338.88

12.50 1.20

1.260.00 .

121.20 T3.20

RS T g

4.296.55 3,768.33

152.81 147 .89

14420 12224

51.1% 35.00

1.80 -

1.5 E

1.58 T

7917 -

13.68 13.68

12.20 12,20
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NOTE

46 MICRO SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

AS AT 31.03.2025

A5 AT 31.03.2024

{a)

(b)

e
(d)

(e)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Infoarmation as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and 2006
(MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2024 Medium Enterprizses Development Act,

Principal amount and interest dus theraon remaining
unpaid fo any supplier covered undar MSMED Act:
Principal

Interest

Principal amount paid (includes unpaid)
beyond the appointed date

Interest due and payable for the year

The amaunt of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at
the end of accounting year,

The amaunt of further interast remainng dues and

payable even in the succeading vears, until such

dafe when the inferest dues as above are achually

paid to the small enterprise for the purpoese of disallowance as 8

deducfible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

1,683.48

{Rs. in Lakhs)

625.42

HOTE

47 REGROUPING OF FIGURES

The previous vear figures have been recast! ragrouped whenever considered necessary to facliitale companson

with revised Scheduke [ Division (I1).

ANMNUSL BEFCRT - Tr2024-
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Wrs. Deapika Batra 18.06 15.00
Mrs. Kailaeh Gandhi iT75s
CONSOLIDATED COMSOLIDATED
NOTE 44 DISCL R PER IND -41 AGRICULTURE
o RELUISRIRE-AY s SRIGLLTY AS AT 31.03.2025 AS AT 31.03.2024
PARTICULARS
Opening balance .83 11.59
Additions due o Recognition 11.36 B.41
Decreasa due o harvestad 18.78 1017
Closing Balance 2.42 9.83
HANGE TRANSAG CONSOLIDATED COMSOLIDATED
NOTE A5 FOREIRLEXC a5 HoN AS AT 31.03.2025 AS AT 31.03.2024
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs}
(&) Value of imports caleulated an CIF basis by the company during
the financial year in respect of :

1. Raw Matarials ML 688,72
2. Companents and Spare Parts ML MIL
3 Capital Goods 4.671.37 501584
4, Other Imports 3a7.58 MIL
(b} Expenditure in Foreign Travefling T0.95 44 .43
(c) Sale Promation Expense 3.88 MIL
CONSOLIDATED COMNSOLIDATED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Notes)-48

1.Corporate Information

Piccadily Agro Industries Limited ('the Company') is a public limited company incorporated in India.
The Company is incorporated with an aim to provide boost to state industry by establishing an eco-
friendly sugar mill in the year 1996 and distillery in 2007 at Village Bhadson, Umri-Indri Road,
Karnal (Haryana). The financial statements have been approved by Board of Directors in their
board meeting dated May 20, 2025.

It manufactures White Crystal Sugar from Sugar cane cultivated in the surrounding rural areas and
Rectified Spirit, Carbon dioxide Gas, Extra Neutral Alcohol (ENA) from Molasses/ Rice / Wheat,
Malt, Pet.

2_Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to
time.

3. Basis of Preparation

These consaolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instrumenis and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or
amortized cost at the end of each reporiing period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market pariicipants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities have been classified as
current and non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of
services rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of resources and the
realization in cash and cash equivalents of the consideration for such services rendered, the
Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months. The statement of cash flows have been
prepared under indirect method. These consaclidated financial statements have been prepared in
Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions
are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on setllement and restatement are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

4.Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial stalements comprise of financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiaries and associate.
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Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists where the Group has power over
the investee and is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the
investee. In assessing control, potential voting rights that is currently exercisable are taken into
account. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated. from the date on which control is acquired and are
deconsolidated from the date control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries line by
line, adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany
transactions and balances including unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are
identified separately from the Group's equity. The interest of non-controlling shareholders may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the noncontrolling interests’ proportionate share of the
fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’
share of subsequent changes in equity. Tolal comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if it results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

5. Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition are recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date, except certain assels and
liabilities required to be measured as per the applicable standards. Excess of the considerations
transferred and the amount recognised for noncontrolling interests in the acquired entity over the
fair value of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed, is recognised
as goodwill. If the fair values of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed, exceeds the consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling
assets, such excess is referred to as 'bargain purchase gain' and are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there does not
exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a
bargain purchase, the excess is recognised direclly in equity as capital reserve.

The Group before recognising any bargain purchase gain, re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures
used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still
results in a bargain purchase gain, such gain is recognised directly in 'capital reserve’ or recognied
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve, as stated above.
Acquisition related cosls are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, as
incurred.
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6. Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is measured at cost (being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
and over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed). After initial recognition,
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on pro-rated basis on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Any impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goadwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

7. Going Concern

The Board of Directors have considered the financial position of the Company as at 31* March,
2025 and projected cash flows and financial performance of the Company for at least twelve
months from the date of approval of these financial statements as well as planned cost and cash
improvement actions, and believe that the plan for sustained profitability remains on course.

The board of directors have taken actions to ensure that appropriate long-term cash resources are
in place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operations.

8. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Cost of acquisition or construction is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes, other
directly attributable incidental expenses and gains or losses on effective portion of cash flow
hedges related to purchase in foreign currency and interest on loans attributable to the acquisition
or construction of assets up to the date of commissioning of assets.

The Company is following straight line method of depreciation in respect of buildings, plant and
equipment and other assets.

Depreciation on all tangible assets is provided on the basis of estimated useful life and residual
value determined by the management based on a technical evaluation considering nature of asset,
past experience, estimated usage of the asset, vendor's advice efc., which coincides with the
useful life as prescribed under Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013 except for certain items of
Plant and Equipment.
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i} Estimated Useful Lives:

FACTORY BUILDING e
 ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING 30 years
" PLANT & MACHINERY 15 years
"~ FURNITURE & FIXTURE 10 Years

COMPUTERS 3 Years
" OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 5 Years
~ VEHICLES 10 Years

(ii) Estimated residual value:

The Estimated residual value of assets other than Land is taken as 5% of its original cost.
Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of additions. On assets sold, discarded
etc. during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of sale/discard.

b) Capital work-in-progress:

Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses
and attributable borrowing cost, less impairment losses if any.

c) Inventories:

Inventories are valued as follows: Raw materials, stores and spares, Material in transit and packing
materials Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held
for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on
FIFO Basis. Finished goods Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Work-in-process Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value up to estimated stage of
process. Costincludes direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated cosis necessary to make
the sale. By-products are valued at Net realizable value.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer and is stated net of trade discounts, sales
returns. Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be
recognized. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 retrospectively from the date of initial
application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial
statements of the Company is insignificant. Revenue includes excise duty however, sales tax/
value added tax (VAT )/Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the company on its own
account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commaodity by the seller on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. Income against claims of the company, viz.,
export incentives, insurance claims, etc., is recognized on accrual/right to receive basis.
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e) Other revenue streams
interestincome

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipis over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrumeni(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but
does nol consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the
statement of profit and loss.

f) Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution plans

Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and superannuation fund
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The liability recognized in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, where applicable. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Re-
measurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding net
interest) are recognized in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur and
is not reclassified to profit orloss.

(i) BonusPlans

The company recognises a liability and an expense for bonus. The Company recognises a
provision where conftractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(iv)  Gratuity:

The Company has defined benefit plans for post employment benefits in the form of gratuity for its
employees in India. Liability for defined benefit plans is provided on the basis of actuarial
valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial
valuation method used by independent actuary for measuring the liability is the projected unit credit
method.

(v) Long Term Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has defined contribution plans for post employment benefits in the form of provident
fund, employees' state insurance and Labour Welfare Fund.
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g) Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments al fair value at each Balance
Sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
stalements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 —\Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement and disclosure. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

h) Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee (INR).
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items (i.e. receivables, payable, loans etc) denominated in foreign currency are reported
using the closing exchange rate on each reporting date.

The exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting these items at
rates different from rates at which these were initially recorded/reported in previous financial
statemenis are recognized as income/expense in the period in which they arise except for
exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings relating to asset under construction for future
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest cost on those foreign currency borrowings.
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i) Financial instruments-
Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of financial asset or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition.

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction cosis that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assels recorded at fair
value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (reqular way trade) are recognized on trade date.
While, loans and borrowings and payables are recognized net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified
in the following categories: non derivative financial assets comprising amortized cost, debt
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), equity instruments at
FVTOCI or fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL) and non-derivative financial liabilities
at amortized cost or FVTPL. The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of
the business model for which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial
instruments at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement:
A Non-derivative financial instruments
(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

{b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. They are
presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date
which are presented as non-current assets.
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(ii) Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

(ili) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit orloss (FVTPL)

Afinancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured
alt fair value through profitorloss.

{iv)Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the
Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

j}  Impairment:

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. Value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement to the
extent carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each Balance
sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in
prior accounting periods may no longer exists or may have decreased.

k) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss for the financial assets
which are nol measured at fair value through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables
with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
loss.
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At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. Value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Siatement to the
extent carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each Balance
sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in
prior accounting periods may no longer exists or may have decreased.

ii) MNon-financial assets: Tangible and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company review/assess al each reporting date if
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired

I) Income taxes

The Income-tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred income fax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of asseis and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assels are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
thatitis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period and are recognized in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the income tax and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current Income Tax:

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax iltems are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. Advance
taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting
advance tax paid. Current tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amount and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on a
net basis.
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(ii)Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
Deferred income tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabil ities are measured
using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to be received or setiled.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
Such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset
is written down to the extent their is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assels
against liabilities representing the current tax and where the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

m) Provisions and Contigencies:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are
neither recognized nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognized in accordance
with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the requirements for revenue

recognition.
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n) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
assetl for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As per Ind AS 116 each lease component within the contract is accounted as a lease separately
from non-lease components of the contract and the consideration in the contract is allocated to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. Aright-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date is recognized.
The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease paymenis made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset
or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assels is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asseis is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease
term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assels are
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairmentloss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profitand loss.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the incremental borrowing rate is used.

Thelease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease paymenits made and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The amount of the re-measurement of lease liability
due to modification is recognized as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit
and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

Company as a lessee:

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases on shori-term leases
of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is
of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expenseona
straight-line basis over the lease term.

o) Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
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take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assetls is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

p) Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented
within other income. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.
During the year in accordance with IND AS 20, the subsidy has been accounted for as income in the
period to which it pertains, despite the actual receipt being deferred to a subsequent financial year.
The recognition is based on reasonable assurance that the grant conditions have been met and the
amount will be received.

q) Employee Stock Options (ESOP'S)

The Company has implemented an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) to attract, retain, and
motivate employees by offering them an opportunity to participate in the equity ownership of the
Company. Under the ESOP scheme, eligible employees are granted options that vest over a
defined period, subject to continued employment and other conditions as specified in the plan.

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 102 — Share-based Payment, the Company
measures the fair value of the options granted on the date of grant and recognizes it as an
employee compensation expense over the vesting period. During the financial year, the Company
granted 2,35,045 stock options to eligible employees. Based on the fair value of these options on
the grant date, the Company has recognized an employee benefit expense of ¥1.50 crore in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This expense is allocated over the respeclive vesting period, and the
amount recognized during the year reflects the portion attributable to the current year.

r) Instruments Classified as Equity in Nature

The Company classifies certain financial instruments as equity in nature in accordance with the
principles laid down under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation, where such
instruments do not contain any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset and
are mandaitorily convertible into a fixed number of equity shares. These instruments are presented
under "Other Equity” in the financial statements. The Company has issued financial instruments
during the year which, in accordance with the principles laid down under Ind AS 32 — Financial
Instruments: Presentation, have been classified as equity instruments. These instruments are non-
redeemable, mandatorily convertible, and do not involve any contractual obligation to deliver cash
or other financial assets, thereby meeting the conditions for classification as equity
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+ Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs)- The Company accounts for
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) as equity instruments where the terms of the
issue specify mandatory conversion into a fixed number of equity shares after a specified
period, with no option for redemption in cash. Even though the CCDs carry a fixed rate of
interest, the interest does not result in a contractual obligation for cash payment.
Accordingly, the proceeds from such CCDs are classified under "Other Equity —
Instruments entirely equity in nature.” Interest accrued on these instruments is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost, with a corresponding credit to Other

Equity.

= Compulsorily Convertible Warrants (CCWs)- The Company issues Compulsorily
Convertible Warrants (CCWs) which entitle the holder to subscribe to a fixed number of
equity shares upon conversion, with no repayment or redemption feature. As the
conversion is mandatory and there is no obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset, these instruments are classified as equity. The amount received on issuance of such
CCWs is accounted for under "Other Equity — Instruments entirely equity in nature,” in line
with the requirements of Ind AS 32.

9.Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported balances of asset and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities
as at the date of the financial statements and the reporied amounts of income and expense for the

period presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

eslimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future are:

i) Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment: Useful life and
residual value are determined by the management based on a technical evaluation considering
nature of asset, past experience, estimated usage of the asset, vendor's advice etc and same is
reviewed al each financial yearend.

iii) Deferred tax assets: The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at
the end of each reporting period and reduces to the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset lo be recovered.
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Deferred income tax asseis and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss alt the time of the transaction. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assels
against liabilities representing the current tax and where the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

10.Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed by adjusting the number of shares used for basic EPS with
the weighted average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they
have been issued at a later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued al fair value i.e. average market value of
outstanding shares.

The number of shares and potentially dilutive shares are adjusted for share splits and bonus
shares, as appropriate. In calculating diluted eamings per share, the effecis of anti-dilutive
potential equity shares are ignored. Potential equity shares are anti-dilutive when their conversion
to equity shares would increase earnings per share or decrease loss pershare.

11. Revenue

The Company's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and
services to a customer. The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and
identify distinct performance obligations in the contract. ldentification of distinct performance
obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to
benefitindependently from such deliverables.
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» Judgementis also required to determine the transaction price for the contract and to ascribe the
transaction price to each distinct performance obligation. The transaction price could be either a
fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The
transaction price is also adjusted for the effects ofthe time value of money if the contract includes
a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the
transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company
allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the
contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct
performance obligations.

+ The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is
satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as
how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is
being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate
use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

* Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognized using percentage-of completion method. The
Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is
used to determine the degree of completion of the performance obligation.
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